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Devoted to bringing you great taste and a smile to your face
MR EBMENR

Nissin Foods is committed to providing the highest quality products to customers. We do so by
continuously conducting research and product development meticulously, and always attaching
great importance to innovation, food quality and safety. We have also kept investing in people and
improving our production process and capabilities, so as to strengthen our overall competitiveness
and ensure sustainable growth.

Following our Group Philosophy - to be the Earth Food Creator, we contribute to society by
gratifying people with the pleasure of eating, and to the world by creating food, good food.
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“Nissin Foodium” for you to discover more wonders and
surprises from Nissin Foods

[BiEEniERiE] — BRBSFEMNES

To further enhance customer experience and connect with consumers, Nissin Foods has launched
its first-ever membership programme in Hong Kong and Mainland China. “Nissin Foodium”, a
WeChat mini program, offers a host of exclusive benefits, exciting rewards and interactive games
for members to discover and enjoy, in addition to providing the latest brand and product news. In
Mainland China, it is also an e-commerce platform. “Nissin Foodium” connects us to our
end-consumers, allowing direct communication for us to better understand consumer
preferences, behaviours and changing consumption trends.

We, at Nissin Foods, never stop learning and innovating.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEE R3RES

KIYOTAKA ANDO
RiRigkE

CHARMAN E =&

BiARm

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to present the
Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

OUTPERFORMED THE RESULTS OF YEAR 2021

2022 was the final year of COVID-19 and in the first half of the
year we focused on responding to the pandemic. In addition, we
experienced rising raw material prices and a sharp increase in logistics
and warehousing costs in Hong Kong due to supply chain disruptions.
In line with our founder Momofuku Ando's corporate philosophy
that “food-related job is a sacred profession (R AZEE)", the Group
was able to supply products throughout the year without production
interruption, contributing to consumers' enjoyment of foods.

The Group achieved positive results, exceeding last year's results.
The profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by
approximately 4.2% year-on-year to HK$316.5 million. The robust
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demand for instant noodles for domestic and overseas markets
in Hong Kong's operations and price adjustments in both Hong
Kong and Mainland China resulted in an increase in the net profit,
offsetting the spike in raw materials and logistic and storage costs.
The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 4.1% year-on-year
to HK$4,025.0 million. The operations in Mainland China managed
to maintain a positive growth trend in annual sales volume despite a
weaker consumption sentiment in the second half of 2022. On the
other hand, we saw an increase in the sales volume of instant noodles
in our Hong Kong operations due to vigorous demand from local
and overseas markets throughout the year. Furthermore, due to the
resilient demand of frozen food in Hong Kong, currently ranking first
in terms of market share of the frozen dim sum category, our Hong
Kong operations increased its annual revenue.

PREMIUMISATION

Over the past decades, there has been continuous consumption
upgrade among the Chinese population, with increasing per capita
income in Mainland China. In 2021, the Company upgraded Cup
Noodles, bringing smoother noodles and improved soup quality in
newly updated containers.

Also, Hong Kong operations launched 100% Hokkaido made wheat
flour Demae Iccho in Hong Kong in 2020. The Group has rolled
out four flavours under the newly upgraded Demae Iccho, bringing
a variety of tastes to an even wider audience of its consumers. In
Mainland China, we also stepped up our efforts launching 100%
Hokkaido made wheat flour Demae Iccho in 2022. The Company
expects to launch more premium products in the future.

INVESTMENT IN BUSINESS

In order to enhance Nissin Food’s brand loyalty amongst consumers,
the Company launched a membership programme named “Nissin
Foodium” in Hong Kong in July 2022 and in Mainland China in
August 2022, respectively. Consumers can scan the QR code on the
back of the Cup Noodles’ \W-tab design lid with a double flap by
smartphone to get points in the WeChat mini program, which can be
used to redeem various items and novelties. This digital marketing can
reinforce brand loyalty because the program is used to understand
the preferences of individual consumers and, to obtain their feedback
in developing new products. This W-tab design lid with a double flap
on which the QR code was printed can adhere to the container more
easily and securely than the previous lid with a closing sticker after
pouring hot water and thus it can improve consumer’s convenience.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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On corporate development front, year 2022 was pivotal for the
Group. In November 2022, the Group acquired the remaining equity
interest in Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited (Zk
BB R KERMAR AR (“Zhuhai Winner”), the former joint
venture with the Chinese regional government since its establishment
in 1993. Upon completion, Zhuhai Winner became an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and allowed the Group to further
expand the instant noodle business and capitalise on the long term
growth trends in Mainland China.

SUSTAINABILITY

In line with our founder Mr Momofuku Ando’s corporate philosophy
that “Create food to serve society (R&|&1t)”, the Group is
committed to sustainability management as a responsible company
and citizen and contributing to the sustainable development of the
community in the long term while the Group grows steadily.

Environmental management

The Group expanded the power generation capacity at the Zhejiang
plant by installing additional solar panels. Furthermore, a new solar
power generation system was installed at the Zhuhai Nissin Packaging
plant which commenced operation in December 2021. In 2023,
Zhuhai Winner plant will install a new solar power generation system.
We will continue to utilise renewable energy in our business.

From an environment management perspective, the production of
Cup Noodles’ new W-tab design lid on the back of which QR code is
printed successfully uses less PET (polyethene terephthalate) than the
previous lid with a closing sticker.

Human Resource management

The Group has continued to invest in human resources for future
sustainable growth via different stages of recruitment, induction and
on-going trainings. A total of ten training sessions in the form of
lectures are held annually for newly recruited employees to cover our
vision, culture, knowledge on instant noodles and its development,
marketing and sales, and other aspects to raise employees’ awareness
and allow employees to acquire operational expertise in our industry in
both Hong Kong and Mainland China. In addition, the Group provided
fringe benefit system for employees, including medical insurance and
offering health checks and flu vaccines to employees every year.
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Community investment

The Nissin Foods (Hong Kong) Charity Fund was established in 2020
to contribute to the well-being of the community. Nissin Foods
Scholarship for supporting future Hong Kong food scientists was
launched in The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and five BSc and
two Ph.D students studying Food and Nutritional and Sciences were
awarded the scholarships in 2022. Moreover, Nissin Foods Scholarship
for supporting the future Hong Kong Physical Education teachers for
food education was established in The Education University of Hong
Kong and four students studying Health Education were granted
the scholarships in 2022.The Group will continue the scholarship
programmes to encourage outstanding students.

OUTLOOK FOR 2023

With the most recent easing of COVID-19 in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the spike in prices of raw materials, particularly
palm oil, have stabilised, and logistic costs, particularly sea freight,
are returning to a more normal level. We expect to benefit from the
current situation. The government of Mainland China is expected to
boost consumption so as to stimulate the economy, while the Hong
Kong SAR government has already introduced stimulus measures
to bolster economy and launched “Hello Hong Kong” campaign
to attract tourists coming to the city. The Group is optimistic that
the number of tourists to Hong Kong from Mainland China and the
overseas is expected to increase significantly.

In Mainland China, its operations will mainly focus on the expansion
of the sales volume of Cup Noodles and other instant noodles
products substantially, particularly by expanding distribution networks
to key accounts and local stores in Western and Northern regions.
During the pandemic, the influx of people slowed down in Mainland
China. In due course, the Company plans to increase contacts
with consumers in places with high public flows, such as in retail
outlets and transport hubs from the promotion and advertisement
perspectives. On the non-noodle category business, the distribution
business in Mainland China will strive to expand the trading of the
“Made-in-Japan” confectionary.

Hong Kong's operations will mainly focus on expanding the sales of
100% Hokkaido made wheat flour Demae Iccho. The distribution
business aims to capture the demand for mineral water and other
products from the tourism and catering industry where their sales
substantially dropped during the pandemic. In terms of frozen food
business, the Group will focus on the sale of premium frozen foods
and strive to capture the demand from the overseas market.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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CHAIRMAN'S MISSION AND DETERMINATION

Year 2023 marks the start of post pandemic where the Group’s true
value and performance will be evaluated. We stay committed to
further penetrating Cup Noodles, Demae Iccho, and other premium
products into Mainland China and Hong Kong, to returning to a high
growth trajectory in terms of sales volume and to deriving higher
profits from the non-noodles business.

| am determined to maximise business outcomes while efficiently
developing the Group’s business operation and organisation, and
aiming to create long-term value for all stakeholders, including
shareholders and investors of the Company. The Group is also
committed to contributing to local communities for bringing
sustainable growth to the community.

With such goals in mind, again, | believe in enriching lives of people
through the production and distribution of tasty, secure, and
affordable food, and | share with you the corporate philosophy of our

founder, Mr Momofuku Ando, that “Create food to serve society (&
Bl Att)”.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B fS RS

KEY HIGHLIGHTS * Z R &

FY2022 FY2021 +-%
2022 BIEE (2021 B E
HK$ million HK$ million
AEAT BEAT
Revenue ILON 4,025.0 3,866.3 +4.1%
Gross Profit EF 1,294.6 1,227.3 +5.5%
32.2% 31.7% -
Profit attributable to owners of KNARHER NIRRT
the Company 316.5 303.8 +4.2%
7.9% 7.9% -
Segment Results DEELE 433.5 422.6 +2.6%
10.8% 10.9% -
Adjusted EBITDA 42 AEEEBITDA 606.9 604.1 +0.4%
15.1% 15.6% -
Total Assets mEE 4,535.1 5,259.6 -13.8%
Net Assets attributable to owners of the NATHER ANEBLHEESE
Company 3,518.9 3,950.6 -10.9%
Final Dividend per share (HK cents) FRRARER S (BIL) 15.16 14.56 +4.1%
Special Dividend per share (HK cents) BRI S (BL) - 2.91 -
Earnings per share (HK cents) FRAF GBI 30.32 28.74 +5.5%
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) & EE (%) 50.0% 50.7%* -
Net Asset per share (HK$) BREEFE (EIT) 3.37 3.77 -10.6%
* Excluding special dividend TR IS
TRACK RECORD 1% 4& 5 £k
Revenue in Mainland China Segment Results in Mainland China Proportion of Revenue
HR B A it LA FEAth D ZBEE by Geographical Region
HKSmillion & &#&7T HKSmillion B &# 7T R EE| D 2 U A L)
2500 350
300 f
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250 F
1500 F 200 | M Mainland China &t
W H s [ RS 60 9
L 150 od%
1000 +807% +1 401 %
100 Hong Kong &%
500 FYuEEE 5 | FY BB
39.1«
+2.1% +4.8 « ¢
2021 2022 2021 2022
Revenue in Hong Kong Segment Results in Hong Kong Proportion of Results
1L DN BERDEEER by Geographical Region
HK$million B &77T HKSmillion B &787T R EE| D~ &5
1800 200
1500 f
150
12001 [l Mainland China Bt
900 | Wy 100 H b 72 3
%
600 | +11.4% '5.0% *
S0 Hong Kong &%
300 | FY SBEFE m FY MEFE 27 7
%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS E IR E 51w i

The Board is pleased to announce the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022.

RETURNING TO NORMALCY

In 2022, the world has been returning to normalcy from the turmoil
bred by the outbreak of Coronavirus Diseases 2019 (“COVID-19" or
the “pandemic”). Global travelling has rebounded and World Health
Organization updated its guidelines on mask wearing in community
setting, COVID-19 treatments and clinical treatment in January 2023.

Since the beginning of December 2022, Mainland China has started to
loosen its COVID-19 restrictions. The Chinese term for COVID-19 was
renamed from “novel coronavirus pneumonia” to “novel coronavirus
infection”, followed by re-classification of management of the
infection as Class B infection. The adjustment in epidemic response
policies, which took effect in early January 2023, was a significant
step towards the relaxation of pandemic control.

Echoing the measures in Mainland China, the Hong Kong SAR
government has lifted most of the COVID-19 related social distancing
and preventive measures by stages since the end of 2022. The
arrangement of issuing isolation orders to infected persons was also
abandoned in late January 2023.

More importantly, since the long-awaited borders reopening between
Mainland China and Hong Kong on 8 January 2023, normal travel has
been resumed. Furthermore, the removal of mandatory mask wearing
in both indoor and outdoor area that was effective on 1 March 2023,
marked an official end of all COVID-19 restriction measures in Hong
Kong. As such, a gradual rise in the number of visitors to Hong Kong
is anticipated.

On the flip side, the turbulence and distortion to the business
environment brought by this unprecedented pandemic remained
throughout 2022. Disruption to the global supply chain system and
distortion in the supply and demand dynamics of most of the raw
materials continued. In addition, geopolitical uncertainties further
deteriorated the balance of supply and demand of our key raw
materials, namely, wheat flour and palm oil, triggering their prices to
skyrocket during the first half of 2022. In spite of an easing in palm oil
price in the second half of the year, the average full year prices of our
key raw materials were notably higher year-on-year.
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Despite the challenging condition arising from increasing raw materials
prices, the Group is committed to continuous product upgrades and
cost optimisation. We are dedicated to pursuing a premiumisation
strategy and providing good quality food to bring contentment and
enjoyable experiences to our valuable consumers. Riding on our solid
foundation and footholds in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well
as the rich and diversified product portfolio developed over time, we
sail through good times and bad. The direction and strategy of the
Group are proven with positive business results.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to protecting
consumers’ well-being by providing a stable food supply even under
severe business conditions. We also attach great importance to food
safety by conducting regular product testings and pursuing relevant
research and development. Moreover, the Company has continued to
invest in and improve our production process and product quality, so
as to delight our consumers.

FINANCIALS

For the year under review, the Group achieved positive results in
its overall business. The Hong Kong operations recorded a stable
performance due to the implementation of price adjustments.
Concurrently, the Mainland China operations saw a moderate
expansion because of depreciation of the Renminbi against Hong
Kong Dollars. Revenue increased by 4.1% to HK$4,025.0 million
(2021: HK$3,866.3 million), primarily attributable to the organic
growth in sales volume of our premium instant noodles throughout
the year, partly offset by the negative impact of foreign exchange
rate of Renminbi and intermittent lockdowns. Gross profit grew by
a healthy 5.5% to HK$1,294.6 million (2021: HK$1,227.3 million),
boosting gross profit margin by 0.5 percentage points to 32.2% in
2022 from 31.7% in 2021. The increase in gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to the price adjustments implemented in both
Hong Kong and Mainland China in 2022 to offset the surge in raw
material costs.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 4.2%
to HK$316.5 million (2021: HK$303.8 million), representing the
net profit margin of 7.9% for the year (2021: 7.9%). Profitability
maintained at the same level as that of last year mainly due to the
implementation of price adjustments to offset the leap in raw material
prices as well as logistics and storage costs.

The Group’s basic earnings per share increased to 30.32 HK cents for
the year (2021: 28.74 HK cents). For the fiscal year of 2022, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of 15.16 HK cents per
share (2021: 14.56 HK cents), representing a dividend payout ratio of
50.0% (2021: 50.7%) for the year.
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At the Adjusted EBITDA level ™, the Group rose slightly by 0.4% to
HK$606.9 million (2021: HK$604.1 million), representing the Adjusted
EBITDA margin of 15.1% for the year (2021: 15.6%).

Note: Adjusted EBITDA is a non-HKFRS measurement used by the management
to assess the performance of operating segments, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The measurement basis of Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as net profit before net interest expenses, tax, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and amortisation of intangible asset. This also excludes share of material
gains or losses which are of capital nature or non-operational related
and fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Operations

In Hong Kong, real gross domestic product (“GDP") shrank by
3.5% year-on-year in 2022 due to a plunge in export and slackened
domestic demand. 2022 quarterly GDP growth rate contracted,
standing at -3.9%, -1.2%, -4.6% and -4.2%, respectively.
Nonetheless, improvement in private consumption has been seen since
the second half year in tandem with the stablised pandemic situation
and the relaxation of social distancing measures. The total retail sales
value declined by 0.9% year-on-year while supermarkets’ retail sales
headed on an opposite trend and increased by 1.3% in 2022, as
reported by the Census and Statistics Department.

As the raw materials prices, including wheat flour and palm oil, soared
during the first half year, the Company adjusted ex-factory product
prices in two phases. The mid-to-high single-digit increase applied to
the majority of our products had helped ease the rising pressures on
the Group from climbing production costs and raw materials costs.
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Revenue from Hong Kong operations increased by 7.4% to
HK$1,575.2 million (2021: HK$1,466.2 million), mainly attributable to
the implementation of price adjustments and increase in sales volume
of premium bag-type instant noodles but was partially offset by the
decline in distribution business. Currently, revenue from Hong Kong
operations accounted for 39.1% (2021: 37.9%) of the Group's total
revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Hong Kong operations slightly
lowered by 2.8% to HK$120.0 million (2021: HK$123.5 million),
owing to the continuous increase in logistics and storage costs
throughout the year.

Instant Noodles Business

For the year under review, the performance of instant noodles
business was satisfactory. Sales volume continued to register an
organic growth albeit the price adjustments.

Our signature brands Cup Noodles and Demae Iccho attracted
positive response from consumers after quality upgrade and sales
volume of such products climbed. The Company added new flavours
including Nissin Cup Noodles Shrimp and Tomato Flavour Instant
Noodle and Demae Iccho Hokkaido Wheat Flour Mala Pot Flavour
Instant Noodles during the year.

To further enrich our instant noodles portfolio, the Company launched
different new flavours under the Raoh, Nissin U.F.O, Fuku and Doll
brands, such as Raoh Tonkotsu Flavour Instant Noodle (Non Fried),
Nissin U.F.O Stir Noodles Japanese Sauce Flavour Instant Noodle
and Doll Ghost Spicy Thai Style Spicy Prawn Flavour Fried Noodle.
The Company also continued its collaboration with Irvins, a famous
brand of salted egg fish skin from Singapore, to bring excitement and
delightful experience to consumers, launching the Nissin Irvins Salted
Egqg Flavour Stir Noodle and Nissin Irvins Hot Boom Salted Egg Flavour
Stir Noodles.

Along with our tenets of innovation and creativity, during the year, a
new W-tab design for regular type of Cup Noodles was launched,
allowing better cup lid connection with container and greater eating
convenience to consumers. Moreover, a new membership programme
was launched in Hong Kong in July 2022. The “Nissin Foodium” in the
Wechat Mini Program offers members a series of exclusive benefits,
exciting rewards and interactive games. To enjoy more benefits and
surprises, consumers are encouraged to scan the unique QR code
on the products using the mini program and complete various tasks
to earn points. Such membership programme aims to retain existing
customers, boost product sales and allow us to better understand our
consumers’ preferences.
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Non-Noodles Business

The diversification of our product portfolio into non-noodles business
that has been underway since the listing of the Company has laid a
solid ground and foundation for us to overcome adversity. It enables
our non-noodles business to capitalise on the management expertise
and distribution network of instant noodles to create synergy and
enhance the Company’s overall competitiveness.

Frozen foods product

During the year under review, frozen foods products demonstrated
a strong demand because of the resurgence of the fifth wave of the
pandemic, as well as business expansion to a more premium food
product market in Hong Kong. As such, various new products under
the NISSIN brand were rolled out, for instance, Nissin Premium Pasta
Fettuccine in Beef Flavour Red Wine Sauce, Nissin Pasta Spaghetti
with Chicken in Creamy Lemon Sauce and Nissin Mini Glutinous Rice
Dumpling in Abalone Sauce, to please the palates of consumers with
discerning taste. The frozen foods business achieved a decent growth
notwithstanding the fierce competition.

Distribution business

MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited (“MCMS") is engaged in
the distribution of beverages, confectionery, snacks, Japanese brand
seasoning sauce and chilled products in Hong Kong. In the first half
of 2022, its business was undesirably impacted by the fifth wave of
the pandemic as some of our customers such as luxurious hotels and
fine-dining restaurants were seriously hit by the dine-in restrictions
and a lack of inbound tourists. However, since the third quarter,
with quarantine requirements on visitors lifted, economic activities
gradually resumed and the business witnessed a rebound in sales
volume. On top of continuing to explore and bring in new brands
from instant coffee and worcestershire sauce to enrich our product
portfolio, the Company also expanded distribution channels to grasp
new opportunities.
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On 6 January 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of an
additional 30% shareholding in MCMS from Mitsubishi Corporation.
As at 31 December 2022, MCMS was owned as to 81% by the
Company.

KAGOME, Nissin Granola and Fresh-cut vegetable

Our KAGOME vegetable and fruit juice, Nissin Granola product
and ready-to-eat fresh-cut vegetable continue to be one of the
consumers’ favourite choices in light of the rising health awareness of
consumers in the wake of the pandemic.

For KAGOME business, it rebounded and grew as the Hong Kong SAR
government has relaxed social distancing measures after the easing of
the fifth wave of the pandemic. Plant-based soy and oats milks as well
as organic juices were launched to avail nutritious and healthy choices
to health-conscious consumers. We received remarkable response
from the expansion to new markets in Southeast Asia including
Singapore and Thailand and KAGOME products can now be enjoyed
in airline lounge in Singapore.

We replicated the success of Nissin Granola in Hong Kong and
Mainland China to the new markets in Southeast Asia with sales
volume growing considerably in Taiwan and Singapore during the
year.

The fresh-cut vegetable business developed in December 2020 has
shown a substantial rise in demand in 2022. The distribution channels
have been further expanded from supermarkets to various restaurants,
cafeteria and coffee shop.

Mainland China Operations

In 2022, the Mainland China‘’s economy grew at 3%, the second
slowest growth since 1976, due to a slump in exports as the global
economy slowed and the supply disruption brought by pandemic
controls. The National Bureau of Statistics of China also reported that
the total retail sales of consumer goods dropped by 0.2% year-on-
year.

Looking at the competitive landscape for the instant noodles industry,
competition and price adjustments among the big players have
intensified to secure the market shares. The Company adhered to its
premiumisation strategy and thus had been operating against this
turbulent business environment in Mainland China during the year.
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Same as the situation in Hong Kong, the spike in raw materials prices
added operating burden for manufacturers, leading to escalating
pressure over its production costs during the first half of the year. On
1 March 2022, the Company implemented a mid-single digit price
adjustment for the noodles category in Mainland China to alleviate
part of the rising cost pressures.

For the year under review, the Mainland China business delivered a
mild revenue growth mainly because of the weak foreign exchange
rate. Revenue increased by 2.1% (in local currency: 6.2%) to
HK$2,449.8 million (2021: HK$2,400.2 million), thanks to our
geographical expansion and growth in sales volume of cup-type
instant noodles, but is partially offset by a decline in distribution
business. Currently, revenue from the Mainland China operations
accounted for 60.9% (2021: 62.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Mainland China operations edged
up by 4.8% to HK$313.5 million (2021: HK$299.1 million), mainly
attributable to the solid performance of instant noodles business,
partly offset by the negative impact of the foreign exchange rate of
Renminbi.

Instant Noodles Business

During the year, the Company continued its geographical business
expansion strategy in Mainland China and explored certain new
markets in the Western and Northern regions of China. The instant
noodles business maintained a sales volume growth amid complicated
business environment.

The Company once again collaborated with a Japanese anime named
“Regarding Reincarnated to Slime” to launch limited-edition crossover

packaging for Cup Noodles. New SKUs from made-in-Hong Kong
Demae Iccho brand such as Hokkaido Wheat Flour Sesame Oil
Flavour Instant Noodles have been made available in Mainland China
to offer consumers more premium choices.
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Same as in Hong Kong, Cup Noodles upgraded with a new W-tab
design was introduced in Mainland China featuring tighter cup lid
connection and greater eating convenience. A new membership
programme was also launched in August 2022. The “Nissin Foodium”
in the Wechat Mini Program not only offers members a series
of exciting rewards and interactive games, but also serves as an
e-commerce platform for consumers to purchase our products directly.

As the consumption upgrade trend remains in progress in Mainland
China, there will be ample opportunities for expansion in the premium
instant noodles market. Against this backdrop, the Company acquired
the remaining 29.55% equity interest in Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products (“Zhuhai Winner”) in November 2022, allowing it to
consolidate control over Zhuhai Winner, which is an integral part of
the Group’s operation in Mainland China. The acquisition has given
the Group greater flexibility to deploy production capabilities in
Mainland China for responding to market demand and the changing
business environment, and will in turn increase the overall income and
profitability of the Group.

Distribution Business

Shanghai’s joint venture distribution business commenced operation
in April 2020 and is engaged in the distribution of confectionery and
beverages of the Company’s own brands such as Nissin Cisco Crisp
Choco, Nissin Granola and KAGOME, as well as certain famous
third-party Japanese brands with growth potential. Although the
business has broadened geographical coverage from Eastern region
to Southern region in Mainland China, its performance was affected
during the year by lockdowns forcing temporary closure of retail stores
and dwindling number of consumers as COVID-19 infections surged
quickly near the end of the year.

The Company seized the opportunity from pandemic rampant to
expand product categories, covering frozen and chilled food such
as frozen pasta and ramen during the lockdown in Shanghai via the
distribution network of its Shanghai joint venture company and the
regional sales channels, resulting in a considerable growth in the
sales volume of frozen foods. In addition, the commercial packaging
of frozen ramen was introduced to attract more businesses from
commercial customers such as restaurants.

Furthermore, having experienced the pandemic, consumers in
Mainland China were motivated to purchase healthy and nutritious
foods due to the rising awareness of health consciousness. The sales
of KAGOME vegetable and fruit juice and Nissin Granola products
gathered stronger growth momentum.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$4,535.1 million (31 December 2021: HK$5,259.6 million), and the
total equity was HK$3,544.7 million (31 December 2021: HK$4,116.3
million). The Group’s working capital was HK$1,550.3 million (31
December 2021: HK$2,048.5 million), represented by the difference
between the total current assets of HK$2,467.6 million (31 December
2021: HK$3,108.9 million) and the total current liabilities of HK$917.2
million (31 December 2021: HK$1,060.4 million). The current ratio
was 2.7 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 2.9).

The financial position of the Group remained healthy, with net cash of
approximately HK$1,267.2 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,808.6
million) and HK$820.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$180.8 million)
in available banking facilities as at 31 December 2022. The Group
had no external borrowing, and the gearing ratio was nil as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$632.6
million during the year under review (2021: HK$315.9 million). The
substantial increase in capital expenditure was mainly due to the
acquisitions of non-controlling equity interests of Zhuhai Winner and
MCMS in Mainland China and Hong Kong respectively.
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Capital Commitments

The Group had a capital commitment for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided HK$93.0 million
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$68.2 million).

Financial Risk Management

The Group had not entered into nor traded derivative financial
instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. The Company and
several subsidiaries have foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As HK Dollar is currently
pegged to US Dollar, the Company considered that the Group’s
exposure to fluctuation in HK Dollar against US Dollar is limited. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the Japanese Yen and
Renminbi against HK Dollar. The Company continues to manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Contingent Liability
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liability (31 December 2021: Nil).

Pledge of Assets
The Group did not have pledged assets as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).

Use of Proceeds from Global Offering

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 11 December 2017 (the “Listing”). The total
proceeds from the Global Offering involving the issue of 268,580,000
ordinary shares of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$950.8 million. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had fully
utilised the proceeds according to the proposed applications of the
proceeds set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 November
2017 (the “Prospectus”). The utilisation of the net proceeds from the
Listing up to 31 December 2022 was shown in the below table:
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the long-term business
development in the regions and continues to look into ways to
alleviate the cost pressure under this competitive landscape. Following
the Mainland China’s reopening to the world, the economy in the
Greater China is set to rebound in 2023, but largely hinges on
consumer behaviours.

In Hong Kong, inbound tourism is expected to recover as normal
travel between Hong Kong and Mainland China resumes. In addition,
the Hong Kong SAR government-led “Hello Hong Kong” tourism
campaign which offers 500,000 free air tickets, cash vouchers and
other incentives to global visitors will further revive the local economy,
helping invigorate higher purchasing power and consumption
sentiment.

In Mainland China, consumer consumption continues to improve as
per capita spending rises and the per capita income gap between
urban and rural residents is narrowed. The Company also plans to
strengthen the connection with consumers at locations with heavy
people flow such as retail outlets and transportation hubs, after
the recovery of consumers’ mobility from pandemic. Moreover, the
Company continues to expand its business territory and penetrate into
other areas alongside the development of additional sales channels.

To further consolidate overall competitiveness, the Company has been
actively implementing automated, robotic and smart technology at its
production plants to realise digitalisation for the purpose of improving
operational efficiency, productivity, product quality and customer
experience.

Building on its solid foundation, well-diversified product portfolio and
the premiumisation strategy pursued, the Company is well-positioned
to deliver continuous revenue and earnings growth, as well as to
expand business territories with increasing brand recognition in Hong
Kong and Mainland China for years to come.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

RRRE

AAEE e RPESERFRIELENE
B UHBEBEERREEBEFEIUNRETORA
BURE R ANE S o BEEP RN EHFAR - AR
EEMLEFR 2023 F B - BRKEE EEUR
PHBENTTE -

EEE » BBEERSESP B AN RIS TR IREE -
TEHA A SEBRBEAS IR BI0R o thoh - BBEFRIFTER
EBFXEN R &8 ] RKETE AR
PRI 500,000k KE - BEH M EMEE -
ERE—SIREEMLE  EPRERaNEE
N RHEBIEE -

EREANL - BEEALEEEN  BBERAL
WAZERE ) BEEHBRHEER - ARFN
AEREBEERBERRBRIRER  ETEE
Ko 32 AR Al S N\ B B B 00 58 LK B A O B
£ o O ADREERREEBRE K25 H
it - FSFABEZHERE -

RE-SERERBRF S ARB-BERERT
BETEBC  BBRAREERMABERRF
b ERERSEERE LEN ERBERK
Fies -

BERBENRE  ZnltzEMRES MERDWH
b2 R » RREFARRRERE RP RN
BB R R g & - WHIA T E R
MM iR BN E 2 IR o



SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 10 November 2022, Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd.,
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Zhuhai Western
Development Co entered into the equity transfer agreement, in
relation to the acquisition of 29.55% equity interest in Zhuhai Winner
through the public sale on Guangdong United Asset and Equity
Exchange at a cash consideration of RMB352.4 million. Zhuhai Winner
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon
the completion of the Acquisition on 28 November 2022. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 10 November 2022 for
details.

During the year under review, except for the aforesaid acquisition,
there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Group and the Group did not
hold any significant investments.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of staff of the Group
was 3,511 (31 December 2021: 3,590), with staff costs (excluding
directors’ remuneration) amounting to approximately HK$707.7
million for the year. The remuneration package is determined
concerning the individual performance, qualification and experience
of employees concerned and prevailing industry practices. The Group
also provides medical benefits, internal and external training and
discretionary bonuses based on individual performance. The share
award scheme is in place to provide long-term incentives to the
selected key staff of the Group.
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As at 27 March 2023
M2023F3 A27H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

CFN Lawyers in association with Broad & Bright

Broad & Bright Law Firm
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Chunlei
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi
Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga
Mr. Yutaka Komori
Mr. Gen Matsunobu
Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura (appointed on 11 September 2022)
Mr. Takeshi Shigemi
Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy
Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche
Mr. Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Zhao Xiongda
(The order is alphabetised by the last names
of the senior management members.)

REGISTERED OFFICE

21-23 Dai Shing Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11-13 Dai Shun Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION

Website: www.nissingroup.com.hk
Investor Relations Email: ir@nissinfoods.com.hk
Media Relations Email: pr@nissinfoods.com.hk
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@ Mr. Kiyotaka Ando RSB & 4£

Executive Director, Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer
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@ Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa B42RIE £ 4

Executive Director

WITES

© Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEIREE
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
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Executive Director
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Executive Director
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Independent Non-executive Director
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Mr. Masaru Takahashi S #88 %£4
Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFITES
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Independent Non-executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, aged 43, is Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for strategic
planning and managing the overall business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Ando joined the Group in March 2009 and has been
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ando
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University
in Japan in March 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ando worked
in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 2004 to December 2007. In
January 2008, Mr. Ando joined Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin
Japan”) and its subsidiaries (“Nissin Japan Group”) as the deputy
general manager of marketing division and is currently a managing
executive officer and chief representative, East Asia of Nissin Japan,
and a director of seven subsidiaries of Nissin Japan (non-executive in
nature).

In May 2021, Mr. Ando was appointed as a guest member of the
standing committee of Tier | Association and vice president of Tier
Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute of
Foods Science and Technology. In September 2021, Mr. Ando was
appointed as the chairman of the advisory committee, Nissin Foods
(Hong Kong) Charity Fund. Currently, he is a non-official member
of the Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food under
the Environment and Ecology Bureau (previously known as Food
and Health Bureau), the HKSAR Government; a director of School
Management Committee, Hong Kong Japanese School and Japanese
International School, Hong Kong; a member of the advisory board
of the Research Centre for Comparative Japanese Studies, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong; and an advisor to Our Hong Kong
Foundation.

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa, aged 63, is Executive Director. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing and managing overall research and development
functions of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fujinawa
joined Nissin Japan in 1982 with his last position being the executive
officer and deputy head of NISSIN Global Innovation Center of Nissin
Japan. Between April 2008 and March 2014, Mr. Fujinawa served as
deputy managing director of research and development division of
the Company. Mr. Fujinawa has extensive experience in the fields of
research and development related to food products. He obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Obihiro University of Agriculture
and Veterinary Medicine in Japan in March 1982. In May 2021, Mr.
Fujinawa was appointed as a member of the standing committee of
Tier Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute
of Foods Science and Technology.
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Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, aged 58, is Executive Director, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall finance functions of the Group. Mr. Tatsutani
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Osaka Prefecture
University in Japan in March 1987. Mr. Tatsutani has over 31 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Tatsutani joined Nissin
Japan in April 1987 and worked in accounting division until November
1996. From November 1996 to March 2002, Mr. Tatsutani was
assigned to Guangdong Shunde Nissin Food Co., Ltd.. From March
2002 to March 2008, Mr. Tatsutani was re-assigned to Nissin Japan
with his last position being manager in finance division. In March
2008, after re-joining the Group, Mr. Tatsutani has been a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is also a director of Nissin
Shanghai Food Safety Institute.

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka, aged 58, is Executive Director. He is
responsible for overseeing and managing operations of sales of
“NISSIN (H)%)" brand products in the PRC. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Kawasaka joined Nissin Japan in 1988 with his last position
being the assistant general manager in the marketing department
of Nissin Japan. Between 2007 and 2015, Mr. Kawasaka has been a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group for overseeing the sales
and marketing functions in the PRC. Mr. Kawasaka has extensive
experience in the fields of sales, marketing and management.
He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1988.

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada, aged 65, is Executive Director, and Chief
Production Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall production functions of the Group. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yamada obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Kobe University in Japan in March
1981. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yamada was the Chief Production
Officer of Nissin Japan, and oversaw its chilled and frozen foods,
confectionery and beverages businesses. Mr. Yamada joined Nissin
Japan in 1981 and has served in various positions in Nissin Japan.

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, aged 75, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017. Dr.
Matsumoto obtained a Bachelor degree of Medicine from the School
of Medicine of Keio University in Japan in March 1973 and further
obtained a Doctor of Medicine degree from the same University in
October 1981. From 1973 to 1984, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Keio
University with his last position being teaching assistant of the School
of Medicine. From 1980 to 1982, Dr. Matsumoto was employed by
National Hospital Organization Kanagawa Hospital as surgeon. From
1982 to 2005, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Fujita Health University with
his last position being the President of the Banbuntane Hotokukai
Hospital of Fujita Health University. After his departure from Fujita
Health University, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Tokyo Medical Center of
the National Hospital Organization between 2005 and 2014, with his
last position being the President.
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Dr. Matsumoto is currently a member of the Promotion of New
Strategy Expert Committee, a member of the Next-generation
Information and Communication Technology Council and an advisor
of Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare.

Mr. Masaru Takahashi, aged 70, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 July 2021. Mr. Takahashi
is currently a special advisor of CENXUS GROUP, a tax accounting
corporation in Japan since January 2018 and a non-executive director
of Fukui Computer Holdings Inc., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9790) since June 2018 and a non-executive
auditor of Mental Health Technologies Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (stock code: 9218) since March 2022.
Mr. Takahashi also served as a lecturer of the Graduate School of
Professional Accountancy of Meiji University since April 2020.

From October 1980 to December 2017, Mr. Takahashi worked in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Japan with his last position being a
partner and served as a specially-appointed professor in international
accounting in the Graduate School of Asia University in Japan from
April 2014 to March 2020. Mr. Takahashi obtained a Bachelor of
Law degree from Gakushu-in University in Japan in March 1976. He
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in Japan in 1984.

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano, aged 58, is Independent Non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017.
Professor Nakano obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton
College in 1987, a Master of Philosophy degree from Yale University in
the United States in 1990 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in 1998
from the same University. Since August 1995, Professor Nakano has
been working in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is currently
the chairman and a professor at the department of Japanese studies.

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai, aged 48, is Independent Non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 1 April 2020. He is currently an
associate professor of Physical Education of Keio University Institute in
Japan, a director of Japan Tennis Association and a deputy director of
Keio University Athletic Association in Japan. Mr. Sakai has extensive
experience in the sport coaching and management, specializing in
tennis. Mr. Sakai is a director of Kabushikikaisha Egg Ball (#f=\&
f# T YT 7R—)L), a limited liability company incorporated in Japan,
which is principally engaged in tennis coaching business. Mr. Sakai
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in political science from the Faculty of
Law of Keio University in Japan in March 1997, a Master's degree in
sports science from Waseda University in Japan in March 2007 and a
Doctoral’s degree from Keio University Graduate School of Media and
Governance from Keio University in Japan in February 2014.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Chunlei, aged 46, joined the Group in February 2014 and is
currently the acting general manager of Nissin Foods (China) Holdings
Company Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall
sales of the group in southern China. Mr. Gu graduated from Jiangxi
Open University in 1998, majoring in Finance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Gu worked in Dingyi Food Co., Ltd. and Jinmailang Foods
Co., Ltd.. He has extensive experience in food sales and marketing.

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, aged 49, is currently the general manager of
eastern and northern China, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall sales in eastern and northern China. Before this, he was the
chairman and managing director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited and a director of Winner Food Products Limited.
Mr. Hiroi obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Relations from
Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1996. Mr. Hiroi joined Nissin
Japan in April 1996 and worked in various roles in marketing and sales
function until March 2013. He joined the Group in March 2013 and
was assigned as a director of the Company until May 2015. From May
2015 to September 2019, he was the deputy managing director of
Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. He rejoined the Group in September
2019.

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga, aged 50, joined the Group in March 2014
and is currently deputy managing director of Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Company Limited and managing director of Kagome Nissin Foods
(H.K.) Co., Limited, responsible for overseeing the sales functions in
Hong Kong. Mr. Kikunaga is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the company. He joined Nissin Japan in April 1997 and performed
various sales and marketing positions in Nissin Japan until March
2014. Mr. Kikunaga obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
Aoyama Gakuin University in Japan in March 1997.

Mr. Yutaka Komori, aged 59, joined the Group in October 2019 and
is the chairman and general manager of Shanghai Eastpeak Trading
Co. Ltd. and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Komori was appointed as senior executive officer for sales in northern
China of the Group from March 2020 to March 2021, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in northern China region.
Before this, Mr. Komori was the deputy head of northern China
Business. Mr. Komori obtained a Bachelor of Law degree from
Waseda University in Japan in March 1986. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Komori worked in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 1986 to
September 2019, with his last position being the general manager
of overseas marketing group of Mitsubishi Shokuhin, a subsidiary of
Mitsubishi Corporation.
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Mr. Gen Matsunobu, aged 52, joined the Group in March 2010
and is currently managing director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products Limited and a director of Winner Food Products
Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall business
and operational matters. Before this, he was general manager of
marketing for Mainland China. Mr. Matsunobu graduated from
the Department of Biochemical Science and Technology, Faculty of
Agriculture, Kagoshima University in Japan in March 1994 and further
obtained a Master of Agriculture degree from the same University
in March 1996. From April 1996 to March 2010, Mr. Matsunobu
worked in Nissin Japan, with his last position being a supervisor in the
marketing division.

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura, aged 55, joined the Group in March 2020
is currently the general manager (China & Hong Kong production),
responsible for overseeing and managing overall production of the
Group. Before this, he was a general manager of Zhejiang Nissin
Foods Company Limited and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Matsuura graduated from Kochi University in Japan
majoring in Agronomic Chemistry in 1991. Mr. Matsuura joined Nissin
Japan in April 1991 and worked in various production plants. From
March 2012 to March 2016, he was appointed as a director of Nissin
Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd.. From March 2016 to March 2020, he was
appointed as a director of Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, aged 60, joined the Group in March 2014
and is currently director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Co., Ltd,
in charge of administration, public relations and business planning
functions. In March 2014 he was first appointed as senior executive
officer for sales in southern China of the Group, responsible for
overseeing and managing overall sales in southern China of the
Group. From April 2017 to March 2018, Mr. Shigemi was responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in eastern China of the
Group and his title was changed to senior executive officer for sales in
eastern China. He graduated from the Chinese language curriculum
of Kyoto Sangyo University in Japan in March 1985. He has nearly 26
years of experience in sales and marketing. From April 1985 to August
2013, Mr. Shigemi worked in Panasonic Corporation, with his last
position being head of the marketing division. From August 2013 to
March 2014, Mr. Shigemi was the manager of the marketing division
of Nissin Japan.

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy, aged 57, joined the Group since
September 2003. She is currently the general manager of quality
management department, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall quality management matters of the Group. Ms. Tang obtained
Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Quality Management
degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 and 1998
respectively. Ms. Tang was responsible for lab testing and quality
management work of edible oil factory and refinery under Hop Hing
Group during 1988-2003 before she joined the Group.
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Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy, aged 62, joined the Group in January 2008
and is currently the general manager of human resources department
(China and Hong Kong). Before this, Mr. Tse was a senior executive
officer for sales in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited (“Nissin
Foods HK"), responsible for overseeing and managing the sales
functions of Nissin Foods HK. Mr. Tse obtained an Honours Diploma
in Business Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University
(previously known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in November 1985
and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Open University of Hong Kong in June 2002. Mr. Tse has accumulated
34 years of experience in sales and marketing of consumable
products having previously worked under sales department in various
companies.

Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche, aged 51, joined the Group in
May 2018. She is currently the general manager of public relations
department, responsible for overseeing corporate affairs, media
relations, customer care centre, community relations, and internal
communication of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of
Social Sciences in Communication (Journalism) degree from the Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1994 and a Master of International and
Public Affairs degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2005. She
started her career as a court reporter and then spent five years in the
marketing of U.S. produce in Mainland China and Hong Kong. She
began serving as an in-house public relations professional in 2004,
and brings with her a wealth of experience from industries across
home appliances, payments, banking and NGO.

Mr. Xi Xiaotong, aged 55, joined the Group since December 2013
and is currently the general manager in southern China, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in southern China. Mr. Xi
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Nihon University in
Japan in March 1996. Before joining the Group, Mr. Xi had worked
in Nissin Japan since April 1996, and had been assigned to Shanghai
Nissin between 2001 and 2004 and between 2008 and 2009.

Mr. Zhao Xiongda, aged 53, joined the Group in February 2001.
He is currently the general manager for sales in western China of
the Group, responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales.
Mr. Zhao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in enterprise
management from Shanghai University of Engineering Science in July
1991. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Pepsi Cola,
US Campbell’s and other food manufacturing companies. He has
extensive experience in food sales and marketing.
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The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Board is of the
opinion that during the year, the Company had complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is currently the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business and
operations. Mr. Ando has been responsible for overall management
of the Group since 2009. The Board believes that the current structure
enables the Company to make and implement business decision swiftly
and effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers that the
balance of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the independent
non-executive directors. Further, the Audit Committee, which consists
exclusively of independent non-executive directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary.

In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

CULTURE

The Company upholds high standards of integrity, transparency,
and accountability in its business. It strives to foster a culture of
compliance, good corporate governance, and ethical behaviour with
its stakeholders to build trust and credibility.

“Peace will come to the world when there is enough food (& & tF)",
“Create foods to serve society (R &) &tt)”, “Eat wisely for beauty and
health (2B &)” and “Food related jobs are sacred profession (& &
EEE%)", the four tenets adopted by Mr. Momofuku Ando, the founder
of Nissin Japan, provide the basis for the Group’s philosophy and serve
as the abiding values of its foundation. The Board is committed to
developing a positive culture that is built on its core values to provide
guidance on employees' conduct and behaviours as well as the
business activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout the
Group's vision, mission, policies and business strategies.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.
To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company (the
“Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model Code, each
Director is required to notify the Chairman of the Board in writing and
obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or designated
director prior to any dealings in the Securities. Relevant employees
of the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in the Securities at any time when they possess inside
information.

THE BOARD

Board Composition
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions. The Chairman is responsible for formulating
business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
Meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information.
The Chairman also encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that it
acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, and they have disclosed to the Company
their commitments (eg. directorship) in other listed companies and
organisations as well as updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.
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During the year, the Board at all times has met the requirement of
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed their independence based on the guidelines
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considered them to be independent.

The Independent Non-executive Directors come from diverse business,
varied background and experience. Through the participation in the
Board Meetings and various Committee Meetings, the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment, extensive
experience and valuable contribution to the Board. The Board believes
that the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interests of the shareholders and the Group
as a whole.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. Following
mechanisms are adopted by the Board and reviewed annually by the
Board to ensure their effectiveness and the Board considered that the
mechanism was effective for the year under review:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors and must appoint Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Currently
there are four Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board, accounting for 44.4% of the Board.

2. On an annual basis, all Independent Non-executive Directors are
required to confirm in writing their compliance of independence
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules, and to disclose the
number and nature of offices held by them in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board meets with Independent Non-

executive Directors annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.
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THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control,
risk management and performances. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management including: (1)
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements
for the Board'’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek the independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with
various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction
of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfies
the corporate governance requirements with regard to the balance of
expertise, skills and experience as well as the ongoing development
and management of its business activities.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. At least 14 days' notice prior
to the date of regular Board Meeting is given to the Directors and
the agenda together with Board papers are normally sent to them at
least three days before the intended date of a Board Meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board Meeting for approval.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times
a year. The Board convened five meetings during the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Directors do not have any
material financial, business, family or other relationships among
members of the Board. Should a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter being considered at the Board Meeting, he or she
will abstain from voting and the Independent Non-executive Directors
will be present on dealing with such conflict of interest issues.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which specifies the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that the Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its business
strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and will
disclose in the corporate governance report about the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy on annual basis. The Board considered
that the Board Diversity Policy was effective for the year under review.

SUMMARY AND MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES OF THE BOARD DIVERSITY
POLICY

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity
of the Board from perspectives the composition of the Board from
diversified angles:

Gender Age Group
TR FieAa R

No. of Directors
EEAH BEEAH

No. of Directors

Female %% 41 —50

® Male B 51 —60
® 61—70

® 71—80

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the
composition and diversity of the Board on an annual basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness.
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The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and senior management levels and improve
the composition of the Board in order to develop a pipeline of
potential successors.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total workforce gender diversity
is approximately at 1:1 male to female ratio. The gender diversity
ratio for senior management is at 5:1 male to female ratio. The Group
will continue its endeavor to maintain female representation in its
workforce.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the members of the directors and senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

AR BN E ERER AL 4 4 4B BRER R B ER TH AR X B P
B (BRETEREEFGRSREEERA)
MERIZ TR TEEFTENAN  NIEREE
BT o

2022F 128310 - AEBREETHRZ T
It BB - SEEEBERZ T
Bl Es c REEBEES HRFZIEE
BIBEBHPHREME -

EEEgNEREEEMNE
HZE2022F12A831HIEFE  EERaRER
ABZHEBHESHINWOT ¢

T8

Number of Personnel

Emoluments B < AE
Nil to HK$2,000,000 E % 2,000,000 7T 16
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 87T & 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 T & 4,000,000 77T 3
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 7T & 8,000,000 47T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. The term of the service contract of each of Mr.
Kiyotaka Ando and Mr. Shinji Tatsutani is from 11 December 2020 to
30 June 2023; whereas the term of service agreement of each of Mr.
Toshimichi Fujinawa, Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka and Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada is
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Each of Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano has
respectively entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for the period from 11 December 2020 to 30 June 2023. Mr. Toshiaki
Sakai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023. Whereas Mr. Masaru
Takahashi has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for the period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Their service agreements and letters of appointment are subject to
the termination in accordance with the respective terms and may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and applicable Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all directors are required to
retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting.

BIE LTRSS+ NATHEZEERNAEH
BFALHE 2 E—THFBIR AT RSB
MERMFE12 %13 ¢

TEREESSE

BRTEBCHARRRGLRBEEH - ZHER
EERRAEREENRE A LR A20204F
12A11B%E2023F6A308 : MEERIBEAE -
JNIRAMAE LA RILBERBEENRBE S LR A
2021978 1HE 20246 A30H -

ARG KR EFE IR D BB EARREET
SRRk BARA2020F 12 A11HE 202356
A308 c RAFFEEDHERNRRFILEER -
BiMR A22020F4 A 1H®2023%F3A318m
ST AECEARNRGI M EE R - BIFR 52021
F7A1HE2024566 8308 -

WENRBE N REERARES BIHERT AR
1k AAREBAARBGEEA ([ABE1248
A1) MERN ETRIEERAR - REBEABERR
AR 2RERVARBRBEFASHFERE -
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By virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the directors
may appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either
to fill a vacancy or as an additional director, provided that the
appointment does not cause the number of directors to exceed any
number fixed as the maximum number of directors. A director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into
account in determining the directors who are to retire by rotation at
the meeting. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano and
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment of director(s), each new director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. The Company encourages the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), and corporate governance practices so that they can
continuously acquire their relevant knowledge and skills. Pursuant to
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, during the year, the Company
has organized a seminar conducted by qualified professionals and has
provided updates on the Group’s business, operations, and financial
information, as well as other information and briefings from time to
time to all Directors.
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The participation of each of the Directors in continuous professional
development (“CPD") during the year is summarized as follows:

BREENAFE2EBESERR ((HEFES
R eiEnstsan T

Participated in CPD Mete)

Directors BF SEARHEE IR (W)
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando TEOBRE L v/
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa PR FBITAE v/
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREE v/
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka )I\ﬂiﬂiﬁi v/
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada MRS E v/
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHBITEE

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto [NNAT S v/
Mr. Masaru Takahashi et E v/
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano B I THE v/
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RHFE L v/

Note: Attended a seminar arranged by the Company or read relevant materials. MisE - AR R Z PR €k BERRM R -

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS” LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1.

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board has performed the above duties.

EEREEASER
ARTERECEEDTHHEE RS RETE
R EARRTEH  AEFRERABLZIE
BORRRE  ZRRREBESER -

—

HERBRTARBA ZEEERRRRE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”)
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Dr.
Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Masaru Takahashi. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
have concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
expertise and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities and assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and recommend, amongst its other duties, to the
Board retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy. The nomination of
candidate(s) is made in accordance with certain selection criteria:
(a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment and experience; (c)
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; and
(d) diversity in all aspects including but not limited to professional
experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length of service,
in assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship.
The relevant procedures are set out in nomination policy for the
Nomination Committee to follow subject to provisions in the Articles
of Association and applicable Listing Rules. The Board recognizes
the need for appointment or re-election of directors, the following
nomination procedures should be followed:
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(@)  The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

(b)  The Nomination Committee shall identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships.

() The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

(d)  The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-election of directors and
succession planning for directors.

(e)  Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting.

(f)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters in respect
of the recommendation of candidates to stand for election or
reelection at any general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board on
21 November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code and the majority
of the members of the Remuneration Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all Directors’ remuneration, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/ her own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual
adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and be determined at the discretion of the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka
Ando, Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Masaru Takahashi. Mr. Masaru
Takahashi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
to review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for directors’ and senior management’s remuneration.

The Board has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy. It aims to set
out the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure
that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified
Directors who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its
strategic objective and contribute to the Company’s performance and
sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a balanced and
competitive remuneration. Such policy will be reviewed and updated
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The directors’ remuneration package is determined with reference to
a matrix of factors including the individual performance, qualification
and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing market practices.
No Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

Details of emoluments paid to each Director are set out in Note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems, review of the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the relationship with external auditor of the Company
(including but not limited to making recommendation to the Board
on appointment and/ or removal of external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of that external auditor,
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards), and overseeing the corporate governance
and compliance matters. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, Mr. Masaru Takahashi and
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Masaru Takahashi is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.
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During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held to review
the Group’s financial results including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such financial statements.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
them to be effective and adequate.

FRN - BRZZEGCRETEREE  FHAEE
MBS - BIEEZE2021F 12 A31BIEFE
MEFEENEE2022F6 A308IE~EAZ
PHIEBRFRRERTEERES  UERZSUG
WER 2 TEMY -

EnZBaNcAEENEREE M ABIEE
R BRIEETREN  XRBZFERTRENR
B -

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year are
set out below:

EFEEREEE %ﬁ
ERFRAFELEFFE
BERFAR 2 RSHIIT

Meetings attended/held
E,er/é—g Enﬁa
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
5xe FhEEg FMEEg RE%ZEg RER
Directors B=x = & eF gF BERE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando RRIBR LA 5/5 - 212 17 11
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BN mEE 5/5 - - - 11
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAERSGE 5/5 - - - 11
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka IIﬂiﬂifEi 5/5 - - - 171
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada BSR4 5/5 - - - 171
Independent BUHNTEE
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto ARG 5/5 4/4 212 17 il
Mr. Masaru Takahashi L1yt 5/5 4/4 212 1 il
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano A 5 T ##% 5/5 3/4 - - 171
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RIFIEEE 4/5 - - - 11
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT & RIZE
The Board has entire responsibility to ensure the integrity of the EFORBARRRAKES BRI LA
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and the effective systems of BB IR R RN B e mﬁﬂ&}fiﬁ

risk management and internal control are in place.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in
annual report, interim report, inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Board, supporting by the finance functions of the Group,
is responsible for overseeing the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Directors ensure that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed to prepare the financial statements with appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates and ensure the financial
statements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The management has provided sufficient explanation and information
of the Group’s financial, operational performance as well as business
development and also with management accounts and monthly
updates to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the Group's performance, financial position and
Group'’s prospects to enable the Board and each Director to discharge
their duties. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group recognises that the independence of an external auditor
is a fundamental governance principle. External auditor provides
the Board and shareholders an objective assurance on whether
the financial statements fairly represent the financial position and
performance of the Group in all material aspects.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out on pages 85 to 90 in
the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5
core stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation,
() risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e) risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the
following risk responses:

- Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable

based on Group's risk appetite, and therefore no action is
considered necessary.
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- Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and actions
such as controls have to be taken to reduce the impact and
vulnerability to an acceptable level.

- Sharing: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and the Group
itself cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptably low
level, therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or
shared with other parties by insurance, outsourcing, etc.

- Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure,
both internally and externally, to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level or involve unreasonably high costs to reduce
the risk to an acceptable level. Therefore, activities giving rise to
risks should be avoided.

The Group has adopted the COSO ERM Framework, the “Top-Down”
approach, in establishing its risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Taskforce and various departments within the Group.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s business objectives. The Board has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in overseeing
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and conduct independent annual reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Risk Management Taskforce, which consists of key management
staff, is to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems and ensures that
sufficient resources are allocated to maintain the adequacy and
effectiveness of such systems within the Group in order to reduce the
risks or potential risks to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s
objectives.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its operation, ensuring that appropriate
internal controls for effective risk management are implemented
and any significant internal control deficiency is reported to the Risk
Management Taskforce timely for prompt mitigation action.

At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies
risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives. The identified risks are then assessed and prioritised
according to a set of standard criteria. For significant risks, mitigation
plans are designed and managed by corresponding risk owners. The
report on risk management and internal control is submitted to the
Board and the Audit Committee annually.
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In addition, the Internal Audit Department (“IAD") assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in evaluating the internal controls and
management procedures of the Group. For any deficiencies in the
design and implementation of internal controls, recommendations
for improvement will be made to the management. Significant
deficiencies are reported to the Board and the Audit Committee
on a timely basis ensuring remedial actions are taken promptly. The
internal audit department submits an annual report with a summary
of findings and recommendations to the Board and the Audit
Committee.

Business Ethics

The Group upholds its values of integrity and fosters trust with our
business partners and stakeholders by maintaining good corporate
governance. When it comes to any part of the Group’s operations,
the Company has zero tolerance approach for all kind of bribery,
fraud, and corruption. On top of complying with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has Code of Conduct and policies for all
employees to carry out their responsibilities honestly and ethically.
Nissin Foods maintains good governance in all facets of its operations,
upholding high standards of ethics, accountability, openness, probity,
and transparency.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing, detecting, and reporting to
any levels of bribery and corruption. The Board has adopted an anti-
corruption policy of the Company (the “Anti-corruption Policy”) to
provide principles for all directors, officers, and employees at all levels
of the Company, its subsidiaries, and joint ventures or companies in
which the Company holds a controlling interest to follow in order
to conduct business honestly and lower the likelihood of corruption
and bribery. The Group conducts periodic and systematic fraud
risk assessments to mitigate fraud risks identified internally and
externally. The Anti-corruption Policy further stipulates that offering
and accepting of any gift are strictly prohibited since it will affect
employee’s neutrality when conducting business, act against the
interest of Nissin Foods, or raise suspicions of impropriety. Proper
trainings and briefings on bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest,
money laundering, financing of terrorism and non-compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance will be provided to all employees.

All potential frauds will be investigated by IAD. Relevant advice from
in-house or external legal counsel will be obtained where appropriate.
IAD will report material breaches of this policy to the Board at least
annually. The details to be reported include all material fraud and any
fraud committed by employees which could impact the integrity and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls system, the number
of fraud cases reported, the nature of important investigations and
the results of these investigations. The Board will be responsible for
monitoring the fraud ultimately.
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Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy of the Company (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) to provide guidance on the procedure of
reporting allegations of fraud and misconduct by directors, officers
and employees at all levels of the Company and its subsidiaries and
stakeholders. All whistleblowing reports and the identity of the
whistleblower are treated in strict confidence with the procedures
set out in the Whistleblowing Policy. The matter raised may be
investigated internally and referred to the Audit Committee or
management committee, or referred to external lawyers or auditors.

Once the investigation is completed, a report including the impact
of the matter reported and an action plan will be prepared by the
Group’s Compliance Committee. The responsible line management
will decide on any necessary disciplinary and other actions, after that,
the Compliance Committee will review and make a recommendation
to the management for a final decision on the actions required. The
whistleblowers will be informed the final results of the investigation in
writing.

Review of the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

During the year, the Board performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group based on the requirement of Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code. The coverage of the review includes but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s review
on risk management and internal control systems; the result of
internal audit work with consideration and management responses
on major findings; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board regarding the result of the risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. External independent
professional consultants will be engaged if the Board considers it
necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a formal policy on engaging non-audit
services from its independent auditor to ensure that the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor would not be impaired by its
provision of any non-audit services to the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was set out as follows:

2B =

ARRIEHIEENRE - RIEB L AZBENRHIE
BRRY  UWRERINEZBEM TSR/ AREE
HEMERZREMIEE LB R ZEILE -

REBEER - BN EAEE « BERS G160
T2 T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered Frig IR 75 BTN E R
HK$'000

FHBT

Audit services = ERTE 4,824
Non-audit services IEZER 626
Total HET 5,450

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has implemented procedures and internal control for
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has in
place the inside information policy which sets out the guidelines and
procedures for directors and certain employees who, because of their
office or position in the Company may from time to time encounter
inside information (as defined in the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), to ensure that
they understand the principles underlying the obligations in order to
comply with the disclosure requirements so that inside information is
handled with prudence and disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. The Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential before the information
is disclosed to the public. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading,
or false or misleading through omission of a material fact with a view
of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external
services provider. Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary in March 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with over 30 years
of experience in the field of company secretarial services. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management
Company Limited, who is responsible for overseeing and managing
overall business planning, public relations and administration and
compliance matters of the Company, is the primary contact person of
the Company with Mr. Lo.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure shareholders and the investment community to have equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information and allow
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings as well as the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s official websites.

The Board and management maintain a continuing dialogue with
the shareholders and other stakeholders through various channels
including but not limited to the Company’s general meetings. The
Company encourages shareholders to attend general meeting which
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. During the year, an annual general meeting of the Company
was held to pass resolutions which are significant to the operations
and business of the Company.

To facilitate timely and effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.nissingroup.com.hk) where
information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

The implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy was reviewed by the Board during the year.
The Board considered the current channels would be sufficient for the
Company to communicate with the shareholders. Thus, the policy was
considered as effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 55 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting,
and extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on such
requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitionists,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance. If at any time there are
not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors capable of acting to
form a quorum, any Director or any two or more members of the
Company representing at least 10.0% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings, may convene
an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors.
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Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the general
meeting.

Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing not
less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution or business to be
dealt with at the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow the
requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting.

Voting by poll
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Sending enquiries to the Board by shareholders
Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and concern to the
Board at the Company’s headquarters at 11-13 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The management of the Company is committed to meeting with
shareholders, institutional investors, research analysts and financial
media regularly and providing timely updates on the financial and
business performance and recent development. Investors are welcome
to direct their enquiries to the Company’s Investor Relations Department
at ir@nissinfoods.com.hk. A dedicated Investor Relations section is
also available on the Company’s website (www.nissingroup.com.hk).
Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Investors and analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, telephone
conferences, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums will be conducted from time
to time in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community. In 2022, the Company
conducted more than 91 meetings (2021: 133 meetings) with over
211 institutional investors (2021: 260 institutional investors) and
research analysts in Hong Kong and elsewhere. During the year, the
Company was covered by 8 investment banks and securities firms
(2021: 11 investment banks and securities firms) to encourage mutual
communication with the investment community.
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Major Investor Relations Events in Financial Year 2022

022 EEFEREERBEEE

2022 Event

2022 & SEE

Q1 Post Result Non-Deal Roadshow (“NDR")
F—F KIEBKE

Post Result NDR
KIEBKE

Post Result NDR
KIEBRWAE

Post Result NDR
EL 30

Post Result NDR
HERKE

Post Result NDR
HIEBKA

Post Result NDR
HIEBKAE

Q2 Daiwa China Conference 2022 (Virtual Meetings)
Fo=E AP EEE (EE)

Q3 CMBI Consumer Staples Virtual Corporate Day
EF=F HRIRERE F VB EEH

CGS-CIMB HK/China Consumer Expert meeting
CGS-CIMB HK/China Consumer Expert meeting

Post Result NDR
HIEBR

Post Result NDR
KRERE

Post Result NDR
KRERE

Post Result NDR
HRERE

Organiser Location
Bt E o B
Daiwa Hong Kong
R BB
DBS Hong Kong
ER B
First Shanghai Hong Kong
FE—LF B
CMBI Hong Kong
R IR B BB
Nomura Hong Kong
ES N B
CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
R — EE S B
Okasan Hong Kong
= B
Daiwa Hong Kong
ARH e
CMBI Hong Kong
FRIREIRE T
CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
R — BEES e
Daiwa Hong Kong
RH e
CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
HOH — B S ES e
DBS Hong Kong
ER e
Guoyuan Hong Kong
Eib e
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2022 Event
2022 F EE

Post Result NDR
FIEBKE

Post Result NDR
E T3

CGS-CIMB Consumer Virtual Conference 2022
CGS-CIMB Consumer Virtual Conference 2022

Q4 Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong
EE Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong

CGS-CIMB & CGI 2nd Annual China
Consumption Virtual Corporate Day
ORI Bk B 2 rp B RO 8 5 BN 58 — &

HETEERSES

Shareholders are also encouraged to access the corporate
communication posted on the Company’s website for better
understanding of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company has published the Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the vyear,
there was no change in the Company’s constitutional document.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EE 8RS

The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
instant noodles and is the vehicle holding interest of its subsidiaries,
whereas the Group is engaged in manufacturing and sales of
noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products and snacks,
vegetable products, and provision of publicity services in Hong Kong
and China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Analysis of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 91 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such a goal.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1 January
2019, which provides the guiding principles and procedures for
making decisions on dividend payment. In deciding whether to
propose dividends, and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia: (i) the Group’s unappropriated
profits/ earnings and the impact on the Group’s long-term earning
capacity; (ii) the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (iii) any other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Articles of Association. The dividend policy will
be reviewed periodically and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and regulatory requirements. There is no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 15.16 HK
cents per share in cash to the shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2022, which will not be subject to any withholding tax in
Hong Kong. The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 9 June 2023. Upon approval, the proposed final dividend
will be distributed on 30 June 2023 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 20 June 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators are
set out in the sections headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five-year Financial Summary of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of risks and uncertainties faced by the Group may affect its
performance, business operations or future prospects. Some of these
are inherent to the specific circumstances of the Group, and some are
from external threats or challenges. Significant risks are summarised
below.

(i) Food Safety Risk

The Group’s success depends on its branding and reputation and
consumers’ recognition and trust in its products. Food safety is the
Group’s lifeblood. Food safety incidents may damage its reputation
and cause a loss of consumers’ trust in its products. The profitability
of the Group may be impacted as a result.

As a food manufacturer, the Group places high emphasis on food
safety and quality management to ensure the health and safety of its
customers. Therefore, the food production plants of the Group are
all certified under ISO 22000, an international standard for quality
management systems. In addition, the Fujian Plant, Shunde Plant,
Hong Kong Nissin Plant and Hong Kong Winner Plant are certified
under FSSC 22000, an international standard that incorporates
food defence approaches, reflecting the Group’s commitment to a
high standard of food safety. To further promote product safety, the
Shunde Plant has adopted the HACCP system to identify hazardous
substances and reduce risk on production.

The Group has also applied rigorous analysis and inspections on
raw materials and products. The Food Safety Evaluation & Research
Institute Co., Ltd. (the “Institute”) located in Shanghai, Mainland
China, in which the Group owns a 5% stake, provides technical
support to the Group to perform quality inspections in each stage of
production, from raw materials to products. The Institute is accredited
by the PRC National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
with ISO/IEC 17025.

(ii) Labour Supply Risk

Due to keen competition in the labour markets in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the ability to retain experienced and competent
production workers is one of the critical success factors for the Group.
Control over the turnover rate will minimise training and recruitment
costs and reduce the impact on business expansion plans.
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Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. As part of the
measures to mitigate the labour supply risk, the Group will continue
to enhance production automation to improve efficiencies and reduce
reliance on manual labour. The Group will continue improving working
conditions and launching engagement programs to increase employee
loyalty.

(iii) Supply Chain Management Risk
On top of the challenges on the supply chain due to the pandemic,
geopolitical and macroeconomic issues have created supply issues,
resulting in a sharp increase in commodity prices. These issues posed
further challenges to the Group’s operations.

The Group has been making the greatest efforts to maintain a stable
supply of our products to customers through multiple mitigation
measures.

(iv) Business Competition Risk

There is an increasing number of competitors and products, both
local and foreign brands, targeting different customer segments.
The Company may face challenges in the market, which in turn may
impact its profitability and return on investment.

The Group’s success partly depends on its ability to anticipate, identify
and react to changes in consumers’ tastes, preferences, perceptions,
income, lifestyle and health awareness and promptly offer new
products that appeal to the consumers. Its ability to continue
distinguishing its products from its competitors is also one of the keys
to success.

The Group continues to enhance its brand recognition and awareness
among various customer segments through multi-faceted marketing
strategies.

(v) Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Given the ever-changing global social and economic environment,
there might be a greater likelihood for the Group to face challenging
changes in governmental policies/regulatory requirements in the
normal course of business.

Public Health

Governmental policies and protocols for addressing the pandemic may
significantly impact the operations and performance of the Group's
business. However, lax rules and guidelines are expected and continue
to come, which will be favourable for the Group’s regular operation.

Trade (and tariff) Policies

The increasing uncertainty over the political environment and
evolving changes in trade policies may limit the Group’s operational
effectiveness. By engaging external counsels to provide regular
updates, legal guidance and regular staff training, the Group will
continue to ensure all Group practices comply with relevant laws and
regulations.
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(vi) Climate and ESG

There has been a growing concern about Environment, Social, and
Governance (ESG) issues and their disclosure from stakeholders. In
addition, with the increasing climate-related problems, identifying and
mitigating significant climate issues are becoming more crucial for
business operations. The Group will continue to emphasise ESG issues
and monitor climate change to reduce risks and seek opportunities.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Relationship with Customers and Consumers

Establishing and maintaining strong and stable business relationships
with customers and consumers is a top priority for the Group. It
achieves this through its unwavering commitment to providing safe,
delicious, unique and trendy products. The Group also stays connected
with customers and consumers through marketing tools like the
Company’s website, promotions, marketing materials and incentives,
and social media to keep abreast of the changing consumer
preferences.

Relationship with Distributors

The Group has developed a strong distribution network, enabling
it to maintain a leading position in the market. To maintain a long-
term and stable business relationship with its distributors, the Group
enters into distribution agreements with its major distributors. The
distributors place purchase orders from time to time that typically set
out the types, prices and quantities of products purchased.

Relationship with Suppliers

Most of the raw materials purchased by the Group are sourced from
independent third-party suppliers, both domestically and overseas. To
avoid relying too heavily on any one supplier, the Group uses different
suppliers for each type of raw material for its operations in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Meanwhile, the Group obtains certain raw
materials, such as a soup base, seasoning and condiments from Nissin
Japan, with the belief that they have better quality control and that
some of the raw materials are unique. The Group also carefully selects
its suppliers by evaluating their overall track record, financial strengths,
reliability, competitiveness, supply stability, quality control measures,
pricing and logistics arrangements. It also closely communicates with
and monitors its suppliers and requires them to provide food safety
certificates for their supply of raw materials.

Relationship with Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has a total of 3,511 employees in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. For sustainable business development,
the Group spares no effort in recruiting talented professionals. It also
provides continuing education and training programmes to employees
to improve their skills and develop their potential. The Group believes
that the working environment and the support and benefits provided
to the employees have contributed to maintaining good working
relationships.
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In Hong Kong, the Group provides mandatory provident fund
entitlements to its employees. For its companies located in Mainland
China, the Group contributes funds to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan organised by relevant government authorities
on a monthly basis, based on a certain percentage of employees'
salaries.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 December 2017 (the
“Listing Date”). The total proceeds from the Listing involving the
issue of 268,580,000 ordinary shares of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$950.8 million. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had fully utilised the net proceeds according to the
proposed applications of the proceeds set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Details
of the use of proceeds are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT TREASURY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held unlisted structured
notes in an aggregate fair value of US$26.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$204.2 million) (“Structured Notes”) issued by a
financial institution in Hong Kong. The Structured Notes are interest-
rate linked instrument with enhanced interest rates which accrues
interest based on accrual interest rate, and can be extended and
rolled over on a monthly basis unless the Group exercises the right to
redeem the Structured Notes on maturity date. The Structured Notes
carried interest ranging from 1.05% to 4.32% per annum during
the year (2021: ranging from 0.24% to 0.55%), and represented
approximately 4.5% of the total assets of the Group as at 31
December 2022. The purchases of the Structured Notes were funded
by internal resources of the Group as a cash management tool in
order to utilise surplus fund to generate income and were conducted
in accordance with the Company’s established treasury policy to
enhance returns for its shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments of
individual fair value of 5% or above of the Group’s total assets during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 59.3% (2021: 59.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue and the largest customer accounted for 20.4% (2021:
21.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 25.1% (2021: 22.1%) of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier accounted for 8.7% (2021: 6.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases.
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None of the Directors, their respective associates, or any of the
existing shareholders who, to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, has
a beneficial interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of
the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$217.7 million, and property, plant and equipment with
carrying values of HK$16.5 million were disposed.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company bought back a total of 4,099,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$26.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 156.4 million)
at price ranging from HK$6.17 to HK$6.50 per share. The particulars
of the buyback are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserve at 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$528.6 million (2021: HK$454.0 million) which
represented retained profits of the Company as at that date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani,
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano and Mr. Toshiaki Sakai will retire from
office as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for specific term. All Directors are also
subject to the retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
any interest or short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

RRGBzHA

Name of Directors

BEENA

Kiyotaka Ando
7B

Toshimichi Fujinawa
EAR A

Shinji Tatsutani
RAEIR

Kazuo Kawasaka

NERANAE

Yasuhiro Yamada
I AS#

Toshiaki Sakai
RHFE
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Beneficial owner
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Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Beneficial owner

BEHRBEAA

BRAA
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18,859,480' 1.81%
716,380° 0.07%
1,101,000? 0.10%
73,1203 0.01%
70,630° 0.01%
53,7102 0.01%
12,4503 0.00%
25,000 0.00%



Long position in the Shares of associated corporation

EA O

namely HE B MIEEBIFIKE, as a nominee of the respective Director.

RIEESEBRD 22
Name of associated
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature
BEAR HREAE B 1,/ M8
Kiyotaka Ando Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
LB BB BERBEAA
Toshimichi Fujinawa Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
PRAETE BB BERBEAA
Shinji Tatsutani Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
RAER BB BERBEAA
Kazuo Kawasaka Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
JISRFN A& BB BERBEAA
Yasuhiro Yamada Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
L A5 BB BEREAA
Notes: MiE
1. These shares are held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando directly in his personal 1.
name.
Mrs. Aina Ando is the spouse of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. By virtue of the 2.
SFO, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Mrs. Aina Ando is interested or deemed to be interested under
the SFO.
These shares are the shares granted by the Company pursuant to the 3.
Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Among 10,030 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, 4.
10,000 shares were held directly by him and 30 shares were held by a
director share ownership association, namely B3 & @& B4 E, as a
nominee of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando.
These shares were held by an employee share ownership association, 5.

Number of Shares Percentage
held/interested of interest
BT/ P A IR (D 8B EmAt
10,0304 0.01%

1,311° 0.00%

1,884° 0.00%

4,200 0.00%

789° 0.00%
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Aina AndoZ + R &L BB EEWER - RIE
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B fn S2EDET B H 2 Bt -

Mz BB K £ H5A 210,030 % BB A A1)
- 10,000 B0 IR B IR R 30D M
EEREHERERMRERKE (FRLZHE
BEEZRBA) KA -

ZERMARTHEBE IERMIEEEFKE
(ERBEFZREBAN) A -
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme"”)
was adopted by the Company on 7 March 2016 (the “Adoption
Date”).

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise the
contribution of certain selected employees (including but not limited
to directors, executives, officers and other employees, whether full-
time or part-time, of any members of our Group) and to provide the
employees with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group.

Eligible participants

Participants include any employee, including without limitation, the
director, executive, officer and other employees, whether full-time or
part-time, of any member of the Group from time to time.

Term

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective from the Adoption Date for a term of 10 years. The
remaining life of Scheme is approximately 2 years 11 months as at the
date of this annual report.

Grant and acceptance

Subject to the terms of the Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may, from time to time, grant awards to any eligible participant who
the Board considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

To satisfy the awards, the Company may transfer to the trustee the
necessary funds and instruct the trustee to acquire Shares through on-
market transactions at the prevailing market price.

Vesting

The awarded Shares and related income shall be vested in the selected
employee at no cost to such selected employee on the vesting date
subject to the terms of the Scheme and the following conditions:

(@) fulfilment of such vesting conditions (if any) as specified by the
Board in the offer letter issued by the Company to the selected
employee up to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board;

(b)  the selected employee remaining under the employment of
any member of the Group up to and including the vesting date
and no notice of termination of employment of such selected
employee is subsisting as at such date; and

() the execution by the selected employee of the relevant
documents to effect the transfer of the awarded Shares and the
related income from the trustee to the selected employee within
the stipulated period.
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Maximum number of Shares to be awarded

The Board shall not make any further award in any given financial year
which will result in the total number of the awarded Shares awarded
and approved by the Board, without taking into account the awarded
Shares that are rejected by a selected employee or which have lapsed,
under the Scheme, to be in excess of 5% of the number of all issued
shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date or Listing Date or the
beginning of such financial year of the Company, whichever is the
highest.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% per cent of the
number of all issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date
or Listing Date or the beginning of the financial year of the Company,
whichever is the highest, when the relevant award is made.

Amount payable on acceptance of the award
Nil consideration is required to be paid by the eligible participants for
the grant of awards under the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 301,310 Shares,
representing 0.029% of the Company’s total number of issued shares
as at 1 January 2022, were awarded to selected employees (including
the Executive Directors) pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Details of movement of shares awarded during the year are as follows:

R RO BE LR

i E =G MEAEE M RFEEE - PR HERR
B - MG EHMEE SN %810 TR L Ait/ER
RER B (T RZTEETREEREEE
ERNORRRMNIERBHERBRD) BBAR
BIPERAN A Bk BT A S AR R Rl R IR R A HA
ZEHEBITRM Z5% CARSERE) - AIT
BERE -

REBEZE A —REETRE EBNES BN
2B N AE R SRR B NS B R A B #isk
mHBRK AR R RFEEVH2 M BTN
NZSERE) Z1% °

BEERBASZIHRIE
AEBDEEEZTRRO S E TR LA
BV ASRAE -

RELE2022F 12 A31 BIEFE - IREBERD B
FTE] - A#£301,310 K H (HEREZ2022F
1ATEARREBITRMAEZ0.029%) B
FRETFREE (BIERTES) o
FRREBROHOEEFBOT

Number of awarded shares

BitiknE A
Vesting Outstanding as at Granted during Vested during ~ Cancelled/lapsed  Outstanding as at
Grantees Date of grant date 1Jan 2022 the year the year during the year 31 Dec 2022
R202F R2022F
) ) 1A1H ‘ 12A318
EEA Bt A H HEAH EARTTEE ERFL FREE  FREIE/ AR EARTTEE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando 30/6/2022 30/6/2022 - 81,110 (81,110) - -
RHREELA 101102022 10/10/2022 = 76,560 (76,560) - -
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa 30/6/2022 30/6/2022 - 10,480 (10,480) -
BENBEE 101102022 10/10/2022 - 9,180 (9,180) - -
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani 30/6/2022 30/6/2022 - 6,880 (6,880) -
RAERSEE 101102022 10/10/2022 - 6,720 (6,720) - -
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka 30/6/2022 30/6/2022 - 11,880 (11,880) -
JIRAAEEE 10/102022 101012022 - 6,720 (6,720) - -
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada 30/6/2022 30/6/2022 - 2,270 (2,270) -
LR EE 10/10/2022 10/10/2022 - 7,910 (7,910) - -
Employees 31/3/2022 31/3/2022 - 81,600 (81,600) - -
{3
Total #5t 301,310 (301,310) -
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Notes:

a. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date the award
shares were granted on 31 March 2022, 30 June 2022 and 10 October
2022 was HK$5.489 per Share, HK$5.24 per Share and HK$6.22 per
Share respectively.

b. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
vesting date was HK$5.489 per Share, HK$5.24 per Share and HK$6.22
per Share respectively.

C The award shares were awarded and vested to grantees at no
consideration and without any performance target.

d. The estimated fair values of the award Shares granted on 31 March
2022, 30 June 2022 and 10 October 2022 was are approximately
HK$445,000, HK$591,000 and HK$659,000 respectively. The fair value
of the award Shares granted is measured with reference to the closing
price of the Shares at the grant date.

e. For the accounting standard and policy adopted, please refer to Note 3.2
to the consolidated financial statements on of this annual report.

f. In respect of the Share Award Scheme, the number of share awards
available for grant under the Scheme was 52,389,524 Shares as at 1
January 2022 and 52,184,574 Shares as at 31 December 2022.

g. The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of award Shares
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022
divided by the weighted average number of the Shares in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is nil as the award Shares are satisfied by
on-market purchase of existing Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have any competing interests directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group which require to be disclosed as defined in
the Listing Rules during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL AND OTHERS SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as known to any Directors, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the Shares

RBRGzEFRE
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature
P& ER 278 H1n,/ME
Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
HBERAR BERBEAA

Interest of controlled
corporations
I EE R

China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited
MERSEEER
(BB ) ZERBRAR]

* These interests represented:

(i) 61,683,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Multi-Strategy
Master Fund. China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund was 100%
controlled by China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund and the latter itself was
98.3% controlled by China Orient International Fund Management
Limited (“China Orient International”). China Orient International was
100% controlled by China Orient Asset Management (International)
Holding Limited (“China Orient Asset Management”). Accordingly, as
at 31 December 2022, China Orient Asset Management, China Orient
International and China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund were all deemed to
be interested in the same batch of 61,683,000 shares held directly by
China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund; and

(i) 22,045,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Enhanced Income
Fund which was 100% controlled by China Orient International. China
Orient International was 100% controlled by China Orient Asset
Management. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2022, China Orient Asset
Management and China Orient International were both deemed to be
interested in the same batch of 22,045,000 shares held directly by China
Orient Enhanced Income Fund.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Shares itself are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations are regulated by Hong Kong
and the PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
in Hong Kong and the PRC. In particular, as a food and beverage
manufacturer, the Group’s operations are regulated by the food safety
and environmental protection laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

Number of Shares Percentage
held/interested of interest

Fis /P AR #E EEADL
752,024,000 72.05%
83,728,000* 8.02%

* Sk TiE

(i)  61,683,0000% A% 3 73 fChina Orient Multi-
Strategy Master Fund & # #5 A ° China Orient
Multi-Strategy Master Fund B8 China Orient Multi-
Strategy Fund¥% 1 100% : &% 4 & Bl i China
Orient International Fund Management Limited
([ China Orient International ]) #5%198.3% ° China
Orient International B R Bl 3R 75 & & & 12 (&
B ERERAR ((HERFEEER]) 156
100% ° UL - 7202212 A31H - REERH
& E & 3 - China Orient International } China
Orient Multi-Strategy Fund3J # 2 % 5 China
Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund Fff & £ # 8 #
[F—#£61,683,000 BRI EAER - &

(ii) 22,045,000 8% A% 15 J5 e China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund #3548 - 1M China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund 8/ China Orient International 122l
100% ° China Orient International fi B & 5 &
FEETEEEH100% o Fitt - 720224124318 -
fh B 5 5 & & & 3 M China Orient International
B8 A China Orient Enhanced Income Fund
FTE B KR —H#t 22,045,000 BRI 5 %5 #

25 o
fm

BT EERER

AEELEEHARAZEARTREMBAR®E
7 MARRBRGRBERAT LT - AEBEES
BBENFBEIEEBRE - HZE2022F 12 A31H1E
FERBEAFRAH  ARRAEETREER
FEBERNFEEBERERER - ABME -
EARREREER ASEEEIEBRTH
CERTEERRREZRERRE - REBEF
B ARETETRNEREERBEEENIERZ
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Award Scheme disclosed in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

Nissin Japan (the controlling shareholder of the Company) has entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated
21 November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) pursuant to
Nissin Japan irrevocably undertaken, among other matters, not to,
directly or indirectly sell any of its instant noodles, frozen foods,
snack and confectionery products to Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Macau and Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group Territory) which would or may
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition have been set out in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholder” in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 29 November 2017. The Company has received the
confirmation from Nissin Japan in respect of their compliance with the
terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year; and (ii) there is no contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES B ARES

The following Directors have served on the Board of subsidiaries of IATEER 2022512 A31 REAAATIREA
the Company as at 31 December 2022: AIESE

Place/Country

Name of Subsidiaries of Incorporation and Operation
ipEENCIEE SRR S A 2 B R Name of Directors EEME
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZEEERE
HERm (8%) BRAF B Takeshi Kikunaga B oK fiE
Tse Chi Ping, Roy HEF
Keiji Iwakiri E=37)] =
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando TR
Company Limited B Toshimichi Fujinawa BEABTE
HEEMm (8%) EBBRAH Shinji Tatsutani RBER
Yasuhiro Yamada L AN
Takeshi Shigemi ZEES
Takakazu Yamada LR ZER
Hirofumi Inoue F EEX
Hiromichi Kimura VIVREGEE]
Tse Chi Ping, Roy HEF
Nissin Koikeya Foods (China & HK) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando AR
Co., Limited a5 Takashi Koike N ZE
(“Nissin Koikeya Foods") Naomichi Fujimaki EE Sl
HEPBE (FE « ) BRAF Keiji lwakiri E=37)]:
(TEEHEERS D Takeshi Kikunaga ki
Hiromichi Kimura VIVREZEE]
Winner Food Products Limited Hong Kong Lau Wing Leung Max Bl 3
XERMARAF B Kiyotaka Ando ZHEaE
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Yasuhiro Yamada IR AS#
Katsunori Hiroi EFH Al
Toshimichi Fujinawa BRI
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZEBE
Limited B Masamune Komori INEREUR
BEEEEBRAR Shinji Tatsutani [RAEER
Yutaka Komori NERFE
Wataru Mori FON4
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Name of Subsidiaries

MBARRTE

Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,
Limited
AIREHBRR (BHE) BRAA

Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited
ERBRERRANT

ValleyFarm Holdings Limited
BREAERER AR

Place/Country

of Incorporation and Operation

FEM AR S R AR i BB R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
e

Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited Hong Kong

HERE{TARAA

Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co.,
Limited*
RERm (FE) REBRAA

Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company
Limited*
MIHERmMABERAR]

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co. Ltd.*
ERIEEBBREMERAR

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

HE

Mainland China
R

Mainland China
RN

Mainland China
IR

BRMBRAE

Name of Directors

Kiyotaka Ando
Takeshi Kikunaga
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Keiji Iwakiri
Hiromichi Kimura
Yoshihide Watanabe
Norio Izutsu

Hideaki Tsuruda

Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Hiromichi Kimura

Yasuhiro Yamada
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Takeshi Kikunaga
Kozo Nagura

Takakazu Yamada
Shinji Tatsutani
Yasuhiro Yamada

Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Shinji Tatsutani
Xi Xiaotong

Gen Matsunobu
Yutaka Komori
Katsunori Hiroi
Zhao Xiongda
Gu Chunlei

Liu Jing

Kiyotaka Ando
Tetsuo Hanazono
Yasuhiro Yamada
Shinji Tatsutani
Kazuo Kawasaka

Kiyotaka Ando
Yasuhiro Yamada
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Takayuki Yagi
Masashi Imazu
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Place/Country

Name of Subsidiaries of Incorporation and Operation
i) NGIEE FEA S A 2 ER Name of Directors e
Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Mainland China Katsunori Hiroi EH A
Products Limited* FR A Kiyotaka Ando THEERE
HEMmeEEXERMAMRAT Shinji Tatsutani [RAER
Takakazu Yamada LI ZAD
Shunsuke Teranishi FEEN
Yasuhiro Yamada L #5548
Toshimichi Fujinawa =3 Pkl
Dongguan Nissin Packaging Co. Ltd.* Mainland China Yasuhiro Yamada L A58
SZRBEBEBRATF FRE A Toshiaki Miyagawa 2= G:
Kiyotaka Ando TR
Takakazu Yamada 1L FH 22 AN
Fujian Nissin Foods Co. Ltd.* Mainland China Kiyotaka Ando TR
BEBERGERATA B A i Fung Kam Shing Barry R AK
Yasuhiro Yamada LS
Shinji Tatsutani REBER
Kiyoshi Matsuura ER
Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company Mainland China Toshimichi Fujinawa BEAB A
Limited* AR A3 Kiyotaka Ando LB
KEREERERAT Yasuhiro Yamada L A ASE
Takakazu Yamada e
Atsushi Matsuura LVNEE
Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.* Mainland China Yutaka Komori NERFE
L EEIEZESERAT M A Kiyotaka Ando TR
Kazuo Kawasaka JNIRFNAE
Hiromichi Kimura ARHHhE
* For identification purpose only

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every directors shall be entitled
to the indemnity out of the assets of the Company against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance. Such permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2022 and remains in force
at the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The directors’ remuneration policy of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
performance, qualification and experience of directors concerned and
prevailing market practices.

EHESFZHERX

BB EHERMANI IR FHEBEF ZBRT -
BRESHEERE S RARB 2 AR ELH
EFRDETHRMBRZIWERE  REARRE
EREERE - fREEFZBEKIERER
2022F 12 A3 BIEFEAER - WHAFH A A
—EXEM-

i B L R

AAREEZHHERAFNZESZEIAAE
ZERB - EEMEERERMRITHHEH TR

.
iE °
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, donation made to a
charitable fund amounted to HK$100,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has policies to promote environmental protection. In
order to reduce environmental impacts at every stage of its business
activities, the Group adopts a wide range of policies to control
pollutant emissions, encourage recycling of office supplies, use water
saving facilities, and ensure compliance with environmental laws and
regulations both in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

The Environment, Social and Governance Report covering the same
period is available together with this Annual Report on the websites
of both the Company (www.nissingroup.com.hk) and the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company entered into
a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. We set out below
details of the connected transaction for our Group, in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 10 November 2022, Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd. (“Nissin
Foods China”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Zhuhai Western Development Co entered into the equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Nissin Foods China acquired 29.55%
equity interest (the “Acquisition”) in Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products (“Zhuhai Winner"”) through the public sale on
Guangdong United Asset and Equity Exchange (“GUAEX") at a cash
consideration of RMB352,440,500 (the “Consideration”). Zhuhai
Western Development Co is a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of
Zhuhai Winner. The Consideration represents the successful bid price
submitted by Nissin Foods China at the public sale on GUAEX, which
was also the minimum bid price offered for sale on GUAEX. The Board
is of the view that the Acquisition allows the Company to consolidate
its control over Zhuhai Winner which is an integral part of the Group’s
operation in Mainland China, and allows greater flexibility to deploy
the Group's production capabilities in Mainland China to respond to
market demand and the changing business environment, which will
in turn increase the overall income and profitability of the Group.
Completion of the Acquisition took place on 28 November 2022. With
effective from the completion date, Zhuhai Winner became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2022, MCMS is owned as to 81% by the
Company and as to 19% by Mitsubishi Corporation. Based on
the financial statements of MCMS for the latest three financial
years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021, the total assets,
profits and revenue of MCMS compared to that of the Group are
less than 10% under the percentage ratios for each of the latest
three financial years. Accordingly, MCMS will be regarded as an
insignificant subsidiary of the Company under 14A.09 of the Listing
Rules, and Mitsubishi Corporation is no longer a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
four master agreements with Mitsubishi Group (i.e., MCHK Master
Procurement Agreement, MCHK Master Supply Agreement, Mitsubishi
Master Supply Agreement and MS Master Procurement Agreement)
in the previous year are exempt from annual review and are not
disclosed in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Company shall re-comply with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the Group’s transactions with
Mitsubishi should MCMS ceases to be an insignificant subsidiary of
the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules required to be disclosed in this annual report.
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Transaction
Transaction Agreement Connected parties involved Nature of Relationship Annual caps amount in 2022
#2022
R 5 R BER BERILE EELR ZR5EHE
HK$million HK$million
BEAT BEAT
Technology and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 28.0 18.2
Trademark Licencing
Agreement (e
B R AR PR
(i)
Snacks Supply Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 32.0 24.8
Agreement ot owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder
TRftERE HEHLER MR HLE (miERRRESS
45.12% #t) BB 34.0%
Em 22 EMBAR
Snacks and Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 98.0 37.7
Confectionery owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Purchase Agreement Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
(Note 3) as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder
TARFETRERE HEFLER MR HHE (hERRRESL
(H1£3) 45.12% #) BB 34.0%
Em 22 EMBAR
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Transaction Agreement Connected parties involved Nature of Relationship
Rtk R BER RS
Master Raw Materials and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder

Products Procurement
Agreement (ote

RMHMERERRELTRE  RBERR ERIRER
(Hize)
Master Raw Materials Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder

and Products Sale
Agreement (ote)

BHHRERHFEQHZ RERXK ERIRER
(Hizs)

Master Quality Control Food Safety Evaluation & Subsidiary of Controlling
Support Service Research Institute Co., Shareholder
Agreement (et Ltd.

ESERTRRBERE  Food Safety Fvaluation e ) VN
(HE6) & Research Institute

Co., Ltd.

Research Service Master Nissin Japan Controlling shareholder
Agreement ote”)

B IR B e HERXK ERRE

Notes: ik -

The Company entered into the Technology and Trademark Licencing
Agreement with Nissin Japan on 21 November 2017, pursuant to which
Nissin Japan granted:

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain technology
and trademarks (the “Nissin Trademarks and Technology”) in
our business in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Taiwan (i.e. the HK
Group Territory) and export of its products bearing and/or using
the Nissin Trademarks and Technology; and

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain trademarks (the
“Nissin Koikeya Trademarks”) in distribution of products bearing
the Nissin Koikeya Trademarks in the HK Group Territory.

The term of the Technology and Trademark Licencing Agreement is three
years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be automatically
renewable for further terms of three years upon expiry subject to
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless and until
terminated upon the breach of any undertakings in any material respect
by the Group or otherwise mutually terminated by the parties in writing
at least 90 days in advance.
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On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Technology
and Trademark Licencing Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2023. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December
2022.

On 21 November 2017, the Company has entered into a snacks supply
agreement (the “Snacks Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya
Foods, the connected subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to supply potato chips products to Nissin Koikeya Foods for its
onward sales. The term of the Snacks Supply Agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for
further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks Supply
Agreement does not contain any provision which allows either the
Company or Nissin Koikeya Foods to terminate the agreement during its
term. The Directors consider that it would be more cost-efficient in the
long run to produce the potato chips products on its own and it would
ensure a more stable supply of quality products.

On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Snacks Supply
Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

Nissin Foods HK has entered into an agreement (the “Snacks and
Confectionery Purchase Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods on
21 November 2017 to govern the sales and purchase of snacks and
confectionery. The term of the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase
Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon
expiry for further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The
Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement does not contain any
provision which allows either Nissin Foods HK or Nissin Koikeya Foods to
terminate the agreement during its term. The transactions contemplated
under the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement are intra-
group connected transactions. Before the incorporation of Nissin Foods
HK in August 2015, the Company has been performing the sales
function within the Group and it has a long term and direct business
relationship with its distributors in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.
After the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK, it has taken up the sales
function within the Group.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Snacks and
Confectionary Purchase Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.
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The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on
21 November 2017. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years
subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during
its term. The raw materials supplied under the Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement include seasoning, oil, addictive,
flour, milk etc. The Company mainly sources such raw materials through
the Nissin Japan Group in order to gain access to the suppliers in Japan
more efficiently and to benefit from the lower procurement cost when
purchases are made together with the Nissin Japan Group at a larger
volume. While the Company is able to source the raw materials from
Independent Third Parties in Japan or elsewhere, and believes it would
not be as cost-efficient when compared to the current arrangement to
procure through the Nissin Japan Group. The finished goods purchased
under the Master Raw Materials and Products Procurement Agreement
mainly include Japanese noodles products as well as confectionery
products. The Company considers that it is beneficial to the Group as a
whole to purchase the finished goods from the Nissin Japan Group for
its onward sale to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the
PRC whom it has built a long term relationship with.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement for a further term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2023. On 27 March 2023,
the board approved the revision of the annual caps for 2023, 2024
and 2025 from HK$186.0 million, HK$190.0 million and HK$193.0
million to HK$228.0 million, HK$289.0 million and HK$354.0 million,
respectively, in view of the revised purchase forecast. As one or more
of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules) in respect of the revised annual caps is 5% or above,
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the revised annual caps are
subject to independent shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM
to be held on 9 June 2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2022 and 27
March 2023.
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On 21 November 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement”)
with Nissin Japan to govern the supply of raw materials and finished
goods by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group. The raw materials
supplied by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include seasoning
powder and packaging materials and the finished goods supplied by
the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include instant noodles and potato
chips products. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Sale Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January 2017 and
is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years subject to the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed
by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement
does not contain any provision which allows either the Company or
Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during its term. For the sale
of raw materials, the Group can enjoy a lower purchasing cost by way
of bulk purchases and the resale to the Nissin Japan Group would
enhance better use of the raw materials. For the sale of finished goods,
the Company considers that the sale is conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and the terms of sale to the Nissin
Japan Group are similar to those that entered into with other distributors
who are Independent Third Parties.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Product Sale Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. On 27 March 2023, the Group
adjusted the annual caps for 2023, 2024 and 2025 from HK$184.0
million, HK$188.0 million and HK$192.0 million to HK$266.0 million,
HK$342.0 million and HK$405.0 million, respectively, in view of the
revised sales forecast. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of
the revised annual caps is 5% or above, pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, the revised annual caps are subject to independent
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM to be held on 9 June
2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 13 December 2022 and 27 March 2023.

To govern the provision of food safety tests by the Nissin Shanghai Food
Safety Institute to the Group, the Company has entered into a master
quality control support service agreement (the “Master Quality Control
Support Service Agreement”) on 21 November 2017 with the Nissin
Shanghai Food Safety Institute. While it can engage other Independent
Third Parties to conduct the food safety tests, the Company believes
that it is more cost-efficient to engage the Nissin Shanghai Food Safety
Institute to provide such services as it has good experience in the food
safety of instant foods products and it provides quality services. Also, it
can provide the service at a more favourable rate than other Independent
Third Parties providing similar services. The term of the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement is three years commencing from 1
January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three
years subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Quality Control
Support Service Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Shanghai Food Safety Institute to terminate
the agreement during its term.
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On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Research Service
Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 19 March 2020. Pursuant
to the terms of the Research Service Master Agreement, the Group
shall provide research services to Nissin Japan which include, but not
limited to, researching raw materials, facilities and suppliers in the PRC
to enhance the research and development capability of Nissin Japan.
The Company believes that the entering of the agreement will enable
the Group to better utilize its existing business resources to expand its
source of income. Further, the provision of the research services will
enhance the overall research and development capability of Nissin Japan,
which may in turn benefit the Group as the Group is able to leverage on
Nissin Japan’s research and development advancement. The term of the
Research Service Master Agreement is for three years commenced from
the 1 April 2020 and shall be automatically renewed on the same terms
and conditions for further terms of three years upon its expiry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed between the parties.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Research Service
Master Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that
each of the transactions has been entered into:

@

(ii)

(ii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
and was conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and
and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The auditor of the Company has reviewed and issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions:

0] have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(iii)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.

The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions set out above.

The Directors (including the independent Non-executive Directors)
have reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing
connected transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other
continuing connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted
under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions
are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as independent auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2022. A resolution will be proposed to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kiyotaka Ando
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1% 3.7 1% S B ¥ 25

To the Members of Nissin Foods Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Deloitte

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 227, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Revenue recognition from sales of goods

We identified revenue
recognition from sales of
goods as a key audit matter
due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The
Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2022
in respect of sales of goods
amounted to approximately
HK$4,018,789,000.

As disclosed in note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, for sales of
goods (including noodles,
retort foods, frozen foods,
beverage products, snacks
and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has
transferred. We focused
on this area because of
the Group transacts with a
large number of customers
in particular distributors
spreading over different
locations in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from sales of goods
included:

Obtaining an understanding of
the revenue recognition processes
and testing the Group’'s key
controls over revenue recognition;

Inspecting sales contracts with
key customers, on a sample
basis, to understand the agreed
trade terms and assess whether
the related revenue was properly
recognised in accordance
with respective sales contracts
and with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

Confirming amounts of total
sales of goods for the year with
selected customers, on a sample
basis; and

Testing recorded sales transactions
on a sample basis against
corresponding goods delivery
notes, shipping documents and/
or acceptance confirmations
from customers that evidenced
control of the goods have been
transferred.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan, Alan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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CUNS[]LIDATEIJ STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INC[]IVIE

p AT =

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

inORRRHMPAIAZ

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B TR FHET
Revenue WA 5 4,024,980 3,866,335
Cost of sales HERA (2,730,373) (2,639,016)
Gross profit EM 1,294,607 1,227,319
Other income HUA 7 63,266 33,711
Selling and distribution costs $HE K 3 SRR (533,572) (492,025)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (293,565) (277,837)
Impairment losses recognised under TREEEEEERIA THER
expected credit loss model, net of reversal ~ JR{EEE - HEREE (718) 261
Other expenses Hibhx (33,997) (35,167)
Other gains and losses Hit ks K g8 8 (26,857) (14,321)
Finance costs BATE RS 9 (259) (365)
Profit before taxation B 75 B A 468,905 441,576
Income tax expense S X 10 (119,989) (102,341)
Profit for the year F R A 11 348,916 339,235
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hitt2H (i) Wi
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~ B#t @ B S E 1R 2
to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on translation ~ EHUEBINEBEL 2
of foreign operations PEH =% (221,001) 67,025
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEBAEE 127,915 406,260
Profit for the year attributable to: I TALTEIEFERRF
Owners of the Company PA/NSIEZS DN 316,519 303,821
Non-controlling interests FEEHIE RS 32,397 35,414
348,916 339,235
Total comprehensive income for the year IATATEEFERZE
attributable to: NI
Owners of the Company RRBEEB A 107,673 366,944
Non-controlling interests SEYERHIIEME S 20,242 39,316
127,915 406,260
Earnings per share BREH] 15
— Basic (HK cents) — ER (B 30.32 28.74
— Diluted (HK cents) - B (B 30.32 28.74
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | —ZZE = Z=F F 3}
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
imO IR ER

At 31 December 2022
M2022F12 31 H

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHT FHIT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MRS 16 1,580,304 1,625,369
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 186,398 207,510
Goodwill EkS 18 63,108 65,239
Intangible assets B EE 19 31,454 42,170
Interest in an associate REFE AR 2 B 20 116 116
Financial assets at fair value through RATEFAERZERERE
profit or loss 21 34,371 37,210
Deferred tax assets IREFIIEE &= 22 57,041 62,511
Loan receivable FEUE K 23 274 821
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEMZE - BB KAk
plant and equipment Fifiie® 34,322 22,057
Time deposits with maturity over one year ~ —4F A EE#FHR 28 78,364 85,616
Rental deposits HERI® 26 1,789 2,051
2,067,541 2,150,670
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories Ea s 24 431,610 464,999
Trade receivables H Z IR 26 426,835 475,382
Bond receivables e (EH 25 - 37,087
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HAMEWFIE - FENFIERILE 26 85,661 87,288
Loan receivable JEUE TR 23 547 547
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEUE AR A B FRIE 27 4,174 3,511
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B ES VNG E S 27 34,582 32,504
Tax recoverable AT EIREIE 12,698 -
Financial assets at fair value through BRATVEFABRZZCHEE
profit or loss 21 204,239 198,985
Time deposits with maturity over =18 A A LB R —F E H
three months but not exceeding one year 173X 28 17,763 17,642
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEED 28 1,249,460 1,790,954
2,467,569 3,108,899

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



2022 2021
2022 F 20214
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
hE=s FET T
Current Liabilities =R
Trade payables 2 S EMANRR 29 179,942 270,227
Other payables and accruals HEihENZIB N ETEA 29 653,197 712,383
Amount due to ultimate holding company & ER AR A RIFIR 27 33,808 35,144
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FESTR R BT A RIFRIE 27 3,623 7,199
Lease liabilities HEBRE 30 6,249 5,576
Tax liabilities HIEEE 37,588 29,482
Deferred income EIEUA 31 2,826 423
917,233 1,060,434
Net Current Assets REEEFE 1,550,336 2,048,465
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERRBAEE 3,617,877 4,199,135
Capital and Reserves ERR#EE
Share capital A 32 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves & 577,489 1,009,198
Equity attributable to owners RAFHRE ANEGERER
of the Company 3,518,930 3,950,639
Non-controlling interests eI S 25,773 165,622
Total Equity EREH 3,544,703 4,116,261
Non-current Liabilities E15 =R
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBA G 22 53,655 56,270
Lease liabilities HEAaE 30 2,126 5,636
Deferred income RIEYA 31 17,393 20,968
73,174 82,874
3,617,877 4,199,135

FNENTBEZHREUBRREESTZHN 2023
FIF27 AHEREET BT HATATRES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 227 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: -
KIYOTAKA ANDO SHINJI TATSUTANI
RBEBIE RABER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

inOilgm

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12 A3 BILFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

inolEmEENE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

Notes:

According to the articles of association and board resolution of
subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
10% of the profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, were transferred to general reserve
funds under “PRC statutory reserve”. The transfers to such reserves
must be made before the distribution of a dividend to equity owners of
those subsidiaries until the aggregated amounts have reached 50% of
their registered capitals. These reserves should only be used for making
up losses, capitalisation into capital and expansion of production and
operation.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
issued by the Company, and the aggregate of (1) the share capital of
Winner Food Products Limited (“Winner Food”) and (2) the retained
earnings of Winner Food, net of non-controlling interests, prior to the
original acquisition of Winner Food by Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd.,
the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company, in 1989,
arising from group reorganisation on 1 January 2014.

On 22 December 2014, the Company further acquired 26% interest
in Winner Food from the non-controlling shareholder for a cash
consideration of HK$129,453,000. The difference between the cash
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net assets attributable
to the additional interest in Winner Food acquired from the non-
controlling shareholder of HK$14,403,000 is credited to “other reserve”.
Upon completion of this acquisition, Winner Food became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company acquired
additional interests in certain subsidiaries, including MC Marketing
& Sales (Hong Kong) Limited and Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products Limited, from their non-controlling shareholders. The
differences between the cash considerations paid and the carrying
amounts of the net assets attributable to the additional interests
acquired from the non-controlling shareholders of HK$332,767,000 are
debited to “other reserve”.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= O\ Ay sy —1
GolREna®
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F 12 A31BIEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation Fr A E A 468,905 441,576
Adjustments for: TEE -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A BB 6,424 6,775
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREBETE
equipment 28,011 28,443
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 15,722 15,355
Equity-settled share-based payment LA A B AR BERS X 1,697 1,431
Fair value changes on financial assets BEAFEFAEBEENEHEEATE
at fair value through profit or loss 28 2,839 618
Finance costs TSR 259 365
Government grant related to acquisition BB B E 2 BT RS
of assets (1,345) (948)
Impairment losses recognised in respect B Z EWFIEER R REEE -
of trade receivables, net of reversal R E 718 (261)
Impairment losses on property, plant and W - BE R&E 2R EEE
equipment 7,027 -
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EE RERE 3,270 -
Interest income FLEYA (19,331) (16,751)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREE2EE
equipment 569 17,156
Operating cash flows before movement EEBSEIRI o LERENRE
in working capital 514,765 493,759
Decrease in inventories FEED 131,776 38,016
Decreased in trade receivables H 5 AR FOR 27,103 40,305
Decrease in other receivables, E At FEUCHIE  TBRRIE RIS
prepayments and deposits 408 11,625
Increase in amounts due from fellow FEUR [F) BT 88 A B FRIBIE
subsidiaries (2,078) (16,864)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B SRR Ofid) 120 (80,411) 32,294
Decrease in other payables and accruals ot R 5008 K fEET B AR (26,381) (21,837)
Decrease in amount due to ultimate JES AR A B R IE R
holding company (609) (1,811)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FERRIRMB AR FIELG M CRid) &
fellow subsidiaries (3,576) 3,484
Cash generated from operations EEE RS 560,997 578,971
Income taxes paid EANIZIEST (114,843) (128,454)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&ZTHEE2HEFE 446,154 450,517
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=7\ Ay sy —1
GolREnExE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F 12 A31BIEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FERT FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Placement of time deposits with maturity ~ FHREIEIEA=EAL LY
of more than three months TFEFR (67,675) (251,413)
Placement of time deposits with maturity ~ FHREIHIBA—FUA 2
of more than one year TE BT R - (85,616)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B - BE K& (237,595) (262,941)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W B AR 2R 58
a subsidiary 36 - (48,894)
Advance to ultimate holding company Bl Sl /NETE=E (4,174) (3,511)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATES AERD
through profit or loss CEEAE - (5,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE REE
plant and equipment Fr5 538 6,328 1,710
Withdrawal of time deposits with maturity  IREREIBIE A=A EZ
of more than three months TEBTFR 61,795 736,401
Interest received [=E AR 18,286 12,711
Government grant in related to acquisiton DU E BEUREE A E 2 BT RE
of assets received 3,483 1,675
Repayment from ultimate holding company S A RIE K 3,356 3,816
Placement of rental deposits FREEZS (1,262) (2,363)
Loan repaid BEEEX 547 547
Investment in government bond REBFES - (36,952)
Redemption of government bond f& B E T 5 34,771 -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING  #®R&5TE (FTH) FiEz
ACTIVITIES ReRHE (182,140) 60,170
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
Buy-back of own shares BB FRH (25,988) (156,380)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company AR FEE AZKE (182,333) (150,142)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2/t 3FIEFIMEERR Z I E (82,906) (39,806)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEaEEN (8,118) (8,347)
Repayment of borrowing BIERER - (3,140)
Share purchased from secondary market i B EIB TN AE TS
under share award scheme BEMRN (1,664) (1,474)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEEBERNE (259) (365)
Acquisition of addition interests in WEEIER BB A RIS MER
non-wholly owned subsidiaries (408,279) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHTACREFHE
ACTIVITIES (709,547) (359,654)

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RERRESEZEY OBD) BmFEHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (445,533) 151,033
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE NEERESEH I FE
RATES CHANGES (95,961) 32,674
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZESRBESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,790,954 1,607,247
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND REXRZHER
OF THE YEAR, ReEEY
represented by bank balances and cash IASRTT#EER R IR & DI 1,249,460 1,790,954
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Nissin Foods Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan with its
shares listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 21-23 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, and 11-13
Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products,
snacks and vegetable products, and provision of research and
publicity services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

Amendments to HKFRSs

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
imO IR IRERMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS
3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The Group has applied the amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition date was on
or after 1 January 2022. The amendments update a
reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so that
it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework"”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010
issued in October 2010), add a requirement that, for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination and add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in
a business combination.

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS

2.3

16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments specify that the
costs of any item that were produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance with
applicable standards. The cost of the items are measured
in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy retrospectively to
property, plant and equipment made available for use on
or after the beginning of 1 January 2021. The application
of the amendments in the current year has had no impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments specify that,
when an entity assesses whether a contract is onerous in
accordance with HKAS 37, the unavoidable costs under a
contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and
any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil
it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental costs
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts (e.g. an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

2.4 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 —
2020
The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The annual improvements make
amendments to the following standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per
cent” test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or the lender on the
other’s behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged as at the date of initial application,
1 January 2022.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the
requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude
taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a
biological asset using a present value technique.

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to

HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 1and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2021)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities
as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

0] the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
for leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities
are assessed on a net basis.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (cantinued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(continuea)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual reporting
period beginning on 1 January 2023. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities which are subject to the amendments amounted to
HK$8,063,000 and HK$8,375,000 respectively. The cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments will be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant
cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date
is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions
of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) — Int
21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

SEVMBRRREEERE
EEeHE (8)

3.2

TEEHEE (F)
REEHXEENE (F)

EBEEG

XBH-—BELHREE  BERBA
S2YRAR/AEBLENEREX
BRMEL TR - AR THF RS
BELBEMNENBER  AIRAE
BIF SEARLEREE  MEX
RELGETER T FRAMAGNAE
N REFBEELRLMNENAEKR
BERARABRRFERREHANT
BEARAREHOER T RAIER
REBFFEEL B LR NIERR ©

Wi E B RAWREAR - £5A 0
EERERATESE  MatET
ERARBMBREE  ARERK
BHSRREAEAELNABERASE
RIBWEEE RIEHIEITHRER
Wi AR FEARE - BRKRERHX
R—PRINE RS R 2 AR ©

MUEREA 20221 A1 B 2%
WEBAHME - TR HRIEE
MAEEERENARA 201846 A%
2018 4 81 7 A R B2 HE 48 ([
SER]) PEERABNTESE
BREAGTERE 375k ES (H
BB mERELZES) REF 211 %
HREHZHREN  ANEBRBES
GETERIE 37 E B (BB B 755k
ERBLZEY) REFE21 MRS
ERUEREREBEHPERENE
& AAREERTHER -



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continueq)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below);

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continueq)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment in an associate (continueq)

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Investment in an associate (continueq)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to customers to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed to
date (i.e. service contracts in which the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided), the Group
recognises revenue in an amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such
as sales rebate, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount
of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(@  revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled (therefore, revenue would not
be recognised for the products expected to be
returned/exchanged);

(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and

(¢) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) for its right to recover products from
customers and are presented as right to refunded
goods assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception or modification date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As
a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..vT = EMBHRREEEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEERAEA (&)
Right-of-use assets EREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FEREEENKABLE

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any indirect costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimated costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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N(]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise prices of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..vT = EMBHRREEEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment; or

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continueaq)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Leases (continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets. A lease modification is required by interest rate
benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these conditions
are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform;
and

° the new basis for determining the lease payments
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e.
the basis immediately preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease
modifications required by interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the applicable requirements in HKFRS
16 (see the accounting policy above) to account for all
lease modifications made at the same time, including
those required by interest rate benchmark reform.
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HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. When
a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share awards granted to employees (including directors of
the Company)
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share award reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share award reserve.
For the share awards that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share awards granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When shares awards are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount
accumulated in shares held for share award scheme will
be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Taxation (continuea)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continuea)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management including costs of
testing whether the related assets is foretiening properly
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Sale
proceeds of items that are produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the asset is functioning
properly), and the related costs of producing those items
are recognised in the profit or loss. The cost of those
items are measured in accordance with the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continuec)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

SEVMBRRREEERE
EEHBUR (&)
32 FEGHEE (&)

¥ BERRE (&)

HAEE R BIE L RIEFEHDER
ZHEEREDNR  2BRERTF
R LA A FELIINEE L
HERFEHOMOR - WEEFREER
FEol - MAEELERNEETB
ARRERIN R TEREEE] - WK
EBEENIFRER TR Mok &I
s SEOR  IBENESBEAY

FERGFAERFH - LEREM
HEERA (ERIZRIN) BFIER
BERER - ST ERFH - Rk
BELRFEEINSHEHRRT - M
EA[FEH 2 FERAHELEA

W% - BERRERENHEXES
HEEREET S RAREEMNE
BRRIERERR - I3 - B RRHEIR R
RIS mERES 2 e REE
DEERHEMSHRAREREER
EEZZ5 YR BENFER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | —ZZE = Z=F F 3}

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible asset acquired separately

An intangible asset with finite useful life that is
acquired separately and carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continueq)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

SEVMBRRREEERE
EEeHE (8)
32 FEGHEE (&)

REFEE (BEKFI) 2B E
(%)

WEE (KBREELEMN) <A KE
ERAFSENERAEE  RIKEE
(FBRELEM) 2FAERAEE
HA @288 - phoRBEIRAIE— B
HEENSERCELBUNOEEE
KMACEEE  AEEELR—E
MRpMReELBUEEE (B2
DEREZAREEFTEUNEREE
HEHEEEEMKREE) BZAR
SEEBUMNAIKEESE - HERE
EBEE - REBEEELOMR - IR
BEABE2REE (MER) 2
BRIEEMNARBEERAESRSE
EBUANREAIDEREEMEE -
BEREETEREENQFERD
ERA (At &) - £ AEE (WA
EE) RE2&RRE - RTTOREE
EZREBRESERRLINEEE
AHEMEESRSELEMAN -
R ER R RN R B2 AR o

BREBEERRERD  BE (KD
EABURReELBMAR) 2k
EEEAFAEEEFTR G ARE
B8 HEENRZREENEREE
(FReELFNRBELEMA
) LA TE 6 5 3 S SR R (B S 1R B
[RIEEE 2 RmEE - BIER BRI A
RN NER ©



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..vT = EMBHRREEEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions (continuea)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising
from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to
be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability
and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision
is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the reporting period in which the change in probability
occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where
no reliable estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) LZEMBHRREXUEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEHBGR (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Financial instruments (continueq))

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contract with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ﬁ? éﬂ#ﬁi&%#ﬁ%%&& F
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinves) EEHBGR (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

142

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

0] Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“"ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivable, amounts due from ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, bond receivables, time deposits
with maturity over three months, time deposits with
maturity over one year and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
which are in trade nature. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. The amounts due from subsidiaries which are
in trade nature are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq))
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

@

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq))

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq))

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq))

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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N(]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq))
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..vT = BB RRFEHEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinved) EEeHE (8)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETEBE (&)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and amounts due to ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these changes
by updating the effective interest rate, such change in
effective interest rate normally has no significant effect
on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or
financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zantinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
(continued)
A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform
if and only if, both these conditions are met:

o the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis (ie the basis immediately preceding the
change).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zontinuez)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

A transaction classified as asset acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired
100% interest in Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited at
a cash consideration of HK$48,900,000. Ming Fong Packaging
& Chemicals Limited holds a portfolio of plants and machineries
and a right-of-use of the land and leasehold property which are
all located in Hong Kong.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test in
accordance with HKFRS 3 and concluded that:

(i)  the land and building components of each office unit,
together with the in-place leases, are considered a single
identifiable asset; and

(i) the group of property, plants and equipments is a group
of similar identifiable assets because the assets are similar
in nature and risks associated with managing and creating
outputs are not significantly different.

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets (excluding cash and cash
equivalents) acquired is concentrated in a group of similar
identifiable assets and concluded that the acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F 12 A31BIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zontinuez)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision of
discount rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$63,108,000 (2021: HK$65,239,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s financial assets
are measured at fair value with fair value being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. See note 38(c) for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature

Trade receivables with significant balances and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature are assessed for
ECL individually. In addition, for trade receivables which are
individually insignificant or when the Group does not have
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort to measure ECL on individual basis,
collective assessment is performed by grouping debtors based
on the Group’s internal credit ratings.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature are
disclosed in notes 38(b), 26 and 27 respectively.
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5. REVENUE . AN
a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with a) XRBEEFEHNBANSIF
customers
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2022%12831H 2021124318
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Hong Kong China
(as defined (as defined (as defined (as defined
in Note 6) in Note 6) Total in Note 6) in Note 6) Total
£ HE R &k HEl A,
(E&AME6) (EHEME6) @t | (ExRNEe) (ExRME6) &t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TERL TAL THL THL
Types of goods and services ~ ERKRHEER
Sales of goods HEBR 1,571,682 2,447,107 4,018,789 1,462,614 2,396,525 3,859,139
Others e} 3,481 2,710 6,191 3,541 3,655 7,196
Total by 1,575,163 2,449,817 4,024,980 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335
Timing of revenue WA
recognition
A pointin time H-BE% 1,572,139 2,449,817 4,021,956 1,462,614 2,400,180 3,862,794
Over time —BERER 3,024 - 3,024 3,541 - 3,541
Total st 1,575,163 2,449,817 4,024,980 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335

Note: Others mainly include revenue from sales of scrap noodle and

provision of research and publicity services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F 12 A31BIEFE

B.  REVENUE (zantinueq) b, WA (&)

156

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

For sales of goods (including noodles, retort foods, frozen
foods, beverage products, snacks and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when (i) the goods have been loaded
on board for export sales; or (ii) the goods have been
delivered to the customers’ specific location for local sales
and the Group received acceptance confirmations from
customers. Upon the relevant goods are loaded on board
for export sales or delivered to the customers’ specific
location for local sales, the customers have full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, and have the primary responsibility for selling the
goods and bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60
days upon invoice issued.

The amount of consideration the Group receives and
revenue the Group recognises varies with changes in sales
rebates the Group offers to the customers. The Group
estimates the sales rebates based on analysis of historical
experience, and adjusts for the most likely amount of
consideration to be received. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated rebates which is estimated based
on experience. Revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. A refund liability (included in other payables and
accruals) is recognised for expected rebates to customers
in relation to sales made at the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales rebates are payable on demand from customers.
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b.

REVENUE (zantinued)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time) (continueaq)

Under the Group’'s standard contract terms, certain
customers have a right to exchange for expiry products
without limitation of time period. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of exchange on portfolio level using the expected value
method. Revenue is recognised for sales which are
considered highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognise will not occur. Based
on accumulated experience, the management considers
the amount of goods returned as immaterial due to large
volume of revenue with low value of each good sold.
Therefore, the probability of significant reversal in revenue
in relation to sales return in the future is remote.

Provision of research and publicity services
(revenue recognised over time)

Revenue from provision of research and publicity
services are recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

With the provision of research and publicity services are
at period of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocation to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according
to the major place of operations of the relevant group entities.
The Group determines its operating segments based on these
business units by reference to their respective major place of
operations, for the purpose of reporting to the chief operating
decision maker, i.e. the managing director of the Company.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

o Hong Kong: Manufacturing and sales of noodles, frozen
foods and other products in Hong Kong and overseas,
and provision of research and publicity services

o Mainland China: Manufacturing and sales of noodles,
frozen foods and other products in Mainland China, and

provision of publicity services

There are no aggregation of individual operating segments to
derive the reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantimues)

Segment revenue and results

Segment information about these operating and reportable

segments is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. HEER &)
PN T
BERAZELERAREDBZABERE
FEAT -

HZE2022512A831HLEE

Reportable
Mainland segments
Hong Kong China total  Elimination Total
ARE
BB FER ABEF HigH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THER TER THERT THER
Revenue KA
Segment revenue from REMIER
external customers AEBA 1,575,163 2,449,817 4,024,980 - 4,024,980
Inter-segment revenue RE R A 208,650 220,683 429,333 (429,333) -
Segment revenue AEMA 1,783,813 2,670,500 4,454,313 (429,333) 4,024,980
Result ES |
Segment results EIES 119,998 313,475 433,473 - 433,473
Unallocated income RABUA 43,935
Unallocated other gains and losses R/ Be Atz R 518 (13,870)
Interest income FIEMA 19,331
Fair value changes on financial RATFEFABREN
assets at FVTPL SREERTEE (2,839)
Impairment loss on property, 0% BER
plant and equipment REZREBE (7,027)
Impairment loss on intangible assets  {HEEFEEZRE
BA (3,270)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment RECER (569)
Finance costs AR (259)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ 4FAFKTATEF 468,905
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zamtinses) 6. SEER ®)
Segment revenue and results (continued) PEBAREE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021512A31HLEE
Reportable
Mainland segments
Hong Kong China total Elimination Total
BES
B Ay AEEE HiH G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT THT FAT FAT
Revenue A
Segment revenue from REMIER 2
external customers "ﬁWZ/\ 1,466,155 2,400,180 3,866,335 - 3,866,335
Inter-segment revenue EIGETON 196,911 191,146 388,057 (388,057) -
Segment revenue DEMA 1,663,066 2,591,326 4,254,392 (388,057) 3,866,335
Result £
Segment results NEEE 123,493 299,058 422,551 - 422,551
Unallocated income AOBKBA 16,960
Unallocated other gains and losses AR HELE (1 4tzs K 518 3,453
Interest income FIEWA 16,751
Fair value changes on financial RATFESAERN
assets at FVTPL SREENTER (618)
Loss on disposal of property, DENE - BER&
plant and equipment B (17,156)
Finance costs BERA (365)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4 AKHATEF 441,576
Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates. NEB 9 BBUL AIL IR 1T T 45 B R UCER o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, net exchange gain
or loss, interest income, fair value changes on financial assets
at FVTPL, impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and finance
costs. This is measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantimues)

Segment assets and liabilities
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment results are presented.

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

SERER (&)

AREEREE
ARTERE RS MRBT EREEL
BRRETHR2KABES  ALTESR
DInHEEN,BE - Bt - E255 30U
AR DELHELE -

Hitv o P&
FHENEETANDE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BLZ2022F 12 531 HIFFE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BB Rl A ith Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHET FTHET
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ERE 3,232 3,192 6,424
Depreciation of property, plant ME - RERBETE
and equipment 17,231 10,780 28,011
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,003 9,719 15,722
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BLZ20214F 12 531 HIEFE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B H B At FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ESH 3,231 3,544 6,775
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERBETE
and equipment 14,886 13,557 28,443
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 5,451 9,904 15,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantinuec) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived
from customers located in Hong Kong (location of domicile),
Mainland China and others, which is determined based on the
location of customers, while the Group’s non-current assets are
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which is determined
based on the geographical location of these assets or place of
group entities that hold such assets, where appropriate.

SERER (&)

HEER
REBRBINBELZMAEER B MR
B (FrfEsh) ~ PEAM R EMILE 2T
FWA - WIREBEEFZEHMET A%
B ZIERBEEMNEB RPN - T)
BEZSEEEZHEBEUEXEEBEEA
REEE M (WEA) BE -

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
External revenue: GNEBUTA
Hong Kong BE 1,309,448 1,357,985
Mainland China AR A 2,457,628 2,400,180
Others (Canada, Australia, United States of — Efbith[& (&K ~ =M -
America, Taiwan, Macau, etc.) EH - aEKBRME) 257,904 108,170
4,024,980 3,866,335
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets (Note): EmBEE (K -
Hong Kong BE 740,377 654,100
Mainland China IRy 1,155,325 1,308,361
1,895,702 1,962,461

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL, deferred
tax assets, loan receivable, time deposits with maturity over one
year and rental deposits.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantinued) 6.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the respective year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, individually contributing over 10%

SERER (&)
ERFEEFZER
THIRERF ZWAREZ 2022 F %2021

F12A31 BERFEENEASELEA

of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: HBiE10% :
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Customer A’ ZEA 821,380 817,406
Customer B? =B 664,586 684,025
Customer C? EFEC 490,650 435,991
' From Mainland China 1 REHERL
2 From both Hong Kong and Mainland China 2 BB KA E A
OTHER INCOME 1. EHisla A
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Government grant related to acquisition BRI & E 2 BUT 8L
of assets (Note 31) (FFEE31) 1,345 948
Government grant related to expenses D HERMASZ 2 BT 8L
recognised (Note) (FfiE) 29,383 9,175
Interest income from bond receivables FEWES 2 FEWA 918 -
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFAF B UA 15,723 14,835
Interest income from financial assets at BEAFEFABENSREED
fair value through profit or loss FLEMA 2,690 1,916
Miscellaneous income FEUA 13,207 6,837
63,266 33,711
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised M B E2021F 128318 IEFE A&

government grants of HK$9,175,000 in relating to tax subsidies
provided by the Government of Mainland China. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised government
grants of HK$17,792,000 in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies
in Hong Kong under Employment Support Scheme provided by
the Hong Kong government. The remaining government grants
of HK$11,591,000 represents other subsidies provided by the
Government of Mainland China.

T AP IR T R 4 B 75 T 4 B T SR BT 4 B
9,175,000/ JT ° B E=2022F 12 A31H
IEFER - REBEFER Covid-1948F8
AR BB 17,792,000 87T « HE
BT (R E] FHEIEE - Feh
RIBF B9 11,591,000 74 JT 8 B BT 12
e E b aL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

8.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hinlw s R ES18
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Exchange (loss) gain, net 3, (E518) W5 (13,152) 3,453
Fair value changes on financial assets RAVEFA BN eREE
at FVTPL NFEEE) (2,839) (618)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WERSHZEE
equipment (569) (17,156)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - WEMEEZRERER
equipment (7,027) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets BB E 2 RERE (3,270) -
(26,857) (14,321)
9.  FINANCE COSTS A5 LA
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNEL 259 365
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FEHEX
2022 2021
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T
Current tax: BNERFAIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH 26,229 28,542
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax AR PO O S TS AR 83,181 84,177
Mainland China Withholding tax B Pt FE 0 10,231 2,430
119,641 115,149
(Over)under provision in prior years: AREE (B BETT -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 385 (1,434)
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax AR g T EE TSR (796) 5,661
(411) 4,227
119,230 119,376
Deferred tax (Note 22) RAERIE (Mi5E22) 759 (17,035)
119,989 102,341

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The EIT Law requires withholding tax to be levied on distribution
of profits earned by Mainland China entities for profits
generated after 1 January 2008 at rate of 5% for Hong Kong
resident companies, which are the beneficial owners of the
dividend received.

BREMBHFNEREHE  aEKEER
ERMNE28 BB E Mg ik825% MW
FREB - MBB2E BB TTHEF 5%
16.5% MY R BT o DRFE MRS RIS
KHIEER 2 EEER 28N GEERR
& 16.5% FIATIIE -

REBEFREMEMSTE ([REMESTIED
MEFTEREEHIEH - & BRI B
REMEFE 2 REHSF25% °

EMEHREAETE  PEAMERERNES
BERGt¥ (AEWKREESEEA) BREM
BEER 2 72008 1 B 1 BB ELE Z % FIE
IR - ZBI% 5% B REURTBEINR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

10.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (zantinsed) 0. FEHE>Z ®
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the FRMAEHAXREESER A2 ER
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit AKRHR 2 BRB AT FIERRAT

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
2022 FF 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation KR B4 Al 468,905 441,576
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% R4 TSI E 16.5% T E 2
I 77,369 72,860
Tax effect of expenses not deductible IR oS A iyi3 7% -
for tax purpose 3,146 3,761
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBRBAZ HGTE
for tax purpose (6,542) (2,265)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RBERTBEB 2 RIGE 3,584 3,951
Utilisation of deductible temporary )R So AR B W R 2 AT HIR
differences previously not recognised R ERE - (16,952)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A B AR 2 B A )
operating in Mainland China TRME 2 & 29,852 19,105
(Over) under provision in prior years LAEFE GERRERE) BETR (411) 4,227
Withholding tax attributable to undistributed — # Bl b i B 2 &) A& 48 5 Bt i 7
profits of Mainland China subsidiaries JE(LTEIORL 11,612 16,146
Income tax at concessionary rate REBNMEAENAEH (165) (165)
Others Hh 1,544 1,673
Income tax expense for the year FAMEHREZ 119,989 102,341

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A



11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . FEWi@F
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Profit for the year has been arrived at FREMNE R -
after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 6,424 6,775
Auditors’ remuneration %R BN & 4,824 4,519
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR A 2 FEKA 2,728,973 2,640,295
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #% - [E M RETE 152,241 160,093
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : BiFERFTE AR Z 5B
included in cost of sales upon sales (HERTAHEKA) (124,230) (131,650)
28,011 28,443
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 15,722 15,355
Total depreciation mELRE 43,733 43,798
Donation charged to profit or loss (Note i) FFABEMRBHR (M) 100 -
Expenses relating to short-terms lease ERRHEE 2 X 9,660 7,204
Research and development expenditure e R 33,997 35,167
Staff costs (Note ii) BIRA (FIEEID
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) BEMWe (M3E12)
— fees -#% 1,000 1,000
— other emoluments - Emie 19,428 17,499
— equity-settled share-based payment - DA A B AR D 7 AR
BES 1,251 1,431
21,679 19,930
Other staff costs excluding directors’ TEREESEMWE 2 HME TKA
emoluments (Note ii) (P &EI) 707,707 696,044
Total staff costs |8 TR 729,386 715,974
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and & : BtiF SR FEE AR 2 3B
included in cost of sales upon sales (HERIIABEERE) (327,750) (321,937)
Less: Amount included as research and W A XA 2
development expenditure as shown above FRIA (20,276) (19,620)
381,360 374,417

Notes:

Donation was made to a charitable fund amounted to
HK$100,000 (2021: nil) during the year ended 31 December
2022.

ii. Contributions to retirement benefit scheme included in other
staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
HK$38,494,000 (2021: HK$36,531,000).

G

HE2022F12A31HILFEE  MEEHE
£ 1EH BI85 100,000 % 7T (2021 4 -
=)o

H E20229F 128318 L FE 5 A
Hfh 8 TR ARKRKBEANFEERA
38,494,000 JT (20214 : 36,531,000
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

12.  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EEREFEHTEME
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Directors’ fees (Note i) BEwe (MED 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments: (Note ii) EEE - (KRN
Basic salaries and allowances HEARH & Mo28h 19,428 17,499
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL - -
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE SR S5 AR 19 R LT A 3K 1,251 1,431
21,679 19,930
Notes: BT
The directors’ fees were mainly for their services as directors of i EEZMSFESRBEREARQR REMN
the Company and its subsidiaries. BARES -
i The other emoluments were mainly for their services in i HEMeFrEPRESHEBARAR LR
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company EEEBHRB 2R -

and the Group.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (zantinies) 1. EEREREVITEME @)

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENSRENTFARREERERATEZ
executive of the Company are set out below: Ee#EzT -
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31HILEE
Other emoluments
AftEe
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors' salaries and Discretionary scheme share-based
fees  allowances bonus contributions payment Total
WESEE
Ex5e BINER NRG R
EEHe REE  BERA FEMAR EBRAR @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A BITEZ
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) REERESE (Fi5T) - 6,655 - - 897 7,552
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BENRLE - 3,455 - - 12 3,567
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREE - 2,850 - - 77 2,927
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JIRRERE - 3,246 - - 104 3,350
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada LBAHEE - 322 - - 61 3,283
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) BUI#H7ES
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAEXET 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Masaru Takahashi iy 250 - - - - 250
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano PHETHE 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RAMEEE 250 - - - - 250
1,000 19,428 - - 1,251 21,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (zantinies) 1. EXERERVITEME &)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31ALFE
Other emoluments
Aft#e

Retirement Equity-

Basic benefits settled

Directors’  salariesand  Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees  allowances bonus  contributions payment Total

ESEE

F-vie i SRR AR 2
L0k RER O BBEA HEER EEFR @3

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THT THT THT ThR THT

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A #TES

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZHEREE (M) - 6,003 - - 1,050 7,053
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BETELL - 3439 - - 138 3,577
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAERFEE - 2,737 - - 90 2,827
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka ISR 4 A - 2,672 - - 90 2,762
Mr. Munehiko Ono NERERE

(resigned on 1 July 2021) (R202157 A1 BEHT) - 862 - - 50 912
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada AR EE

(appointed on 1 July 2021) (R2021157 A1 REZA) - 1,786 - - 13 1,799

B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) B JEH{T2S

DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAEXET 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Junichi Honda AEE-%4
(resigned on 1 July 2021) (R202157 51 BBHT) 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Masaru Takahashi aiEBEE
(appointed on 1 July 2021) (R2021%57 R 1 REZRA) 125 - - - - 125
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano FHETHR 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai WML 250 - - - - 250
1,000 17,499 - - 1,431 19,930
Note: Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the Executive Director, Chairman of the Mzt : REBREEERAEENTESR BRR
Board and Chief Executive of the Group. REBHITE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRN - BEEAESHEERITEMESK
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during REREEMNME 228t
the year.
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13.

14,

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included five directors (2021: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.

hasa#HES

F AEBALBEHEECETLE
¥ (2021F : BAEE)  REZWEHE
R M 125 -

RMEFE > AEEHES TS
TEFLhERSHFAL (BREFRE
8)  IMERIMARE BN INARSE B E
HY BR R S AE BB 1E

DIVIDENDS 14, B2
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution FABERRDIRZRE
during the year:
2021 Final — 14.56 HK cents and 2021 KA1 - FR14.56 B &
special — 2.91 HK cents R - T A% 2.91 3110
(2021: 2020 Final — 14.05 HK cents) (20214F : 2020 FRH -
per share Fh% 14.0578100) 182,333 150,142

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of 15.16
HK cents per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of
HK$158,224,000, has been proposed by the directors of the
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

RIBEERRE  RRABTESERENEE
2022F12A3MBLEFERPRETRE
BT 1516781l + & ££158,224,000/8 7T ¢
AR RERNERERRBAFRGHERT
AEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

15.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 5. SlRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RATHEBE ABMRERERREERFT)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ERUTEBRAE -

following data:

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BRIEEFHENT :
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ HEREARN#ESERFIME
the Company for the purpose of basic and AT AN F AR T
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (F%&x) 316,519 303,821
Number of shares RBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &S ERZEF|ME 2 LA
for the purpose of basic earnings per share DN 1,043,782,893 1,057,034,523
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares FARITENR G 8RB S 2
in respect of outstanding share awards BEEEB ) 2 LBk w2 58,658 34,215
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FLBREEEZRFIM S 2 LA
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share Al F &L 1,043,841,551 1,057,068,738
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16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 5K - BiBs KR
Machinery Furniture
Owned Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
properties improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles in progress Total
ERNE HENERE BERRE HAREE AE RRIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T TR TR T TR
cost WA
At 1 January 2021 R2021%E1A1H 1,297,275 44514 951,153 135,638 17,871 105,358 2,551,809
Additions HE 7453 15,819 77431 10,808 4,641 146,216 262,368
Acquired on acquisition Gl NG
of a subsidiary (Note 36) (FirzE36) 2,598 - - - - - 2,598
Disposals e (4,203) (188) (61,372) (2,725) (1,469) - (69,957)
Reclassification Eip 151,274 3,256 29,429 871 - (184,830) -
Exchange realignment ERAE 18,010 % 18,310 2,567 273 1,200 40,456
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A318 1,472,407 63,497 1,014,951 147,159 21,316 67,944 2,187,274
Additions HE 1,578 195 62,386 7451 89 146,028 217,721
Disposals e (3,050) @219 (8,259) (2,379) (709) - (16,516)
Reclassification B - - 16,190 1,404 - (17,594) -
Exchange realignment ERHE (76,907) (66) (57,342) (11,492) (871) (5331)  (152,009)
At 31 December 2022 #2026 12318 1,394,028 61,507 1,027,926 142,143 19,825 191,047 2,836,476
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT & Rsi/A
At 1 January 2021 R0 E1 /18 340,446 22,949 569,479 88,942 14,145 - 1,035,961
Providled for the year EERE 48,307 8,267 87,955 13,456 2,108 - 160,093
Eliminated upon disposals HERHH (3,726) (42) (43,365) 2,49) (1.469) - (51,09)
Exchange realignment EHAR 384 30 15,378 967 190 - 16,949
At 31 December 2021 R2021%512A318 385,411 31,204 629,447 100,869 14,974 - 1,161,905
Providled for the year EERE 53,456 9,586 76,396 10,09 2213 - 152,241
Impairment loss charged to SABRNAEESR
profit or loss (Note) (WtzE) - - 5,064 1,963 - - 7,027
Eliminated upon disposals HERLH - (1,613) (5,081) (2,240) (685) - (9,619)
Exchange realignment B AR (13,654) (22) (34,191) (7,081) (434) - (55,382)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 425213 39,155 672,135 103,601 16,068 - 1,256,172
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 December 2022 R022%12A318 968,815 22,352 355,791 38,542 3,757 191,047 1,580,304
At 31 December 2021 R2021%512A318 1,086,996 32,293 385,504 46,290 6,342 67,944 1,625,369
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|||l-ﬁ E\ij ﬁiﬁ%ﬂfj DI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (zamtinueq) 16. 3% - i (2

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except BREREIRRIN - Ly - BWERZEE

for construction in progress after taking into account of their B ARG RISREERAEGREER

estimated residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line L/(TE ETETE

basis at the following rates per annum:

Owned properties 3% - 5% HEWE 3% E5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the terms HEWHEEE IHEEFH20%

of the leases or 20% (ARG H B%E)

Machinery and equipment 9% — 30% HEBE I R 9% Z£30%

Furniture and fixtures 14% - 20% FEMREE 14% Z=20%

Motor vehicles 18% —30% E 18% £=30%

Note: During the current year, the management of the Group M :AFE AREEEERREEER
determined there was indication for impairment on certain 7,027,000/ LEVE T - RS k&R 1E
property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of AREIR © X - W5 KRR A M
HK$7,027,000. The recoverable amounts of the property, ﬁggﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁma@%? étizogg

] i FI2A3MALEEFEE  HHEEC T2
plant and equipment have been determined based on B EhREEERARTAENAKE
their value in use. The relevant assets were fully impaired SEEE /N o F i 0 7,027,000 7T (2021
during the year ended 31 December 2022 because the £ ) REBRD N ENERS TR
management considered that the recoverable amounts of o
such assets are minimal. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$7,027,000 (2021: nil) have been recognised in profit
or loss during the year.

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS . EREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE HEME wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT FAT

As at 31 December 2022 720226128311

Carrying amounts FREE 178,335 8,063 186,398

As at 31 December 2021 720215128318

Carrying amounts BREE 196,009 11,501 207,510

For the year ended BZ2022F12A831H

31 December 2022 LEFE

Depreciation charge HEER (6,031) (9,691) (15,722)

Exchange realignment PE 3 % (11,643) (368) (12,011)

For the year ended BZE2021512H31H

31 December 2021 LLFE
Depreciation charge WEER (5,195) (10,160) (15,355)
Exchange realignment b R 4,089 15 4,104

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B
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11.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cantinveq)

17. FRAEEE ©)

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHIT

Expense relating to short-term leases ERRHEENRE 9,660 7,204

Total cash outflow for leases LHEER R 18,037 15,916

Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FREEERE (M3E) 6,621 53,496
Note: Included in additions to right-of-use assets amounted of M5k - BE2021F12 A3V BILEFE @ 5FARE

HK$48,812,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021
were the acquisition of a land-use-right in Hong Kong through
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36).

For both years, the Group leases office premises, staff quarters
and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed terms of one to three years (2021: one to
three years), but may have extension and termination options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

FREEENSREA48,812,000/87T * &
FEEBRAKRE —RMBARKE—ER
BB T AR (MFE36)

AEBRMEFRNEAERLAEYWE BIH
ERABUHELE - HESHVIREE
FH—Z=4F 2021F : —2=1F) ETI ’
MERT B R FE HA I 4%k o FRHR DA (R B &
1 B SR B R R G BA?X
TEAME LA AR E AR R E R - R
KB fE A S RIH)E 2 00 E & [F) 7] o5& il 3t
TTHYERR] ©

SO AEEHEBEIEUNERER
AN TEET - AEERZEFMEER
WEMEEA  SRAERELH - Bl
BaEmEEn  —2BMFTERAXMN -
ZEBBEMENEE LA D EIRT AL

AN SITRY -

AEBTHREIES MAER VEHA
%) o 2022 F K 2021F12 A31H » & H

HEASH PR ENEHEEERA
AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

17.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS /cantinuer) 17. EREEE ©)
Restrictions or covenants on leases TR & R PR i A 2255
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$8,375,000 are recognised AN BA2022F 128318 EERHE
with related right-of-use assets of HK$8,063,000 as at 31 E58E8,3750008 T M EHBERAESR
December 2022 (2021: lease liabilities of HK$11,212,000 are E 8,063,000/ 7L (2021 4% : EHEREE
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$11,501,000). BE11,212,0008 T L ERBERELE
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than 11,501,000/87T) - HEHZEKRLHEARS
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the #E & & B P R R R ST b DDA AT 22
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing o MEEEMMSAEEEER -
purposes.
18. GOODWILL 18. &
Guangdong  MC Marketing Eastpeak
Shunde & Sales Trading
Nissin (Hong Kong) (Shanghai)
Foods Co., Ltd Limited Company Limited Total
ERIEZAE EBEE LBREES
RRERAH BRAR BRAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET FET
AT COST AND CARRYING VALUES &R A REEE
At 1 January 2021 ®2021E1A18 8,414 31,668 24,438 64,520
Exchange realignment B A% - - 719 719
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 8,414 31,668 25,157 65,239
Exchange realignment fE AR - - (2,131) (2,131)
At 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H 8,414 31,668 23,026 63,108

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised as below:

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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18.

GOODWILL (zantinveq)

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. The Group performed impairment
review for the goodwill of Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd based on the cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budgets and estimated future cash flows for the
following five years as approved by the management and using
a pre-tax discount rate of 10.4% (2021: 7.7%) per annum.
The cash flows beyond five-year are extrapolated using a 1.0%
(2021: 1.0%) per annum growth rate. Key assumptions for the
value in use calculation, are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and cost
during forecasted periods. Management estimates discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.

MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2022,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
15.0% (2021: 15.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2021: 2.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions and key parameters for the value in use calculation
include budgeted sales and expected changes to selling prices
and cost, which are determined based on management’s
expectations for the market development and market growth
forecasts. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

18.

BME (&)

ERIEZEBERREBRAT

ReELEM AR SBENEBRERE
BFRrIEEE - AEBREBERESRETEAE
ERIEEAEREMBRATZEEEITR
B EBADEREEREM Ex &R
FBEURKRRAFHABRERE - F
RAzE8FHATTIREE10.4% (2021 4F :
77%)c BBRAFZHESREANL1.0%
(20214 : 1.0%) 2 F I8 & Kl - &
REAFEFZZ2ETEBRRLEBEETR
o 38R R P R A TE DRI AR R 0 88 1B KK
RrBEHEY - EEE[EZIREER
BRI MBHERNBEEZTERRAS
EEBMZEHTER - BRETERITE
BREBAGE - HEBREBENAZEY
AR LA T 518 0l R R R 35 2 T8 R
fbLtEd - ERERE  ZER{/2EME
BT e ENZ R EEE N2
REAELBETKDASE -

BERAEZARAT

ZREEEBM A RESEIERER
BEFEMET - R2022%F12A8318 -
ZHReEABMNZAIKE SRS RE
BEFEDZEEMEE  ZEEDHIERK
RAFZHOMBEEEAZ RS RER
B K & %15.0% (20214 : 15.0%) <
AT E (R T BRI I5E EXRERE
CHERZBESEABNZBERR) M
Bl - BBAF 2 RERERBEZ3.0%
(20214 : 2.0%) FHEERHEE - R
EWRBBEBITEZFHRPBREE -
FAEEHEZHEHMEERIREELZH
PIEBEHEE RN MBS E RN A 278
BE) . DREBEEREEBHMISEERMISE
RIEAZBHMETE - ERERE %5
Bz EAAEA BT EMZIE
CEABNRAGEBBAIREIEESEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

18.

GOODWILL (zantinveq)

Eastpeak Trading (Shanghai) Company Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2022,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
11.0% (2021: 11.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2021: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions and key parameters for the value in use calculation
include budgeted sales and gross margin and expected changes
to selling prices and cost, which are determined based on
management’s expectations for the market development
and market growth forecasts. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

18.

BME (&)

LEREESERATR
ZREEABMTRESEERER
BETEMET - N20229F12/8318 -
ZHRSELBEMZAINESENLEHRE
BEFELZHEMEBEE  ZEEDHIEREK
RAFZRIOMEEEELA RS RER
Bl R HE11.0% (20214 0 11.0%) 2 &
AT E (RELT B RIS EEGREE
ZHERZBESELEMNZBEERAR) M
B - BBRAF s RERERBEZ3.0%
(20214F :3.0%) FHERHEL - IR
RIWRBBEBITEZFHRPERER -
FABEAEZEMIERERTELY
PREEEHEEERER R RIHEE K
RZIBEEE  DHIREEEEBYHMBER
kMBS EBEAZEHRMETE - ERER
B ZEREZIMNAEBEEEHHTG
ERZESELEMNZ FRAMEBAIW
El4A5 58 -



19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. BLEE
Customer
Trademarks relationship Total
iR EFRZ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
COST &N
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 78,044 24,405 102,449
Exchange realignment b R 136 718 854
At 31 December 2021 R20214F 12 A31H 78,180 25,123 103,303
Exchange realignment (RIS (403) (2,128) (2,531)
At 31 December 2022 R20229 12 A31H 77,777 22,995 100,772
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ #84 MRI1E
At 1 January 2021 HR2021F1A1H 51,957 2,273 54,230
Amortisation for the year FNEH 3,700 3,075 6,775
Exchange realignment P R 17 11 128
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H 55,674 5,459 61,133
Amortisation for the year FEEE 3,682 2,742 6,424
Impairment loss recognised in REEERRERRE
profit or loss (Note) (F3E) 3,270 - 3,270
Exchange realignment ME 3 A (197) (1,312) (1,509)
At 31 December 2022 M20229 12 A31H 62,429 6,889 69,318
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2022 7H2022912 A31H 15,348 16,106 31,454
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 22,506 19,664 42,170

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

Trademarks 10 — 15 years

Customer relationship 13 years

Note: During the current year, the management of the Group
determined there was indication for impairment on certain
trademark with carrying amount of HK$3,270,000. The
recoverable amount of the trademark has been determined based
on their value in use. The relevant asset was fully impaired during
the year ended 31 December 2022 because the management
considered that the recoverable amount of such asset is minimal.
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$3,270,000 (2021: nil) has
been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

tHEVEEABARAMBFEY - HFHE

TEERA T FHABSEE -

R 10-15 4
EFBE 134

Misk: AERN AEEEEEHTE THREME

7%3,270,0008 T EEFEBBEDTR °
ZEEM AR B S A EREE AEEE
F e EZE20229F 12 A31BILEE - A
BECEYRE EHREEEREEH
BEMNARESERK - Al BEESE
3,270,000/8 7T (20214 : T) RERE
BaEFHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 0. REENRZER
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Cost of investment in an unlisted company ~ RIE LT AR ZHE KA 120 120
Exchange realignment (TS (4) 4)
116 116

Particulars of the associate of the Group are as follows: REBBEARFBOT

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Group

RSB EERELA
Name of associate Place of incorporation 2022 2021  Principal activities
BENFER 1R A 3L 3 B 2022 F 20215  FEEH
EREABEBRAA Mainland China 25% 25%  Designing, producing an
RN publishing advertisements
Rt BUENBEMES

The followings are the summarised financial information of the

associate:

2022
2022 &
HK$'000
FHET
The Group’s share of result of the associate ~ ANEE D {HHF & A R E4A -

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ AEEREE QN B#Em 2
interest in an associate FREEARE 116

AT REERRPIEEREE

2021
20214
HK$'000
FHIT

116

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB RRER AR



}

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 2. BAFEFNEZNEME

4

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets designated at FVTPL: EBERAFEFABRN
SHMEE .
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong BB LlERE (M)

(Note i) 10,237 12,436
Unlisted equity investments (Note ii) JEEREERE (MEEii) 18,862 19,502
Club debenture (Note iii) eprES (KsTiii) 5,272 5,272

34,371 37,210
Financial asset mandatorily measured BERAFEFABRTEN

at FVTPL: SREE:

Structured notes (Note iv) HEEEE (V) 204,239 198,985
238,610 236,195

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHAGEMEL 2T -
Current assets mBEE 204,239 198,985
Non-current assets JEmENEE 34,371 37,210
238,610 236,195

Notes:

The above listed equity investment represents ordinary shares
of an entity listed in Hong Kong. This investment is not held
for trading, instead, it is held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate this
investment at FVTPL.

The unlisted equity investments include an amount of HK$2,173,000
(2021: HK$3,544,000) which represents investment in 5% unlisted
equity issued by a private entity established in Mainland China.
This investee is principally engaged in the testing and inspection
of the safety and quality of food products manufacturing and
sales of instant food. The remaining HK$16,689,000 (2021:
HK$15,958,000) represents investment in 26.68% unlisted equity
issued by a private entity in India, which is engaged in processing
and export of frozen-dried seafood, spices and herbs.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments as FVTPL.

FiGE

Lt EREEREEREE LM EENE
B - RIAVIRFEE - ERFH{ER
HERMASR -  ARRERDBEETEZ
BRERRATEF AR -

I LR IR & B $52,173,0000%8 T
(20214 : 3,544,000/ JT) * FE R
MBS 2 A BB BITZ5% I £
BAPZKE ZREFERFEML
2EEAARBRBUREERBENR
B fh e # 716,689,000/ jT (20214 :
15,958,000 7T) HER —HEEMEFLAE R
BIT226.68% I ETRAR ZIRE « 7
AFREMIRE OS2 REEE  BR R
BE -

ARBEERCREEEXSFRERRAY
BEFt ARz -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continueq)

Notes: (continued)

Club debenture is stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to market price.

The structured notes of US$26,184,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$204,239,000) (2021: US$25,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$198,985,000) are issued by
a financial institution in Hong Kong. The structured notes are
interest-rate linked instruments with enhanced interest rates
which accrue on a daily basis and will be automatically extended
every month by an additional month unless the Group exercises
the right to redeem the instruments on maturity date. Thus,
it is not held solely for payment for principal and interest and
therefore, it is measured at FVTPL.

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at
FVTPL are set out in note 38(c).

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

21.

22.

BATEFNEGEHNEME
E (#)
fE ()

GHESRATEIE - ATENSE
TEEE -

26,184,000 % 7T (18 & M #204,239,000
#7T) (2021 4 ¢ 25,000,000 %7 (FBE R
#7198,985,0008 7T) WA B IERIEHA —
MBS REEIRT - ZEBEZEAT
REATE - AFEZBTERS @ BRIk
REEREBATEERD TANER - &
Al AEBER 1A - ALt - EIXIE
EARIMNASRFEMES  Hitt - &
AR FERT B -

BAFEFABGENEREENAFER
EBFIEHNIEE38() °

IEERHIA

REVNGEAMBHREK  FTREREE
ERBEEHEHE ATRARMBE2®E
T SHRE N IR ERETT 2 DT

2022 2021

2022 & 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIIAE (57,041) (62,511)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIABE 53,655 56,270
(3,386) (6,241)

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A



22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (zantinued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

2. BEEHE &)

AT RE R RERFECHEREZRER

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior HEBEREERHEE
years:
Undistributed
Accelerated  earnings of the
tax Mainland China
depreciation subsidiaries Others Total
H 7 3 B T A
B ERE AOEEF Hity #sct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET THET
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(KtaE1) (HfzE2)
At 1 January 2021 ®2021E1 818 39,343 6,272 (32,827) 12,788
(Credited) charged to profitor loss  FAMEZEH (T A) 3% (3,321) 13,716 (27,430) (17,035)
Exchange realignment ERIEEE: - (617) (1,377) (1,994)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 36,022 19,371 (61,634) (6,241)
(Credited) charged to profit or loss  FABZH (5P A) 1k (4,341) 1,381 3,719 759
Exchange realignment RIS - 1,222 874 2,096
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 31,681 21,974 (57,041) (3,386)
Notes: 5T

1. Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by Mainland
China subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
undistributed profits of Mainland China subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$439,480,000 (2021: HK$387,420,000).

2. Amount mainly represents deductible temporary differences
arising from provision for retirement benefits, accrued salaries
and promotion expenses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$228,164,000
(2021: HK$240,535,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$228,164,000 (2021: HK$240,535,000) of such
deductible temporary differences.

—

BIEFR B ERMERE - KR2008F 1 A
1E#E - B E A B A R BRELZ %
FMEikz ke AKZKTEILR - B8t
A A 3 B B A B R 9 B ) R AL B B
M 2= %8 #)439,480,0007 7T (20214 :
387,420,000/ 70) KRG IS RE P T
IRIESEFE -

ZEBRTERARKEN - B RE
FHERRSCEFEMAES 2 ARG R £ E
e

IR HIR - NEE A E A AR E
M EE #9228,164,00078 JT (20214 :
240,535,000 7% 7T) A # 3K 85 R 5 0m A o
2 b #7228,164,0008 JT (20214 :
240,535,000 70) A] 005 b 1 s e
RIBEERITEEEE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

22.  DEFERRED TAXATION (zontinued) 2. IRIERIE (&)
Notes: (continued) Misr : (48)
3. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of 3. R2022F 128318 "EBKREFHZ
approximately HK$44,139,000 (2021: HK$23,948,000) available THIAE 84 /444,139,000 7T (2021 4 -
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset in respect 23,948,000 7T) + Al K SE AR AR F
of the tax losses of approximately HK$44,139,000 (2021: 4 LR B BT 1B 49 44,139,000 78 7T (2021
HK$23,948,000) has been recognised due to the unpredictability £ £23,948,000%8 7T) HRIELFRIEE
of future profit streams. E - I TR SRR R AOE IR
Included in unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2022 were 20224612 A31 BZ RERTEEE A
losses of HK$30,957,000 (2021: HK$19,102,000) that will expire AR AT B HAJE i 2 JE58.30,957,000 7T
as follows: (20214F : 19,102,000 7T) :
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
2026 20264 17,574 19,102
2027 2027 F 13,383 -
30,957 19,102
The remaining unrecognised tax loss as at 31 December 2022 and R2022F R2021F 12 A31HZ#%H T &
2021 will be carried forward indefinitely. BRI B ER AL
125 £h
23.  LOAN RECEIVABLE 23. BWEN

The loan receivable is interest-free, repayable by quarterly
instalments within ten years (from July 2014 with last
payment by 2024) and the repayments are guaranteed by the
shareholders of the borrower.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable are set out
in note 38(b).

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A
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24.

25,

INVENTORIES U =&

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Raw materials [R#7 ¥ 150,393 149,058
Work in progress E&m 57,251 64,010
Finished goods X & 223,966 251,931
431,610 464,999

BOND RECEIVABLES 5. EWES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group purchased
government bonds with face value of RMB30,000,000
at a consideration of RMB30,645,000 (approximately to
HK$37,087,000) from a financial institution. Such bonds carry
coupon rate of 2.64% per annum. The effective interest rate of
such bonds is 2.53% per annum. The bonds were matured and
repaid on 13 August 2022.

HE2021F12831BILEE  REEM
AR5 30,645,000 7T (4937,087,000 % 7T)
REAMGBEBBEEREAARE
30,000,000 TN ES - ZFEHFMR
AFEEE264% ZEBEEHENERFEH
EA253% o EHA202298 A 13 AEIH

o s
WEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

26.  TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 26.

B 5 FEW AR i FE U =X

DEPOSITS g FARIERES
Trade receivables B 5 EWERR
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade receivables — sales of goods EHRBERR - HERm 430,756 478,585
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (3,921) (3,203)
426,835 475,382

At 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$508,545,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates at
the end of the reporting period.

M2021F1A1H REHEEFPHNENE
S REWBR 75 508,545,000 4 7T

AT ARMEHRIRER A H (EZUWARE
RAHEE) 2728 S RERR CGAKRE
EEEEE) ZREROT

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THTT

0 to 30 days 0£30K 332,636 314,566
31 to 90 days 31290k 80,321 143,369
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 13,878 17,447
426,835 475,382

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$213,530,000 (2021: HK$185,673,000) which are past
due as at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past due
balances, HK$5,342,000 (2021: HK$6,716,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as the
customers have good repayment history during the year and
over the past years, and these customers have strong financial
capacity as they are the subsidiaries of large listed corporate in
Hong Kong.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 38(b).

186 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A

MR2022%F 128318 REBZE HEK
SRR B IEREE 2% 5213,530,000
7 7T (20214 : 185,673,000 JT) 2 JE
IBR R - R BERmEHARE AR - R
# HA 45 #2 - 5,342,000 7T (2021 £ ¢
6,716,000/87C) B8 A0 Rk IA L - HET
REBEYN ARBEPRAFERRBTAF
BERIENLY  BRZEREFPAEA
KB EMAGRNHBAR  WEZEEFH
ELEMHET -

B 5 RWERRZ R EFEF BN
38(b) °



26.

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 26.

DEPOSITS (continued)

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
The following is the analysis of other receivables, prepayments
and deposits at the end of the reporting period:

B 5 FEW AR i FE U =X
g BRRERESE (&)

HMEWRER - AARERES
AT R i B R EL A JE JOROR - TR AR
BRBEEZ A

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Other receivables HAh IR 41,403 26,785
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 18,624 23,318
Prepaid value added tax and other taxes TEFHGER REMEIE 8,653 21,152
Rental deposits HEZRS 6,799 4,511
Utilities and other deposits KEREMIZS 11,971 13,573
87,450 89,339

Analysed as: DR
Current BN &R 85,661 87,288
Non-current JERNER 1,789 2,051
87,450 89,339

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set
out in note 38(b).

H Al & WBR S R B R A B M A
38(b) °
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N(]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|||l-ﬁ

G TR ERRBI5E

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
related companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on
the invoice date, which approximate the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries:

. P (B f) JAS =R E
S/ EI &M B RFIE

ST BRBE IR R AN (RSN
RAMEE) 252 MERAEHEKER
(RMIEM « % BRAH30FA0XREEH)
2 IR -

FEUs [E] 2 B 8 A R FOR -

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FBT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 28,642 24,274
31 to 90 days 31290k 5,940 8,230
34,582 32,504

At 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
with fellow subsidiaries are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$5,940,000 (2021: HK$8,230,000) which are past
due as at the reporting period. No balances are past due over
90 days or more at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables to related
companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Amount due to ultimate holding company:

2022128318 AEEKR AR RZH
BRAIZEZEBERBDIERAELER
5,940,000/ 7T (2021 4F : 8,230,000 7T)
ZIEUWERSR - BEAENREHE -
R2022 K% 202112 A31 8 @ #ELH
BIERARIR 90 R LA F o

NTARBREMRIZERAMES 2 /&

NREZEMNER (AEEF 28 RAR
30E 40K ZEEH) ZREDT -

BN RARERATREA

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 16,511 33,059
31 to 90 days 31 290K 6,502 785
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 3,608 458
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 7,187 842
33,808 35,144
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21.

28.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (zantinueq)

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries:

7. FEML (FEIT) BAIRAR AT

S EIZMBARRIE (&)
L) DGR

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 3,584 7,021
31 to 90 days 31 £90K 7 20
91 to 180 days 91 % 180K 32 158
3,623 7,199

Other than disclosed in above, the remaining amount is in M EXHTIETEE 2N FIBpRIEAIEE S

non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries are set out in note
38(b).

TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER THREE MONTHS, TIME
DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER ONE YEAR AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 3.85% (2021: 0.01% to 3.30%) per annum.

The time deposits with maturity over three months carry fixed
interest rate ranging from 0.21% to 2.39% (2021: 0.12% to
2.03%) per annum.

The time deposits with maturity over one year carry fixed
interest rate ranging from 3.15% to 3.85% (2021: 3.15% to
3.85%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of time deposits over three
months or over one year, and bank balances are set out in note
38(b).

28.

ME - EER - 2B NARERKEE -

e S R PRI A B R [R] R B R B R 2
I ERHE B 38(b) ©

E1Elﬁt1t§ﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁ - —f

UEEREZREERES

EEY

iR 1T 4 £ 120.01% £3.85% (2021 4F :
0.01% £3.30%) ZTHHEFFERE »

=@ A EFTHFRIEZ0.12% £2.39%
(2021 4F : 0.12% &£ 2.03%) 2 BEFEFEF|=
FHE o

—F LA+ FHITF IR 3.15% £ 3.85% (2021
F :3.15%%E3.85%) ZEEFFEFTE o

=EA N LR —FE BERRIRITHE
B2 BB R E T B KT E 38(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2. B SEMIRH it BT
EREFER
Trade payables B RNERM
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented LTARBESHRZEZAHZIE S
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: FESTBRSRERBR AT -
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHIT
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 131,836 194,557
31 to 90 days 31E 90K 34,410 58,261
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 13,680 11,707
Over 180 days i@ 180K 16 5,702
179,942 270,227

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days.

Other payables and accruals

The following is the analysis of other payables and accruals at

RBERZ FHEEMRE0X -

Hip e RIBAREER

AT ARBEHREMENFKARESE

the end of the reporting period: Rz -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Accruals for promotion and advertising EEREERICETER
expenses 240,015 299,511
Construction payables FETEEEERIA 7,028 12,408
Staff costs and welfare payables 8 TR RFE R 90,856 107,465
Value added tax and other tax payables FERPIERER R H A1 20,400 16,900
Refund liabilities (Note) REAE (M) 122,767 112,750
Other payables and accruals HibERZIE R ETE A 172,131 163,349
653,197 712,383
Note: The refund liabilities arose from outstanding rebates in relation to Wi - REBERNRAE TREFHEEEMNRE

the goods sold to certain customers.
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LEASE LIABILITIES 0. HEAE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FBT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEa8E:
Within one year —FKN 6,249 5,576
Within a period of more than one year —FLA BT BAMRE
but not exceeding two years 1,370 5,273
Within a period of more than two years MEFIA BB EBBTE
but not exceeding five years 756 363
8,375 11,212
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 W REBAEE TR I12MEA
months shown under current liabilities BIHAR R S B ROA (6,249) (5,576)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FERBIAEE FFIR 12 @ A%
shown under non-current liabilities B HIR e S E R 2,126 5,636
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to BAREE AR INE TS ERNE
lease liabilities range from 3.5% to 4.75% (2021: from 1.18% NTF3.5%F4.75% (20214F : TF1.18%
10 4.75%). 2 4.75%) °
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies of the THERELEREE TR 2T EBIIE -

functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

31.  DEFERRED INCOME N, IREYN
The following is the movement in deferred income in the AT RAFERBEFEREWAZES

current and prior years.

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year F4) 21,391 20,065
Government grant received in relation to R & E AT BT AL (P
acquisition of assets (Note) 3,483 1,675
Amortisation in the current year REZHH (1,345) (948)
Exchange realignment b H TR (3.310) 599
At end of the year FIR 20,219 21,391
Analysed as: DR
Current B 2,826 423
Non-current IETRE 17,393 20,968
20,219 21,391
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received Mk - 8 2202F 12A3MB EFE A&
government subsidy of HK$3,483,000 (2021: HK$1,675,000) for LR R B P b Uy B R S TR T B B
the acquisition of machinery in Mainland China. The amount has 3,483,000 7T (20214F : 1,675,000/ 7T) ©
been treated as deferred income. The amount is amortised and ZeRERABRERARE - 22BN
transferred to income over the useful lives of the relevant asset. BEFAFTHNEEREREZRA -
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32.

SHARE CAPITAL 32. BRA
Number of
shares Share capital
KD EE N
HK$'000
FH&T
Issued and fully paid: ERIRHE

At 1 January 2021 H2021F1A1H 1,074,319,480 2,941,441
Shares bought back and cancelled (Note) BRI 8E 2 Bty () (26,529,000) -
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 1,047,790,480 2,941,441
Share bought back and cancelled (Note) B EIEE I 88 2 Bty (M) (4,099,000) -
At 31 December 2022 7R20229F12A31H 1,043,691,480 2,941,441

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Company bought back its own ordinary shares through The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

HE2022FK2021F12 A31HIEFE -
ARG EBEBHERIMNERARIEE
EgaT@miumT

Number of Aggregate

ordinary shares Consideration per share consideration

bought back BRRE paid

2EE Highest Lowest =53]

EERR#A &S 4 ARE

Month of buy-back (Note) HK$ HK$ HK$'000
B A i3] Vi Vi TET
April 2021 202154 R 833,000 6.11 5.87 5,001
May 2021 20215 A 9,795,000 6.40 5.83 60,210
August 2021 202158 A 172,000 5.42 5.32 925
September 2021 20219 A 4,975,000 6.04 5.40 28,741
October 2021 2021610 A 800,000 6.10 5.94 4,810
November 2021 2021511 A 6,754,000 5.90 5.48 38,445
December 2021 2021612 A 3,200,000 5.86 5.54 18,248
January 2022 2022F1 A 4,099,000 6.50 6.17 25,988
30,628,000 182,368

Note: The Company was authorised at its annual general meetings to
buy back its own ordinary shares not exceeding 10% of the total
number of its issued shares as at the dates of the resolutions
being passed. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company bought back 4,099,000 (2021: 26,529,000) ordinary
shares, and all were cancelled during the same period.

Wit ARBRERRAFAG - EREDE
THBRAZRBBABEDBITRNG
BEI0% M LB - BLE2022F12 7
31 BIEFE - AARE 1§ 4,099,000 f&
(20214 : 26,529,000 f%) E3@A& - W R
EIEAZ EPaEsH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

32.  SHARE CAPITAL (continveq)

2. BA& &)
DA A AR ERH A 33 M0 M3t #1452 AR

Details of the shares held under the share award scheme (note

33) are set out below: IS -
Average Number of Value of
purchase price shares held shares
THEEE MiEROEE B EE
HK$ HK$’000
BT FH&T
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A81H 4.4 42,110 187
Shares purchased from secondary [0 RN EIIBE TR
market under share award scheme F_TMBEE RN 5.8 255,030 1,474
Shares vested under share award RIER D REETEIE B
scheme & A7 5.8 (244,820) (1,431)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12HA31H 4.4 52,320 230
Shares purchased from secondary f&D EEENETEITE T A
market under share award scheme FE_TIHEENRMD 6.3 264,510 1,664
Shares vested under share award RIER G REETEIE B
scheme f& 7 6.0 (301,310) (1,801)
At 31 December 2022 K20229 12 A31H 6.0 15,520 93
33.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 3. BB AERMAERR

On 7 March 2016, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 7 March 2016. Pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Group has set up a trust for the
purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and holding
the awarded shares before they are vested.

On 12 May 2021 and 23 December 2021, a total of 244,820
award shares (the “2021 Awarded Shares”) of the Company
have been awarded and vested to certain selected employees
(including but not limited to directors, executives, officers
and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any
members of the Group) at no consideration.
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K2016F3 78 » AR E A HZE
&I ([t SEENEHED) - Bt SEED & &I
H2016F3A7HBAER B+F- R
B ZENETEI 2R A - REBEBRLE
T UEBRRNEDERRGBAIRA
RENRRG -

M2021 58128 K2021F12 /8238 -
HE244,820 A A R EEENREH ([2021 4
HEKRGO) ENEREXRTEEBRET
LIRTRE (BIEETRAANEEEMKS
REIZES - THRAE aRBEREM
BB (T BeE)) -



33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (zantinued) B UBRKhABERMARXS &)
On 31 March 2022, 30 June 2022 and 10 October 2022, a total R2020F3 A31H 202296 A30H &
of 301,310 award shares (the “2022" Awarded Shares”) of the 20224 10A810H + £ E301,310 A 2
Company have been awarded and vested to certain selected RSB AR (D ([2022 F BN ]) EAE
employees (including but not limited to directors, executives, REBTREBRETLETES (B1ER
officers and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of TRAAEEERKERRIZES - 1T
any members of the Group) at no consideration AB - 2 BENEMEES (TmEBE
) e
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TRERFANESFBAR ARG ZHE
share award held by employees during the year: op=s
Number of shares awarded
RRRGHE
Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at
1 January during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2022 the year the year 2022
RanE RanE
1818 128318
ERAER RiLAS | L 28 ERm EREE &8
Employees 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 - 81,600 (81,600) -
€8 02F3A31H 02537318
Employees 30 June 2022 30 June 2022 - 112,620 (112,620) -
B8 2022567308 2022%6A308
Employees 10 October 2022 10 October 2022 - 107,090 (107,090) -
[£8 202%108108 20225104108
- 301,310 (301,310) -
Number of shares awarded
RRRH A
Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at
1 January during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2001 the year the year 2021
#0015 w01 E
1A1A 12A31H
ERABR ik gBHE i EREE ENEE 5
Employees 12 May 2021 17 May 2021 - 137,200 (137,200) -
B 201E5R128 0155178
Employees 23 December 2021 23 December 2021 - 107,620 (107,620) -
[E8 015128238 20015128238
- 244,820 (244,820) -
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O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

33.

34.

3b.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (zantinued) B UBRKhABERMARXS &)
The estimated fair values of the 2021 Awarded Shares and R BRG 2 Ti5KAE - 2021 588
2022 Awarded Shares are HK$5.85 and HK$5.63 respectively B (D & 2022 F 8B AR 15 2 (s AT ES
per share based on the market trading price of the share at the R RS 5.85 8T 5.63 7T © 2021 F
grant date. The total fair value of the 2021 Awarded Shares and BIAR D £ 2022 FHEEIR (D 2 A EERE D
2022 Awarded Shares are HK$1,431,000 and HK$1,697,000 A5 1,431,000 %75 1,697,000 7T ©
respectively.
The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,697,000 for KEEBREEZ2022F12A318EFE
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$1,431,000) in RARARE 2RO REERFA B
relation to share award granted by the Company. 1,697,000/ 7T (20214F : 1,431,000/ 7T) °
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS . BARKIE
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET AT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition B % #{E R ERE B HRE R
of property, plant and equipment BE 2 BRAUEDE  BER
contracted for but not provided in B EARTH
the consolidated financial statements 93,033 68,238
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 3. BAXEFIFE

Defined contribution plan

The Group participates in both defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Certain
employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme remained with the ORSO
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.
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EREHAEE

RNEE S EIRRE SRR BEHI M2
TEREMETE ([BEERNETEI]) K 2000
F12 AIRE@FIMEATE ST ENEHIRK T 2
BEIME AR ([RERTE]) - 25
B EEMRASEEENFEE BT
HABRECZESEE - HARESFTEIKT
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EARE ZIRIRETEI - HAE 200012 A1 H
RZENMAREB FiEFESNES
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3h.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (zaninuer)

Defined contributed plan (continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee and capped at HK$1,500 per month.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employees’ basic
salary. The pension costs charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to these funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of these schemes.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the Government of Mainland China.
The Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll costs
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$38,494,000
(2021: HK$36,531,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
retirements plan and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.

3b.

BIREFIRTE (2)

EREMHAE (E)
HAESEKEMES  AEEEEES
BABIREEBTEZ 5% AEERE -
FAHRERA1,50087T -

BEERAFEARERRASERREEER
&z 5%FAEHHRK - BEEMRZE
KRERAERNEBRZEFEME 2L E
EEHREEL 2K

ARBZHBEAIHE QR ES2EGE
BT EE 2 B ERRIKENETE - AR
BIREAMHBARAREETIEZ —F
Bt R KR IR AR %
HRNAFE IR - REBRZRKRENG
FNzHE—BEERRBZAIMEEHR
TR e

1B & R 2 48 5 %38,494,0007%8 T
(20214 : 36,531,000 70 ) 5 AR EIL T2
BAIATIEE LBl M % ST B R R K »

M2022F K% 2021512 A31H @ ERRE
BiR MR IRET 8 E A ] R R FER D
FERHEF ORI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

3h.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (zaninuer)

Defined benefit plan

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group
has the obligation to pay Long Service Payment (“LSP") to
qualifying employees in Hong Kong upon retirement, subject
to a minimum of 5 years employment period, based on the
following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) x 2/3
x Years of service

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of long service payment shall not exceed HK$390,000.
This obligation is accounted for as a post-employment defined
benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof (collectively, the “Eligible Offset Amount”),
for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an employee
(the "Offsetting Arrangement’). The LSP obligation, if any, is
presented on a net basis.

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was gazetted
on 17 June 2022, which will eventually abolish the Offsetting
Arrangement. The Amendment will come into effect
prospectively from a date to be determined by the Hong
Kong SAR Government, which is expected to be in 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). Under the amended Ordinance, the Eligible
Offset Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied
to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer
eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation.
Furthermore, the LSP obligations before the Transition Date will
be grandfathered and calculated based on the Last monthly
wages immediately preceding the Transition Date.
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3b.

BIREFIRTE (2)

EFBEBAEE

RBEBEIFESTE  AEEFEEER
KEERATAARAFAKRENEERE
XNEHREe ((RERBE))  &IER
EEIRS &

sA—EATE (BERLERT) X 2/3 < iR
EER

B —{EATIE LR A22,50087T Mk
BIRR 7% € /) & R8N 1S #8183 390,000/8 7T ©
ZEMTERBBEEREATEIALR -

gEAh - 1995 FiB BRI SR bl 1 A IE & 5T &
& R RF ASE BRI F AAREERRES A
EIHE - NE S REMEMIEBBR (4
B [AEREEE]  NEHEMEENE
MRS ([EEZH)) - RERBSET
(IA) LUFEEEZT -

2022 F R E RRIRFT AR (L HE)
(ET) 1661 120226 B17E TIB &
B BREBEREETE - ZIETRBER
B 20254F ([BEBE]) BB BERT
RIEBRFETE B ERER - BRIFLIEE]
&0 BEEHENEEREKEEETA
RIEEBEAPINRERESET &
THEEREEBEARENRERES
HEe N BEAHANRERESE
EBTZRE  WiREEREBEBHTR
B—EANTEHE -



36.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. UEEHMI B A

On 1 April 2021, the Company entered into a share purchase 2021418 KRB L —H k%
agreement for 100% interest in Ming Fong Packaging & BEHE - LIRS MK (B48,900,0007% 7T M)
Chemicals Limited with independent third parties at a cash BYE=FWERLEARLELIERARN
consideration of HK$48,900,000 for its right of use assets and 100% #Em R A REEERET - WED
buildings. The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition ABRFIEE E W - WEE 202154 A
of assets. The acquisition has been completed on 14 April 2021. 14 BFERK ©
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition RUEBANRANEERAS
HK$'000
FHIT
Right-of-use assets FREEE 48,812
Building EF 2,598
Trade and other receivables 2 5 KAt YR IAE 142
Inventories FE 582
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRIA S 6
Trade and other payables E 5 I A e I8 (100)
Borrowing &R (3,140)
48,900
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of Ming Fong WHEACERLCTIERIATAEENRER
Packaging & Chemicals Limited R
HK$'000
FHIT
Consideration paid in cash ENESRE 48,900
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B TR IRTTER IR S (6)
48,894
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3l.

38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BEXREAKREL
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REEZERAERECRERASEETE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BREREL:s  AINSRCEEE R
maximising the return to shareholders through the generation Fai=BEnENEe @iﬁ KEBEZ
of profits from its operations. The Group’s overall strategy BERREBTFEMEIFTE -
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash REEEAEBERRER e RESSFEDR
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, RARHEE ANEEER (RIEDEITRAR
comprising issued share capital and reserves. ) o
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an RARBERRFEEEEMENGEHE - £
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the BB IR EEEEBEARKANE
cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on BEXEEZRER - AEEERBEZEZE
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its RBBY RS KRBT P LB
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and BREERE -
new share issues.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 8. &8IA
(a) Categories of financial instruments () 2RMIADE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRZERMEE 238,610 236,195
Financial assets at amortised cost RHERAC SREE 1,872,172 2,488,933
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost 3D 727,403 895,303

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

(b) EEEAMREEBERRBCK

AEEZ T ESR T ANERMEHR
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk
The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative

financial instruments either for hedging or speculative

purposes. There has been no change to the Group’s

exposure to market risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk during the year.

(i)

Currency risk
The Company and several subsidiaries of the
Company have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

United States Dollar (“US$”) =7t ([E7t])
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE (TEED
RMB AR

8. T EHE#®)

(b)

Assets

BE

2022
20225
HK$°000
THET

165,329
13,283
332,970

TREREEERRECK (£)

5B

N2 [ 30 4 A S sl R B RO RT IR
BEESRTA - R KXEEZ
miSRERRE RS ER 2T
BT

() EEERE
ARBRARBETHERE
BEINE S AEEEHING
[\ o

RmEIR - ARBEAINERT
BEZENEERERBEZR

HEWT :
Liabilities
=l
2021 2022 2021

20214 2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET TATT

444,546 11,322 24,204
6,322 17,716 19,911
391,623 153,653 165,651

As HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s exposure
to fluctuation in HK$ against US$ is limited. The
Group’s currency risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuations of JPY and RMB against HK$.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

RBTTIREEXTHE - ARQ
AEERBR/AKREMAR 2B
TRAETZEXRRERA
R AEBEBREMEYE ZEH
EREEXRERERARKERL
BT KB R -

AR B B A3 SN E B PR
R AT AREEEEESR
SMNERR - UHNEFEREE
BEIPEARINER S o
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continueq)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities. 5% (2021:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2021: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year
where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen
5% against the relevant functional currencies of the
relevant group entities. For a 5% weakening of the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year and the balances below would be
negative.

JPY against HK$ HERBT
RMB against HK$ AREH BT

8. €T H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

TR (&)
() E¥ER (&)
BURE T

TR A EEEABINE
EEEEERE e AE
N B7{E5% (20214 1 5%) 2
B R JE °5% (20214 : 5%)
TEEBEIEABEINERR
RNE R SRR A 2 U E
R RMEBEHIINEERY
AREAIRE B 2 PTG o BURE
DHTEBIE S AREE 2 ASNE
TEZEBER  WHRREH
KIR5% (20214 : 5%) 2 [&
KRS IMBEEITHE - TX
2 IE 1B = e 4 75 1) 38 hn (s
MRRASNE KRR S B B 28 2 48
BB EHFES%) » (K18 RE
SN SR EEER NS
MBS B 5% + ¥ F RE R AR
HERBERFERATEHE
BEME-

Profit for the year

FREF
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
(185) (567)
7,486 9,434

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continueq)

(if)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate time deposits with maturity
over three months, bond receivables and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the fluctuation of
prevailing market interest rate on bank balances.
The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
interest rate exposure on dynamic basis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
overall interest rate risks for bank balances and
structured rates are not significant as bank balances
and structured rates are all short term and interest
rates are currently at low level with no significant
changes are expected for the foreseeable future.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL. The Group is also exposed to certain price
risks in relation to unquoted equity securities for
investees for long term strategic purposes which
had been designed as FVTPL. The Group monitors
the price risk through regular reviews of the market
price of the listed equity securities and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

8. €T H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

FASEE (4)
(i) FIEES

(i)

AEEHEREERENX={A
WAL E BiTF 3R - B 7 R T
ERBEEBEZATFENEA
& o NGB N E R B ERTT A BR
ZBRITMENERB BB R
TMENXER - AEEB A
WENEENEE - A - B
BEE AR RREEE AR
[\ o

ARFEERA  MRBTE
#4955 5 B FI K B BT EAME
KT RHEFETHALSERTE
BAEBARL  BITRBIE
B EEBLTEA -

B 1E1E RS

AEBRZAFEF AR
EZ EMBAESFRE M
PR A(E RS EL - A IR 8
ETERBREMNEIRED
AN ERERANESEBNE
RER - ZBEARFEE /IR
RNFEFARE - AEEEE
ERE EMERARZOmE
ERERERILSNE T ER
LB R o
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continueaq)

(iif)

Other price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in note 38(c).

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 35% (2021: 35%) lower, the profit for the
year would decrease by HK$3,583,000 (2021:
HK$4,353,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

The management does not anticipate a significant
increase in market bid price on the listed equity
instrument in the next financial year having regard
to the trends in the market bid price. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis for increase in such prices is
presented.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A

8. €T H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

TR (&)
(i) EeERmE (&)

BURE T

AT BRERE DM HRBRRE
REIFE S 2 A B AR E
FoNBREZERzATE
B EMERAE 2 U
E MR ER M RE 38(0) °

HERATE 2 EE TP 35%
(2021%F :35%) " A& EF
R G R IR A FEA AR
HAEZEELAFEZFHMA
43,583,000/ 7T (20214 :
4,353,0007T) °

ERERS  EEITWHEA
BES EWBRATAZMS
BEAER MEMBFEE TS H
REAE® - At - YEZT
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ST H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues) 38.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
exposures are primarily attributable to trade receivables,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which are in trade
nature, other receivables, loan receivable, amount due
from ultimate holding company, bank balances, time
deposits with maturity over three months and time
deposits with maturity over one year. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets,
except that the credit risks associated with loan receivable
is mitigated because it is secured over the guarantee
provided by the shareholders of the debtor.

Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from

contracts with customers

(i)  Trade receivables
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 24%
(2021: 24%) and 67% (2021: 69%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

EERER BETE

ERERBEAREEFHEREE 2
= ,\’Jfﬁcé}@lzﬁﬁgﬁﬂ%éﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂ
%o AEENEERRIEREES
FEW RSN - BE S MH 2 B[R R
%"ﬂ?ﬁiﬁ C HEUROE - BIKRE

MRS A RIFOR ~ RITA

ﬁ% =f& A LAJ:EHHT_ A —F A
FERER - AEEYLEFSE EAER
E‘uﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ:%i‘ BIAEHERSREE
FRNEERR  HEEKERER
MEERR EWEE* EAHUEBA
BRRER RO EIRIFIEA -

FERELZ B ZEWRFRAL
K%WH?WJE AN (BE S
L3=P)
iy BFEEERR

RAEAEREEERR A&

EEEEBDEKZIK— @/ EF

FAEEEEEEREREES

o HMEMMELA - AL

{5 A BB ME B REAR I E R

BEEFPHNEEERREER

FROEERSE - AEBTEHE

BEPHRB MR - AEE

TR EAMEERZFF - ARELR

REVRAE RS e T B R E T

AEBEEZRERWERBEY
24% (20214 : 24%) K 67%
(20214 : 69%) BEEFFE
EBe - DRIREAEBHZAR
FRAKEF -
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

@

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually for customers with significant balances
and others based on provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference
to repayment histories for recurring customers
and past due exposure for the new customers.
Impairment loss of HK$718,000 (2021: reversal of
impairment loss of HK$261,000) was recognised
during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which are in
trade nature

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model. The balances with fellow subsidiaries
are considered as low credit risk since those fellow
subsidiaries are with good repayment history and
strong financial capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. Thus, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.
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8. €T H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

=EmE R EETE ()

x

BRIELZ B DERFEI R

JEW IR X BE R AR (BE S
1tE) (%)

@

(ii)

Z SRR (&)

Lo - REEREHEESRE
BAREBEEREHOEPZ
B G iR ETTE B E ST
7 $i 18 {5 4 BBk E At AT TR (E
FfE e BEBELXRAMEERR
BE 2ZEENEPHENR
i > I =S =l = i
HEbE - FRNERBEERE
718,0007% 7T (20214 : # [
JEE18 261,000/ 7T) - B
2B ENFFBERHAARNME -

EKERMEARKE (BE
SME)

AEBRBEAEHEEBEER
EITRER S - BRZMER
AR ESERR - BRZ%
EZRAMBRAREERIFER
RN EEMMESD - MR
REEMANAHNRERER
Feo Ak ARREZEAR/R
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Other receivables/loan receivable/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/
time deposits with maturity over three months/time
deposits with over one year/bond receivables

@

(ii)

Loan receivable

The directors of the Company estimate the
estimated loss rates by using 12m ECL based on
historical credit loss experience of the debtor.
Based on assessment by the directors of the
Company, the loss given default is low in view of
the regular settlement of debtor without any delay
in settlement of instalment in the current and
previous years. Thus, the directors of the Company
consider the impairment loss was insignificant to be
recognised during the year.

Other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The
directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL basis. Thus, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.

38.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

=EmE R EETE ()
H BN TEWE L TEWL

=
X

R AR, IRTTAS B

PRI H B8 = 8 A & E R
—FLLERFNTEK E

@)

(ii)

FEWE K
ARREFERBEHANBE
EEBELES - L1218 A 1B
EEBREEFELE R
BEARBEZORNG - ERR
REERBEFE  BHADN
FHREEDBAEED B
B OBOBRERE - Bt
ARREFERRNFRNERH
EBEMRTRE -

HL YR IA K JE MR AR FR A
REFRIE
ARAREFENELZHE
BoBERBRRAERARE
1 B0 B R S E A R R OR B e
W R 2 PRI A R RRIR Y AT 1= K
MV E B E R RT il - AR E]
BEXRAE ZERENEER
B 1)K HE BB 1R B A B KR
e mASER 12 E8AEHIE
EEREMRE - Bt - AR
AEER /N FAERNRME
BRI RE -
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Other receivables/loan receivable/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/
time deposits with maturity over three months/
time deposits with over one year/bond receivables
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Time deposits with maturity over three months,
time deposits with maturity over one year, bank
balances

The credit risks on bank balances, time deposits
with maturity over three months and time deposits
with maturity over one year are limited because
the counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
bank balances, time deposits with maturity over
three months and time deposits with maturity over
one year by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss
rates, the directors of the Company consider the
impairment loss was insignificant to be recognised
during the year.

Bond receivables

The credit risks on bond receivables are limited
because the counterparty is the government with
high credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL
for bond receivables by reference to information
relating to probability of default and loss given
default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the directors of
the Company consider the impairment loss was
insignificant to be recognised during the year.
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(iii)
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=@MAMNEERFR
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fﬁﬂiiﬁ% CZEANEESE
RE—FULEHERNEER
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BEETARBL TEEET
TEOEREE - REEL2EH
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BREER  UFHERITE
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Impairment assessment
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

ABEERR B

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

ERER HFFRONEREE - B EEMaHTE

Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full

el EBABLERZMARES  BREE
PEEN

Watch list There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

)i RENDEHFINIERREEERR
B 6 HER AR A B LS N

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

R ERBRTAEDEAREAE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

G| FERRMEBANREANBEE -

AREENERAELRDHIE

38.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

EEERERFEE (&)

SR 1EEFA

7S B OB E SRR AT R BIE LA T
185

Trade receivable

and amounts

due from fellow
subsidiaries which
are in trade nature
E A RBIRT R
R RHE A RHE
(BEZME)

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
L HRHEERR

- REEEERE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
PHBHREEER

- REEEERE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
LHRHEERE

- REECERE
Lifetime ECL

- credit-impaired
PHRHREEER

-BECERE

Amount is written off

s

Other financial assets
at amortised cost

REHER AR
HitemEE

12m ECL

REARBEEFE

12m ECL

NERBHEESE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

2HRMEEER
- RBEEERE
Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
2HEREEES
-BEEERE

Amount is written off

iR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | —ZE = Z=F F 3}

208



20

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Impairment assessment (continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal 12mECL or
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL
g L] 1ERRHEEFED
REIR REFR 2HEREERE
Financial assets at
amortised costs
REHAASIE 2 SRER
Loan receivable N/A Low risk 12mECL
‘ (Note 1) .
EUE NER ERR EARHEESSE
(B3 1)
Amounts due from N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
fellow subsidiaries (Note 2) (not credit impaired)
EURZNELARE NER [EER PHREEEER
(P2) (FEERE)
Amount due from ultimate N/A Low risk 12mECL
holding company (Note 1) ‘
EUSLERAANE NEA EER 12EAESEEES
i)
Time deposits with maturity Al-Baa NA 12mECL
over three months
ZRANLEESER TER 12EARSEEES
Time deposits with maturity Al-Baa /A 12mECL
over one year
—EN LEEET aR 1ERARREESE
Bond receivables Aa3 NA fmecl
EES R 1EREREESE
Bank halances Al -Baa N/A fmecl
fidhEeta MR 12EARSEEES
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12mECL
(Note 1) .
HibEYGE TR [EER 12ERRHREESE
(BtzE1)
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
(Note 2) (provision matrix)
BRRNER TR [k PHEDESEE
(HfsE2) (BEpE)
Low risk Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
KRR SHEBE B
(FEERE)
Loss Creditimpaired
B& [EERE

8. T EHE#®)

(b) THREAMEEBEFERBE (&)

=EmE R EETE ()

RIEFHE ()

TR AEESRHEERBRELE
EEEFEREERBRS -

2022
WNE
Gross carrying amount
e
HKS'000 HKS$000
TR ThT
821
34,582
4,174
17,763
78,364
1,249,350
60,173
235,098
191,737
3921 430,756

201
20145
Gross carrying amount

FEGE
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL T

1368

32,504

35M

17,642

85,616

37,087
1,790,811

44,869

285,697

189,685

3,203 478,585
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

Impairment assessment (continued)
Note:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses an aged analysis based on past due days to
assess whether credit risk has increased significant since
initial recognition and concluded that there is no significant
increase in credit risk for loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company and other receivables.

2. For trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature, the Group has applied the
simplified approach to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which
are in trade nature, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by historical repayment pattern of customers in
the past three years.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
internal credit rating to assess the impairment for its customers in
relation to the trade receivables because these customers consist
of a large number of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates used is estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment
loss of HK$718,000 was recognised and for the
year ended 31 December 2021, impairment loss of
HK$261,000 was reversed.

8. €T H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

=EmE R EETE ()
RIEFHE ()
BT -
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HERLATGR B AR AN I B 5 FE
WEK -~ EREAIER AR FOR R
E bR R A E B R EAE
B e

2. HEBIBERANERR RIS
NAFE (BESME)  AEED
EANBETT AN HEBEER
B EBERA - BAEESAHR
REET N R R 2 8 A B 5R0R
(BEZMHE) S AEEGKRB
E=FEPHBEE TR AR
BEEETZEHENARERS

18 e

rEBEGFEERREENED —RE
SEERABEEFE  AEZRK
BRAFHEEEPHREE  ARRER
FEEARERRF  HEARRBRFHR
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BEHIRES -

AEHRAXRDEMEBABR LB
AT HROBEENEMMEE - I
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&8 261,0008 7T o
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ST H (&)
(b) ¢RERSEEERKE (&)

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues) 38.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (continuea)) =EERERBEFE (&)
Impairment assessment (continued) JR1EFT S (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL T%@J/T_\EETF%{E??%?T%FEW
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the ERERNEHEHEEREY
simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2HEREESE
(E&RE)
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2021 7"2021F1H1H 3,464
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  MERBEREE » HKRED (261)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021%12H831H 3,203
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  HERIRERIE @ FKRED 718
As at 31 December 2022 A 2022%F12831H 3,921

B REWRRMEERESSHEER
REZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFEFES
TR EE BB REFE 718,000 T
MEZE2021F12 A31 BIHFERED
EREE 5 ERERFFEE 261,000

Changes in loss allowance for trade receivables are
mainly due to the net impact of additional ECL allowance
of HK$718,000 during the year ended 31 December
2022 and net impact of reversal of credit impaired trade
receivables of HK$261,000 during the year ended 31

2]

December 2021. TCRTER ©
Liquidity risk BB LA

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continues) 8. BT H#®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¢RIEMESEREREEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELEfE (FB)
Liquidity risk table B E R R
31 December 2022 202212 H831H
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
interest or within 4t0 12 1to3 undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year cash flows amount
il RERE nz KRR E
= R=EAR T=fEA -B=f% £ REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TiEx
Trade payables lAES - 179,942 - - 179,942 179,942
Other payables and accruals 1 R IE&J@.#% - 510,030 - - 510,030 510,030
Amount due to ultimate ERSRBRAFN
holding company - 33,808 - - 33,808 33,808
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNBLRGE
subsidiaries - 3,623 - - 3,623 3,623
Lease liabilities HERE 434 1,820 3,756 5,636 11,212 8,375
729,223 3,756 5,636 738,615 735,778
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest or within 41012 Tt03  undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year cash flows amount
i REXE mE AMERE
THRE  R=EAR +=f8A —E=F mELH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THEL THL THL TAL
Trade payables EC) AN - 270,227 - - 270,227 270,227
Other payables and accruals — EHofE FUE R /& Eﬁ% - 582,733 - - 582,733 582,733
Amount due to ultimate FERSABRAFN
holding company - 35,144 - - 35,144 35,144
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNBARGE
subsidiaries - 7,199 - 7,199 7,199
Lease liabilities HEEE 251 2,117 4,853 5,411 12,381 11212
897,420 4,853 5411 907,684 906,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

8. €T H (&)
() &mMIEBEQAFENE (&)

REEBZAETE M REL L FEG
BZEMEEZNFHE (B)

Fair value as at Valuation
RT5IBH 2 ATE Fair value technique(s) Significant
Financial assets 2022 2021 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs
EREE 02F% 2021F ATERR REATRIZANEE EXTIRZRARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAT
Listed equity 10,237 12,436 Level 1 Quoted prices in an N/A
investment active market
TTHRARE £-ER RERMS BE TER
Club debenture 5272 5272 Level 2 Quoted pricesin a N/A
market for
identical assets
s FER BhGREEEHE TER
Unlisted equity 18,862 19,502 Level 3 Price to earnings Discount rate of 30% (2021: 30%) (note a)
investments ratio adjusted and price to earnings ratio multiple of
for marketability 9.63 (2021: 11.82) (note b), taking into
account management’s experience and
knowledge of market conditions.
¥ ERRARE E-ER MRX (FimnEtEL  BR%30% (20215 : 30%)(fza) &
BE) MARE#9.63(20215 :1182)
(With)  DEZREBENERR
HHEIRE T RMERE -
Structured notes 204,239 198,985 Level 2 Quoted prices provided N/A
by financial institution
BREIZE EZER TREBRE BB TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value
measurement of unlisted equity investment, and vice
versa. If the discount rate was 0.5% higher/lower to
30.5%/29.5% (2021: 30.5%/29.5%) while holding all
other variables constant, the carrying amount of the
unlisted equity investment would decrease by HK$112,000
(2021:HK$114,000) or increase by HK$112,000
(2021:HK$114,000) as at 31 December 2022.

A slight increase in the price to earnings ratio multiple used
in isolation would result in a slight increase in the fair value
measurement of unlisted equity investment, and vice versa.
If the price to earnings ratio multiple was 5% higher/
lower to 9.15/10.11 (2021: 12.41/11.23) while all other
variables constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity investment would increase by HK$1,520,000 (2021:
HK$1,417,000) or decrease by HK$1,520,000 (2021:
HK$1,417,000) as at 31 December 2022.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during

the year.
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1,417,000% 7T) 3R 2> 1,520,000
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial (c)

instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

8. €T H (&)
SRMIAATVENE (&)

F=RNFEITEZH R

Financial assets

at FVTPL

BAFETA

BEENESREE

At 1 January 2021 »2021F1HA1H 18,315
Fair value gain NFEEWE 1,187
At 31 December 2021 72021F12 A31H 19,502
Fair value loss NEEEE (640)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 18,862

Fair value gains or losses on financial assets FVTPL are
included in ‘other gains and losses'.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities above have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis.

BAFEFABRENEREENAFERK
kR A T E bl R &R F e

HHBATE B EUAFEHE 22
HERSBARZAFE (HEREL
FE)

AAREERA  RBBRAELR S B

BEARZEREELRERBEZREE
HENFEMEE -

FERAERSRA B AT EERE
AREBER AR SR E ST -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

39.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 3. At AHE
Apart from the balances with related parties as disclosed in B ARG B TSR 5 3% B2 &5 B 5 P 5% B 1R
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective Bt 7 2 B8RO - REED EEREE TR
notes, the Group has entered into the following transactions TR :

with related parties:

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Ultimate holding company BAERAT
Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement M A EE R EEAK @
of finished goods 65,683 68,488
Purchase of raw materials BERME 30,894 37,952
Purchase of equipment and parts I8 B R Bl 425 1,385
Royalty charges paid (Note) BERERNE () 18,233 17,504
Research service IR (3,024) (3,541)
Note: The amount represents royalty paid to ultimate holding company Wik - ZeBEnARFERAREERFES TH
for the rights to use certain trademarks and technical know- HEMB R E T EEREMAH# R &
how in connection with the manufacturing and sales of certain BERARAZN2EMNE (BREBEZER
licensed products which is calculated at certain percentage on the BERHEFE—TAOLAHE) -
net sales of these licensed products.
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Fellow subsidiaries SN
Food testing fee Rl E 3,310 5,054
Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement M A EE B R EEAK @@
of finished goods 65,097 61,273
Purchase of raw materials BERME 4,673 5,849
Sales of raw materials and finished goods SHE RAR KK (111,038) (113,261)
The compensation to key management personnel consist mainly FTEFEEBABZHFMNEZEREWT 1257
of directors’ emoluments as disclosed in note 12. WEREEHH -

218 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has equity

0. MEBARFE

R|EHR ARBRATEREAER 2

interests in the following subsidiaries comprising the Group: P8 A R R AR
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ BETRAR KARREZ
WERARER EEMY EMAL/AMASE ZERA/ZMER RAEREL TEER
2022 2021
2022% | 20015

Dongguan Nissin Mainland China 17 October 2013 RMB147,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
Packaging Co., Ltd.* materials of instant noodles
(Note 2) products

RERBREARRE  PEML 013F10A178  AR¥147,000,0007C EEIREERDENH
(FizE2)

Kagome Nissin Hong Kong 27 April 2018 HK$5,000,000 70% 70% Import, purchase and
Foods (H.K.) sale of beverage products in
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China

ARXHERM (BE) FA 2018478278 5000,000%7 #EE  BRRTEAED
BRAR (W) REEHHER

Fujian Nissin Mainland China 19 February 2014 RMB235,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of instant
Foods Co., Ltd.* noodles products
(Note 2)

BEABRAABAR  HHEAL 014628198 AR%235,000,0007 FENRAEER
(FitzE2)

Guangdong Shunde Mainland China 13 November 1994 HK$130,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Nissin Foods instant noodles products
Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

ERIEZRERG el 199445 11 A138  130,000,000% 7 EERHEANREER
AR (fEE2)

Nissin Foods Mainland China 29 October 2001 RMB1,443,797,800 100% 100% Investment holding
(China) Holding in Mainland China and
Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) purchase and sale of instant

noodles products

RERm (TE)RE  HEA 20016104298 ARH1,443,797,800 7 EPEAMETREERR
BRATF (MiE1) BENRNER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zantinuec) 0. MBAREE @)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ &/ BETRHR RARREZ
WEAREHE EENE FMAL/AMASH LBRA/ZMER RAEEL TRER
2022 2021
W2%F | 2001%

Nissin Foods (H.K.) Hong Kong 25 August 2015 HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Sales and distribution of
Company Limited noodles, retort foods, frozen
(Note 1) foods, beverage products

and snacks in Hong Kong
and Macau

RERE (B%) B 2015F8A258 10,000,000/ EEERRFHEL DB
BRRE (k1) Mk ZERG RR

Am FRERRTR

Nissin Foods (H.K.) Hong Kong 6 July 2001 HK$200 100% 100% Provision of administrative
Management and human resources to
Company Limited group companies
(Note 1)

RiERME (BE) & 01F7A68  200ET REERRRETER
ERARAR (1) ANERREH

Nissin Koikeya Hong Kong 27 September 2013 HK$10,000,000 66% 66% Purchase and sales of snacks
Foods (China & HK)

Co., Limited (Note 1)

RIBHHE Bl 2013%9A27H 10,000,000 BEZR
(mE e FE)

BRAA (MzE1)

Winner Food Hong Kong 11 April 1969 HK$29,975,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Products Limited instant noodles products
(Note 1) and frozen foods

KERMERAR &b 1969548118 29,975000%7 FERHENRAERR
(Fra1) RREM

MC Marketing Hong Kong 17 January 1978 HK$1,000 81% 51% Importation and distribution of
& Sales beverages and food products
(Hong Kong)

Limited (Note 1)

ERREERAA G 1978518178 1,000%7% EORDERHRRRER

(FtsE1)

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H
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40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinued)

0. MBLRFE &)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ BETRAR NG A
WRARER EEHY EMAL/EMAS ZERA/ZRER BB TEER
2022 2021
W02%F | 2001%F

Zhuhai Golden Mainland China 3 July 1993 HK$84,000,000 100% | 70.45% Manufacturing and sales of
Coast Winner instant noodles
Food Products Limited

weEmLERKERR  TEAL 199357838 84,000,000 EERHENREER
BRAR

Zhejiang Nissin Mainland China 25 November 2014 RMB350,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of instant
Foods Co., Ltd.* noodles products
(Note 2)

FIRFRGERAR  TEMKS 014F11A258  AR¥350,000,0007 EEIREER
(M2)

Zhuhai Nissin Mainland China 10 December 2003 RMB107,567,517 100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
Packaging Company (2021: HK$7,200,000) materials of instant noodles
Limited* (Note 2) products

REREREBRAT  THEkKL 003F124108  AR®107,5675177T EENREERDEMH
(Fiz£2) (20214 +7,200,000/7)

Hong Kong Eastpeak Hong Kong 4 March 2021 HK$23,000,000 81% 81% Investment holding
Limited (Note 1)

BEREBRAT £l 22143848 23,000,000 RERRK
(FizE1)

Shanghai Eastpeak Mainland China 6 March 2021 RMB20,000,000 81% 81% Trading of instant
Trading Limited* noodles products
(Note 3)

FEREESHERAT  hEk 22143868 AE$20,000,0007 EEIRMER
(F3E3)

Valleyfarm Holdings Hong Kong 21 January 2021 HK$7,500,000 100% 81% Trading of vegetable products
Limited (Note 1)

HXAERERNE BB 021518218 7,500,000/ BEAXER
(Fsx1)

Ming Fong Packaging ~ Hong Kong 22 January 1991 HK$63,886,738 100% 100% Trading of packaging materials
& Chemicals Limited
(Note 1)

RERE(IARRE BB 1991510228 63,886,738/ EEREYH
(B3t

* English translated name is for identification only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zantinses) N, MBRRFE ®)
Notes: Pk -
1. These companies are directly held by the Company. 1 ZENTHAARNRREERS

2. The subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through 2
Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd.

3. This subsidiary is indirectly held by the Company through Hong 3
Kong Eastpeak Limited.

4. Except for Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited 4
which is a sino-foreign equity joint venture in Mainland China,
all other Mainland China subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises registered in Mainland China.

5. No debt securities have been issued by its subsidiaries as at 31 5
December 2022 and 2021.

MEBARRAAREBABRMA (HE)
REBRARBERS -

ZMBARIAAAREBEEREGRA
AREEE -

BRIBTEEFKERAERARSTE
MLz IR E AR - FRAEEMRER
Ho P B A AP BT R Bl R RE 2 S0 8 8
Al

20229 %2021 128318 - HK B
NENEEITERES

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries TRIRAATEZEMB AR ZFFE

of the Company:

Proportion of equity
interest held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
controlling shareholders controlling shareholders controlling interests
FERURREE 2 RELH) AEFFERERRE 2BH ESE i
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022% 2015 202% 20214 2022% 20215
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TAT iR TAT
Name of subsidiaries i PNES
Zhuhai Golden Coast HEmER
Winner Food XERM
Products Limited BRAT - 29.55% 29,172 30,194 - 130,028
Other subsidiaries with At ERER
individual non-controlling RERFEHILER
interests which is not material 7B 3,225 5,215 25,773 35,594
32,397 35,409 25,773 165,622

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A



40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zantinue) 0. PSR EIREE (@)
Information on non-wholly owned subsidiaries with BEEREEHMERZFZENBL
material non-controlling interests AIZEHR
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the REBEBBEAFEHEEZ 2 SHMBR
Company’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling AU BERBMEFHEN T - L THBHE
interests is set out below. The summarised financial information B ZERBEEEVHBRERIGRRE %
below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations E A AT SR
prepared under HKFRSs:
Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited BB 2B EKERMBEMRL A
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE 132,219 173,296
Current assets MENEE 297,849 436,850
Current liabilities mENRE (212,365) (168,636)
Non-current liabilities B E A= (969) (1,482)
216,734 440,028
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 RI#EH AE(L i 216,734 310,000
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests JEi%H IR FE (5 #E S - 130,028
216,734 440,028
Revenue A 743,418 704,079
Profit for the year FERNm A 113,076 102,180
Other comprehensive (expense) income FRNEME2E (FX) /A
for the year (41,134) 13,202
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEBALRE 71,942 115,382
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT FEEF AT -
— owners of the Company - RRFHEBA 83,904 71,986
- non-controlling interests — FEPE 1 R e 29,172 30,194
113,076 102,180
Total comprehensive income for the AT ATEEFAZERA
year attributable to: HRER
— owners of the Company - RRFHEBA 84,097 81,286
- non-controlling interests - JEIE IR 12,155 34,096
96,252 115,382
Dividend recognised as distribution to R AR R R
non-controlling interests i S 82,135 20,818
Net cash from operating activities BB EA ZIRE T 162,960 103,067
Net cash (used in) from investing activities BEES (FTH) Sz Re#5E (5,709) 491
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMA RS FE (277,951) (70,450)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORt) MAFERE (120,700) 33,108
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | —ZZE = Z=F F 3}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

41.  RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING N BHERFELEZAEZEE
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREI AN EBRETHEEZEEY
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash (BERe RIERSEH) 2515 - AT
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for PEEZABBEERREMEBIARKRER
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ERTEEZFERERERTBIER
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BMETHRSRE
from financing activities.
Lease Dividend
Borrowing liabilities payable Total
BE HEAE ERBRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAHTT FAT FHT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H - 16,674 18,608 35,282
Financing cash flows BMERSRE (3,140) (8,712) (189,948) (201,800)
New borrowing e E 3,140 - - 3,140
Exchange differences MR ZER - (1,799) - (1,799)
New leases entered RISETARAY - 4,684 - 4,684
Interest expenses FMEMAX - 365 - 365
Dividend declared EEIRKE - - 171,340 171,340
At 31 December 2021 R20214F 12 A31H - 11,212 - 11,212
Financing cash flows MERSNE - (8,377) (265,239) (273,616)
Exchange differences N ZH - (1,340) - (1,340)
New leases entered RISETARAY - 6,621 - 6,621
Interest expenses FMEMAX - 259 - 259
Dividend declared EEIRKE - - 265,239 265,239
At 31 December 2022 72022912 A31H - 8,375 - 8,375
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COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION 42.

The following are the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

AREIZHABER
TR ARRFTR2022E K% 2021412 A 31
Bz B BikRE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRERZE 461,724 445,887
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,479 4,662
Trademark IR 15,348 18,578
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARZZRE 2,326,558 2,133,099
Financial assets of FVTPL BAFEMAEBRZEREE 34,371 37,210
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEME - BE MEETIES
plant and equipment 3,562 5,187
Loan to subsidiaries mE A RER 45,593 88,063
2,891,635 2,732,686
Current Assets MENEE
Inventories A 95,925 95,012
Trade receivables Z 5 YRR 1,920 2,188
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits B fEULERIE « TEIS FUIE RiZE 12,509 9,200
Amount due from ultimate holding company — FEU SR ARYZR% A B FIA 1,310 17
Amounts due from subsidiaries A N YNETE S ] 265,516 141,842
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R T8 A A8 27,393 27,890
Loan to a subsidiary m—RERBA 7ffw\ 85,904 37,662
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAHEFABRZ 2 REE 204,239 198,985
Tax recoverable EEEE 11,741 -
Time deposits with maturity over three months =1{& A LA - & Hi1F5K - 16,238
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRR 125,700 333,103
832,157 862,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMIGE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F 12 A31BILEFE

42. COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION /zantinued) 8. KARZMBERN ©)
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Current Liabilities REBAR
Trade payables B SRR 19,039 31,149
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERERTER 75,073 79,377
Amount due to ultimate holding company FERT IR A RIFIR 24,066 24,278
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfSB B A RI5RIE 24,279 29,450
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FER R ZREMB A RHE 1,548 3,639
Loan from subsidiaries MIBARIER 85,905 -
Tax liabilities HIEBE - 5,804
229,910 173,697
Net Current Assets REEETFE 602,247 688,440
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBER 3,493,882 3,421,126
Capital and Reserves EXRf#E
Share capital [N 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves & 528,561 453,645
Total Equity R mE 3,470,002 3,395,086
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 23,880 26,040
3,493,882 3,421,126

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2023 and are signed on its behalf of:

KIYOTAKA ANDO
£y 3
DIRECTOR
EF
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BE

SHINJI TATSUTANI
RAER
DIRECTOR
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42. COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION (zantinied) 8. RABRZHBER #)
The followings are the movements in the Company’s reserves: ITARARE 2 #HEE
Shares
held for Share
Share Award award Retained
Scheme reserve profits Total
RER A
EmatE R4
HEZRA HEREE REBF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THT FAT
At 1 January 2021 20211818 (187) - 573,004 572,817
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENRZE
for the year WABE - - 187,393 187,393
Recognition of equity-settled RN EE L
share-based payment Bt BERET - 1,431 - 1,431
Share purchased from secondary market ~ F&/3 8B EIA T A
under share award scheme E-miEREENRN (1,474) - - (1,474)
Share vested under share award scheme  1RIER 7 2Bzt EIE BB 1,431 (1,431) - -
Buy-back of own shares (Note 32) EEE F R (K3:E32) - - (156,380) (156,380)
Dividend recognised as distribution BRRBAKZIRE
(Note 14) (15t 14) - - (150,142) (150,142)
At 31 December 2021 #®2021F12A31H (230) - 453,875 453,645
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEEE
for the year Nt - - 283,204 283,204
Recognition of equity-settled HERNEREE D
share-based payment RiDAER T - 1,697 - 1,697
Share purchased from secondary market  FR{7 #ENEHEIE T A
under share award scheme F-HEENRD (1,664) - - (1,664)
Share vested under share award scheme ~ RiEI& 1) 2B+ 22 BB G 1,801 (1,697) (104) -
Buy-back of own shares (Note 32) miEE Fkin (EE32) - - (25,988) (25,988)
Dividend recognised as distribution ERAD RIS
(Note 14) (FizE14) - - (182,333) (182,333)
At 31 December 2022 N2022F 128318 (93) - 528,654 528,561
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

h IS

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 & 20214 20204 20194 20184F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHIT T FHIT
Result E

Revenue A 4,024,980 3,866,335 3,518,847 3,087,781 2,998,828
Profit before taxation FrEERTR T 468,905 441,576 433,942 352,638 300,008
Income tax expense FriSHif X< (119,989) (102,341) (101,378) (73,720) (69,426)
Profit for the year F R F 348,916 339,235 332,564 278,918 230,582

Attributable to: AN AL :
Owners of the Company KATEBA 316,519 303,821 301,912 250,964 205,448
Non-controlling interest FEPE M R 32,397 35,414 30,652 27,954 25,134
Total 5T 348,916 339,235 332,564 278,918 230,582
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 & 20214 20204 20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT FHEIT T FHEIT
Total Assets BERLE 4,535,110 5,259,569 5,183,875 4,633,930 4,444,372
Total Liabilities BERE (990,407) | (1,143,308) (1,140,692) (921,612) (849,199)
Total Equity A 3,544,703 | 4,116,261 4,043,183 3,712,318 3,595,173
Net current Assets MENEEFE 1,550,336 2,048,465 2,231,262 2,135,991 2,126,650
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